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Dear Shareholders:

This past year has been the most tumultuous the free market

economies have seen in years. With the U.S. economy already in AUG i3 2@@2
recession, the civilized world as a whole was rocked by the tragic TH OMSON
events of September 11. The ensuing war on terrorism brought furtthN ANGI A{E
uncertainties to the global economy, which has been further weakened
by the seemingly endless disclosures of accounting and management
scandals. And on top of that, the after-effects of the bursting of the
“tech bubble” continued to be felt across the IT industry.

Against that backdrop, 3Com has made substantial progress in its
transformation. A year ago in our fourth quarter of fiscal year 2001,
we had a pro forma loss of $206 million and our balance sheet,
which only one year earlier had $3.07 billion of cash stood at $1.64
billion of cash. Fast forward to the fourth quarter of the recently
concluded fiscal year—we were pro forma profitable and had
increased our cash from the third fiscal quarter to $1.38 billion.
Just as importantly, we had substantially improved our product lines
and were gaining share in several key product segments.

I believe that when a business faces a crisis, two things matter more
than anything—your balance sheet and your reputation. With a
strong balance sheet you have the financial strength to fund your
ambitions. With a strong reputation, you have the support of your
critical constituents—customers, employees and investors. In a year
in which many companies eroded their balance sheets and damaged
their reputations, we were clearly an exception.

I can say without hesitation that the state of our company is
substantially better today than it was at this time last year.




So where do we go from here? For the next several quarters market demand will be sluggish as businesses
carefully watch their capital expenditures. Structural changes, particularly in the telecom sector will
impact demand for new products. And technology changes, particularly in the NIC and PC Card business,
will continue to erode this market opportunity. As a result, we expect top line revenue growth to be
challenged for the coming fiscal year. Despite this, however, we continue to believe that longer-term
growth will return to the IT industry and 3Com must, and will, be in a position to take advantage of it.
Therefore, we continue to invest in promising new technologies that will allow customers to reduce costs
and increase revenues. Among them are Voice-over-IP, wireless, and higher bandwidth capabilities such

as gigabit and 10 gigabit capacity. In addition, we have announced a new product architecture called
XRN™. This stands for eXpandable Resilient Networking and it offers enterprise customers the ability to
aggregate network traffic on a “pay as you grow” basis, reducing the cost and complexity previously
associated with core networking.

We expect these efforts to begin paying dividends this fiscal year, with share gains in key segments.
And if spending on networking equipment is better than expected, these share gains can translate to
improved revenue growth.

In addition, we will drive toward operational efficiencies that result in lower costs. We will continue to
outsource those activities that can be done more efficiently by others. And we will continue to excel at
asset management, a proven strength of the company, in order to further strengthen our balance sheet.

All these actions are intended not only to deliver improved financial performance in this fiscal year, but
to position us for even greater success in the coming years. We believe that the leading tier-one network-
ing company of the future will be the one that offers innovative, feature-rich products and solutions that
excel at low cost of acquisition and ownership. Further, if that company also maintains the lowest cost
structure and best asset velocity, it can generate superior financial returns. We intend to be that company.

Let me end with something we take very seriously: our corporate reputation. 3Com has a long heritage
of being a company that promotes and lives by strong values; values that are defined and promoted
throughout the company. These include putting customers first, competing aggressively but fairly,
forming mutually beneficial partnerships, and of particular note, acting with complete integrity in every-
thing we do. This of course applies to our relationship with you, our shareholders. We believe you have
the right to understand all the factors that affect the value of your investment and we will continue to
provide a full, timely and accurate disclosure of our financial performance. We run this company with
the clear goal of creating long-term shareholder value. And we are supported by a board that works
diligently to ensure our business strategies and practices are aligned to achieve that goal.

I appreciate the continued support you have shown in us by being an investor in 3Com. We look forward to
rewarding that support with continued improvements in our business performance in the coming fiscal year.

Sincerely,

Bruce L. Claflin,
President and Chief Executive Officer
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held September 24, 2002

To Our Stockholders:

Our Annual Meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 24, 2002, at 10:30 a.m. at our facility at 5400
Bayfront Plaza, Building 5, Santa Clara, California. The purpose of the meeting is to:

1. Elect four (4) Class II directors, each to hold office for a two-year term.

2. Ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent public accountants for the
fiscal year ending May 30, 2003.

3. Transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

You are entitled to vote your 3Com common stock if our records showed that you held your shares as of
the close of business on July 26, 2002. For ten (10) days before the meeting, you can examine a complete
list of the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting for any purpose germane to the meeting during
regular business hours at our offices at 5400 Bayfront Plaza, Building 1, Santa Clara, California 95052.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

-
Mark D. Michael
Secretary

August 13, 2002
Santa Clara, California

IMPORTANT: Please complete, date, sign and promptly mail the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying
postage-paid envelope to assure that your shares are represented at the meeting. If you attend the meeting,
you may choose to vote in person even if you have previously mailed your proxy card.
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PROXY STATEMENT

Your vote is very important. For this reason, our Board of Directors is requesting that you allow your
common stock to be represented at the annual meeting by the proxies named on the enclosed proxy card.
This proxy statement is being sent to you in connection with this request and has been prepared for the
Board by our management.

The annual meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 24, 2002, at 10:30 a.m. at our principal executive
offices at 5400 Bayfront Plaza, Building 5, Santa Clara, California. Our telephone number is
(408) 326-5000. This proxy statement is first being sent to our stockholders on or about August 13, 2002.

GENERAL INFORMATION

QOur Financial Information. Our financial statements and related information are included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K, which is enclosed with this Proxy Statement.

Who Can Vote. You are entitled to vote your 3Com common stock if our records showed that you held
your shares as of the close of business on July 26, 2002. We refer to this date as the “Record Date.” At the
close of business on the Record Date, a total of 358,545,977 shares of common stock were issued and
outstanding. You may vote in person or by proxy. Each share of 3Com common stock has one vote. There
is no cumulative voting in the election of our directors.

Cost of this Proxy Solicitation. We will pay the cost of soliciting proxies. In addition to soliciting
stockholders by mail and through our regular employees, we will request banks, brokers and other
nominees to solicit their customers who hold our stock in street name and will reimburse them for their
reasonable, out-of-pocket costs. We may use our officers, directors and others to solicit proxies, personally
or by telephone, facsimile or electronic mail. None of these individuals will receive any additional or
special compensation for soliciting proxies. We retained Automated Data Processing, Inc. to solicit proxies
for the annual meeting. We estimate that the fee for these services, which does not depend on the outcome
of the voting, is $3,000, plus out-of-pocket expenses.

Voting Your Proxy. If you hold your common stock in street name through a bank, broker or other
nominee, you will receive instructions from your bank, broker or other nominee that you must follow to
vote your shares. If you hold your shares in your own name as a holder of record, you may vote by signing,
dating and mailing the proxy card in the postage-paid envelope that we have provided to you. The proxies
will vote your shares as you instruct. Of course, you can always attend the meeting and vote your shares in
person. If you sign and return a proxy card without specific voting instructions, your shares will be voted as
recommended by our Board.

Revoking Your Proxy. 'To revoke your proxy if you are a holder of record, you must advise our Secretary in
writing before the meeting, deliver later proxy instructions that we receive prior to the meeting, or attend
the meeting and vote your shares in person. You may revoke your proxy at any time before your shares are
voted.




Quorum. The annual meeting will be held if a majority of the outstanding common stock entitled to vote
is represented at the meeting. Shares that are voted “FOR”, “AGAINST”, “ABSTAIN” or “WITHHELD”
on a matter are treated as being present at the meeting for purposes of establishing a quorum and are also
treated as shares entitled to vote on that matter at the annual meeting (the “Votes Cast”).

Abstentions. Although the law in Delaware is unclear on the proper treatment of abstentions, we believe
that abstentions should be counted for purposes of determining both (i) whether a quorum is present and
(i) the total number of Votes Cast with respect to a proposal (other than the election of directors).
Without controlling precedent to the contrary, we intend to treat abstentions in this manner. Accordingly,
abstentions will have no effect on the outcome of Proposal 1 and abstentions will have the effect of a vote
against Proposal 2.

Broker Non-Votes. We will count broker non-votes in determining the presence or absence of a quorum,
but broker non-votes will not be counted for purposes of determining the number of Votes Cast on a
particular proposal. Accordingly, broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of either proposal.

Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management. The following table contains information,
as of the Record Date, with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock by (i) each person
whom we know to own beneficially more than 5% of our common stock; (ii) each director and nominee;
(iif) the Chief Executive Officer and each of our other executive officers included in the Summary
Compensation Table; and (iv) all of our current executive officers and directors as a group.

Percent of Common

Name Amount(1) Stock Outstanding
Merrill Lynch & Co, Inc.(2) ... ... oo 24,788,569 6.8%
Mellon Financial Corporation(3) . ........... ... ... ... .. .. .... 22,255,262 6.1%
Fred D. Anderson{4) . ... ...t 58,000 *
Eric A. Bephamou(5) . ... ... . i 8,649,045 2.4%
Gary T. DiCamillo(6) . ........ ... . ... 56,610 *
James R.Long(6) . . .. ..ottt i 184,788 *
RajReddy(6) .. ... 54,000 *
Paul G. YOVOVICh(6) . . o oo e ettt 1,118,079 o
Bruce L. Claflin(7) . . .. ..o e 5,729,456 1.6%
M Iffan Ali(8) . . ... .o 755,452 *
Dennis Connors(9) . ... ... ..o i 567,999 *
John F McClelland(10) . . . ... ..ot e e 1,067,076 *
Michael E. Rescoe(11) ......... ... oo 725,843 *
All current directors and executive officers as a group (12 persons)(12) . 18,106,755 52%

*  Less than 1%.

(1) To our knowledge, except as indicated in the footnotes to this table, the persons named in the table
have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock shown as
beneficially owned by them, subject to community property laws where applicable.

(2) Represents shares held by Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. and affiliated persons based upon information
reported on its Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 5, 2002.

(3) Represents shares held by Mellon Financial Corporation and affiliated persons based upon
information reported on its Schedule 13G filed with the SEC, on January 25, 2002.

(4) Includes 19,875 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
(5) Includes 605,120 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.




(6) Includes 19,875 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.

(7) Includes 393,349 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
Also includes 190,000 unvested shares of restricted stock issued to Mr. Claflin under the 3Com
Restricted Stock Plan and 124,594 shares of common stock held in the Bruce and Karen Claflin
Family Trust, of which Bruce L. Claflin is a co-trustee.

(8) Includes 124,611 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
(9) Includes 54,500 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.

(10) Includes 58,631 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date. Also
includes 53,750 unvested shares of restricted stock issued to Mr. McClelland under the 3Com
Restricted Stock Plan.

(11) Includes 113,750 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
Also includes 2,500 unvested shares of restricted stock issued to Mr. Rescoe under the 3Com
Restricted Stock Plan.

(12) Includes 1,449,336 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.




ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our bylaws authorize the Board to fix the number of directors. The exact number of directors is currently
fixed at eight. Our Board is divided into two classes, with the classes serving for staggered two-year terms.
Class I currently has three (3) members and Class II currently has four (4) members. You may not vote for
more than four nominees at the annual meeting. The four (4) Class II directors to be elected at the 2002
Annual Meeting are to be elected to hold office until the 2004 Annual Meeting and until their successors
have been elected and qualified.

The Board’s nominees as Class II directors are Messrs. Benhamou, DiCamillo, Long and Reddy. If a
nominee declines to serve or becomes unavailable for any reason, the proxies may be voted for such
substitute nominee as the Board may designate. The Board has no knowledge that any nominee will be
unwilling or unable to serve.

Vote Required

Directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the meeting. This means that the four
{(4) nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be elected as Class II directors. Votes withheld for
any nominee will not be counted. Assuming a quorum is present, abstentions and broker non-votes will
have no effect on the election of directors. THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT
YOU VOTE “FOR” MESSRS. BENHAMOU, DICAMILLO, LONG AND REDDY.

Nominees and Other Directors

The following table sets forth the name and age of each nominee and each director whose term of office
will continue after the annual meeting, the principal occupation of each during the past five years and the
period during which each has served as a director of 3Com. Each nominee currently serves as a director.
There are no family relationships among any directors or executive officers.

Nominees for Flection as Class II Directors for a Term Expiring in 2004

Director
Name Principal Occupation During Past Five Years Age Since
Eric A. Bepnhamou ...... Mr. Benhamou has been our Chairman of the Board 46 1990

since July 1994. Mr. Benhamou served as our Chief
Executive Officer from September 1990 to January 2001
and President from April 1990 through August 1998.
Mir. Benhamou is also Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of Palm, Inc. and Chairman of the
Board of Cypress Semiconductor Corporation, and a
director of Legato Systems, Inc. Mr. Benhamou is also a
member of the President’s Information Technology
Advisory Council.




Name

Gary T. DiCamillo

James R. Long . ..

Raj Reddy ... ...

Principal Occupation During Past Five Years

Mr. DiCamillo is President and CEO of TAC Worldwide
Companies, a large privately-held technical staffing
company. Prior to that, Mr. DiCamillo was Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Polaroid Corporation a
position he held from 1995 through 2002, Prior to joining
Polaroid, Mr. DiCamillo served as Group Vice President
of the Black & Decker Corporation and President of its
Worldwide Power Tools and Accessories business from
1993 to 1995. Mr. DiCamillo is a director of the
Whirlpool Corporation, the Pella Corporation and the
Sheridan Group.

Mr. Long retired from his position as Executive Vice
President of Nortel Networks, a global leader in
telephony, data, wireless and wireline solutions for the
Internet, on December 31, 1999, a position he held since
1994. Mr. Long also served as President of Enterprise
Solutions of Nortel Networks from 1997 through 1999,
President of Nortel World Trade, based in London and
Hong Kong, from 1994 through 1997, and Senior Vice
President of Nortel’s Asia Pacific Division from 1992 to
1994. Mr. Long also is a director of NCR Corporation,
Cypress Semiconductor Corporation and Symon
Communications.

Mr. Reddy is the Herbert A. Simon University Professor
of Computer Science and Robotics in the School of
Computer Science at Carnegie Mellon University
(“CMU"), a position he has held since 1969. He served as
dean of the School of Computer Science at CMU from
1991 to 1999. Mr. Reddy is co-chair of the President’s
Information Technology Advisory Committee.

Incumbent Class I Directors serving for a term expiring 2003

Fred D. Anderson

Mr. Anderson currently serves as our Lead Outside
Director. Mr. Anderson has been Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Apple
Computers, Inc., a manufacturer of personal computers,
since March 1996. Prior to that, Mr. Anderson was the
Chief Financial Officer of Automatic Data Processing,
Inc. (“ADP”) from 1992 to 1996. Prior to joining ADP,
Mr. Anderson held several domestic and international
executive positions, including President and Chief
Operating Officer, at MAI Systems Corporation.
Mr. Anderson is also a member of the Financial
Accounting Standards Advisory Council.

Age

51

59

65

58

Director
Since

2000

2000

2001

2001




Name

Bruce L. Claflin

Paul G. Yovovich

Principal Occupation During Past Five Years

Mr. Claflin has been our President and Chief Executive
Officer since January 2001 and was our President and
Chief Operating Officer from August 1998 to January
2001. Prior to joining us, Mr. Claflin worked for Digital
Equipment Corporation (“DEC”) from October 1995 to
June 1998. From July 1997 to June 1998, he was Senior
Vice President and General Manager, Sales and
Marketing at DEC and prior to that he served as Vice
President and General Manager of DEC’s Personal
Computer Business Unit from October 1995 to June
1997. Prior to October 1995, Mr. Claflin held a number of
senior management and executive positions at
International Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”).
Mr. Claflin is also a director of Time Warner
Telecom Inc.

Mr. Yovovich is President of Lake Capital, a private
investment firm. Mr. Yovovich was a director of
U.S. Robatics Corporation from 1991 until it was
acquired by 3Com in June 1997. Mr. Yovovich served as
President of Advance Ross Corporation, an international
financial services company, from 1993 to 1996.
Mr. Yovovich is also a director of APAC Customer
Services, Inc.

Age
50

48

Director
Since

2001

1997




OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES
Role and Compoéition of the Board

Primary Functions of the Board. 'The Board, which is elected by our stockholders, is the ultimate decision-
making body of 3Com except for matters reserved to our stockholders. The Board oversees the conduct of
our business by management and reviews our financial objectives and major corporate plans, strategies and
actions. Our directors are expected to promote the best interests of our stockholders in terms of corporate
governance, fiduciary responsibilities, compliance with laws and regulations, and maintenance of
accounting and financial controls. Our directors also participate in the selection, evaluation and, where
appropriate, replacement of our chief executive officer and provide input to our CEO for the evaluation
and recruitment of our principal senior executives. Our corporate governance principles are set forth in
our “Board Guidelines on Corporate Governance Issues,” which are attached to this proxy statement as
Exhibit A.

Leadership of the Board. Our Board is led by our chairman of the board and by our lead outside director.
With assistance from the Nominating and Governance Committee, our chairman appoints the lead outside
director. Our chairman recommends to the Board candidates for director and board committee
assignments. Qur chairman and corporate secretary provide briefing materials to our directors prior to
board meetings.

Lead Outside Director. Our lead outside director serves as the focal point for outside directors to resolve
conflicts with (or terminate) our CEO, cooperate with our CEO to resolve conflicts with (or terminate)
outside directors, and coordinate feedback to our CEO on behalf of outside directors regarding business
issues and board management. The lead outside director also serves as a special counsel to the CEO. Fred
Anderson currently serves as our lead outside director.

Board Selection Process. We recently established a Nominating and Governance Committee. This
committee will assist the board, our chairman and our CEO in director selection, committee assignments
and rotation practices, evaluation of the overall effectiveness of the Board, and review and consideration
of developments in corporate governance practices. The Nominating and Governance Committee will
make recommendations to the Board regarding director nominees, whether for the slate of nominees
proposed by the Board to stockholders or nominees elected by the Board to fill vacancies. In addition, this
committee will review director candidates submitted by stockholders. The Nominating and Governance
Committee will recommend directors for committee appointments and committee chairs. The Nominating
and Governance Committee will determine the effect of a director’s change in employment status on such
director’s continued tenure on the 3Com Board.

Delegation to Committees. 1t is our general policy that all major decisions should be approved by the
Board as a whole. As a consequence, the committee structure of the Board is limited to those committees
considered to be basic to or required for the operation of a publicly-owned company. Currently these
committees are the Audit and Finance Committee, Compensation Committee, Nominating and
Governance Committee and Technology Committee. Each of these committees has adopted a written
charter (see Exhibits B, C and D), except for the Technology Committee. The Technology Committee was
established to make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding 3Com’s long-term technology
investments, The committee meets with the technology and engineering leaders from each of 3Com’s
operating units and reviews the financial, tactical or strategic benefits of selected projects in light of
3Com’s overall technology strategy. The committee makes reports to the Board of Directors as
appropriate.

Functioning of the Board

Board and Committee Meetings. Board materials are provided to directors in advance of Board meetings
to allow the directors to prepare for discussion at the meeting. The format of each Board meeting may




include an executive session with the directors and chairman. In preparation for Board and committee
meetings, our chairman and lead outside director consult with our CEO regarding the agenda and content
and, with support from our secretary, distribute briefing materials to our directors for matters to be
included in the meeting agenda, as well as minutes from prior meetings and any written reports by
committees. ‘

Board Access to Senior Management. Our directors have complete access to our executive committee. Qur
directors are to use judgment to ensure that contact with the executive committee would not be distracting
to our business operation or management reporting structure. In addition, any written contact with the
executive committee is to be copied to our CEO. Our Board encourages our CEO to bring into board
meetings, managers who can provide additional insight into the matters being discussed or who have future
potential that our CEO believes should be made visible to the Board.

Board and Committee Meetings

During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002, our Board consisted of: Fred D. Anderson, Eric A. Benhamou,
Bruce L. Claflin, Casey G. Cowell, James E. Cowie, Gary T. DiCamillo, David W. Dorman, Jean-Louis
Gassee, Philip C. Kantz, James R. Long, Janice C. Peters, Raj Reddy and Paul G. Yovovich. As a part of a
planned restructuring of the Board, Mr. Cowell resigned from the Board effective as of July 19, 2001, and
Ms. Peters and Messrs. Cowie, Gassee, Kantz, and Zuendt each resigned from the Board effective as of
September 20, 2001. Mr. Dorman resigned from the Board effective as of January 18, 2002. As of May 31,
2002, our Board consisted of Messrs. Anderson, Benhamou, Claflin, DiCamillo, Long, Reddy and
Yovovich.

In fiscal 2002, our Board of Directors held six meetings. We currently have an Audit and Finance
Committee, a Compensation Committee, a Nominating and Governance Committee, and a Technology
Committee. The Audit and Finance, Compensation, and Nominating and Governance committees consist
of only outside Directors.

Our Audit and Finance Committee met eight times in fiscal 2002. The Audit and Finance Committee
makes recommendations to the Board regarding the engagement of our independent public accountants,
approves services rendered by our accountants, reviews the activities and recommendations of our internal
audit department, and reviews and evaluates our accounting systems, financial controls and financial
personnel. At the beginning of fiscal 2002, Messrs. Anderson, Cowie, Dorman and Zuendt constituted the
Audit and Finance Committee. Upon the resignation from the Board of Messrs. Cowie and Zuendt on
September 20, 2001, Mr. Long was appointed to the Audit and Finance Committee. Upon the resignation
of Mr. Dorman from the Board on January 18, 2001, Mr. DiCamillo was appointed to the Audit and
Finance Committee. As of the end of fiscal 2002, the Audit and Finance Committee consisted of
Messrs. Anderson, DiCamillo and Long. Our Audit and Finance Committee operates under a written
charter, which is attached to this proxy statement as Exhibit B. For additional information concerning the
Audit and Finance Committee, see “REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.”

Our Compensation Committee met six times in fiscal 2002. The Compensation Committee reviews salaries
and other compensation arrangements for our officers and other key employees, reviews the
administration of our stock option and stock purchase plans, and advises the Board on general aspects of
our compensation and benefit policies. At the beginning of fiscal 2002, Messrs. Yovovich and Kantz
constituted the Compensation Committee. Upon the resignation of Mr. Kantz from the Board on
September 20, 2001, Mr. DiCamillo was appointed to the Compensation Committee. As of the end of
fiscal 2002, the Compensation Committee consisted of Messrs. DiCamillo and Yovovich. Our
Compensation Committee operates under a written charter, which is attached to this proxy statement as
Exhibit C. For additional information concerning the Compensation Committee, see “REPORT OF THE




COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON EXECUTIVE
COMPENSATION.”

Our Nominating and Governance Committee was established by the Board on July 18, 2002. The mission
of the Nominating and Governance Committee is to focus on the broad range of issues surrounding the
composition and operation of the Board. The Nominating and Governance Committee will assist the
Board, the Chairman of the Board and the CEOQ in director selection, committee selection and rotation
practices, evaluation of the overall effectiveness of the Board, and review and consideration of
developments in corporate governance practices. The members of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee will be designated by subsequent action of the Board. The Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee will consider nominees recommended by any stockholder entitled to
vote in the election of directors. Any stockholder wishing to nominate an individual for election to the
Board must comply with the advance notice procedures described at the end of this proxy statement. The
nomination must contain the following information about the nominee: name; age; business and residence
addresses; principal occupation or employment; the number of shares of common stock held by the
nominee; the information that would be required under SEC rules in a proxy statement soliciting proxies
for the election of such nominee as a director; and a signed consent of the nominee to serve as a director of
3Com, if elected. The Nominating and Governance Committee operates under a written charter, which is
attached to this proxy statement as Exhibit D.

Our Technology Committee held four regular quarterly meetings in fiscal 2002. The Technology
Committee consists of Messrs. Benhamou, Claflin and Reddy.

All directors, except Mr. Dorman and Ms. Peters, attended more than 75% of the total number of
meetings of the Board and committees on which they served during fiscal 2002.




EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND OTHER MATTERS
Executive Compensation

The following table contains information concerning the compensation of our (i) Chief Executive Officer,
and (ii) four other most highly compensated executive officers (based on salary plus bonus for fiscal 2002)
who were serving as executive officers at the end of fiscal 2002: '

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Long-Term
Annual Compensation Compensation Award
) Restricted  Securities
Other Annual Stock Underlying Other

Name and Principal Compensation Awards Options Compensation
Position Fiscal Year  Salary($) Bonus($) ® (£310)) #)(2) BIE)]
Bruce L. Claflin ...... 2002 781,250 210,375 27,000(4) 772,500(5) 840,000 7,812(6)

President and Chief 2001 687,500 403,469 27,065(4) 803,130(7) 2,421,467 5,584

Executive Officer . 2000 650,000 444,795 — — 1,137,482 8,016
M Ifan Ali......... 2002 385,417 34,210 — 231,750(5) 230,000 6,053(8)

President, CommWorks 2001 359,375 124,735 — — 486,376 5,199

Corporation 2000 300,000 134,306 — — 247,061 4,857
Dennis Connors .. .... 2002 397,917 123,000 158,653(9) 247,200(5) 305,000 5,471(10)

President, Business 2001 350,000 © 107,187 170,396(9) . — 249,376 5,261(11)

Connectivity Company 2000 190,909 81,845 303,383(12) — 561,151 2,335(13)
John F. McClelland . . .. 2002 508,653 122,458 164,628(15)  339,900(5) 230,000 64,900

President, Business 2001 478,873 342,569 114,413(16) — 510,512 80,864

Networks Company(14) 2000 457,601 102,407 121,942(17) — 362,902 73,596
Michael E. Rescoe . . . . . 2002 500,000 77,250 — 309,000(5) 230,000 2,090(19)

Senior Vice President, 2001 499,999 177,563 — 197,188(20) 473,324 —_

Finance & Planning, and 2000 43,751 18,750 100,000(21) —_ 724,065 —

Chief Financial

Officer(18)

(1) As of May 31, 2002, there were 747,000 shares of our restricted stock outstanding with an aggregate value of $4,153,320. All such
shares were subject to a right of repurchase by 3Com. We do not presently plan to pay any dividends on shares of our restricted
stock.

(2) The number of shares underlying options granted is shown on a post-Palm Distribution Adjustment (defined below) basis. On
July 27, 2000, we completed the distribution of Palm, Inc. common stock held by us to our stockholders. Each eligible share of
outstanding 3Com common stock received 1.483 shares of Palm common stock. As a result of the Palm Distribution, the number
of shares of our common stock subject to options was adjusted by multiplying the pre-Palm Distribution number by 4.827 and the
exercise price per share was adjusted by dividing the pre-Palm Distribution exercise price by 4.827 (the “Palm Distribution
Adjustment”).

(3) Represents the value of our matching contribution under our 401(k) plan (or the equivalent pension plan for residents of the
United Kingdom). Under the 401(k) plan, we match 50% of each dollar contributed by the employee up to a maximum of 6% of
target income.

(4) Represents term life insurance premiums provided for under Mr. Claflin’s employment agreement. The beneficiary under the
policy is Bruce L. and Karen C. Claflin Family Trust UDT and the policy is for a term of five years.

(5) The restricted stock fully vested as of May 31, 2002, due to the attainment of specified performance-based milestones.
(6) Represents $3,071 in group term life insurance premiums and $4,741 in 401(k) matching payments.

(7) Represents the value of 100,000 shares of restricted stock received by Mr. Claflin on December 22, 2000 based on the closing
price on the date of grant of $8.0312 per share. The restricted stock vests in four equal annual installments, provided that
Mr. Claflin continues to be employed by us.

(8) Represents $779 in group term life insurance premiums and $5,274 in 401(k) matching payments.

(9) Represents money paid by us on Mr. Connors’ behalf for expenses related to transportation and rent, as well as applicable taxes
owed.
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(10) Represents $1,344 in group term life insurance premiums and $4,127 in 401(k) matching payments.

(11) Represents $1,121 in group term life insurance premiums and $4,140 in 401(k) matching payments.

(12) Represents a signing bonus of $250,000 and the payment of relocation expenses in the amount of $53,383.
(13) Represents $585 in group term life insurance premiums and $1,750 in 401(k) matching payments.

(14) Mr. McClelland joined 3Com on April 8, 1999. Mr. McClelland is a resident of the United Kingdom and is paid in British pounds
sterling. For purposes of this table, his compensation was converted to United States Dollars using an average exchange rate of
US$1.47 for each pound sterling.

(15) Consists of (i) $164,628, which represents the forgiveness of 25% of a loan made by 3Com to Mr. McClelland (see below) plus
imputed taxes and a “gross up” amount to pay for such taxes, and (ii) $18,046, which represents the value of our car allowance to
Mr. McClelland that is a customary part of our UK employee compensation packages. Under the terms of a Promissory Note
and a Debt Forgiveness and Bonus Agreement between Mr. McClelland and 3Com made at the time of his employment, we
loaned a principal amount of $285,180 to Mr. McClelland. Under the terms of the Promissory Note and the Debt Forgiveness
and Bonus Agreement, (i) the loan is not interest bearing, (i) 3Com will “gross up” the loan to take into account any imputed
taxes (since the loan is not interest bearing) and (iii) the total debt will be forgiven 25% per year that Mr. McClelland remains
employed with us.

(16) Consists of (i) $96,367, which represents the forgiveness of 25% of a loan made by us to Mr. McClelland plus imputed taxes and
a “gross up” amount to pay for such taxes (see Footnote 15 above), and (ii) $18,046, which represents the value of our car
allowance to Mr. McClelland.

(17) Consists of (i) $103,896, which represents the forgiveness of 25% of a loan made by us to Mr. McClelland plus imputed taxes and
a “gross up” amount to pay for such taxes (see Footnote 15 above), and (ii) $18,046, which represents the value of our car
allowance to Mr. McClelland.

(18) Mr. Rescoe joined 3Com on April 28, 2000.
(19) Represents group term life insurance premiums.

(20) Represents the value of 5,000 shares of restricted stock received by Mr. Rescoe on April 28, 2000 based on the closing price on
the date of grant of $39.44 per share. The restricted stock vests in four equal annual increments, provided that Mr. Rescoe
continues to be employed by us. Each share of restricted stock held by Mr. Rescoe also received 1.483 shares of Palm common
stock in the Palm Distribution, which vest on the same schedule as our restricted stock.

(21) Mr. Rescoe received a signing bonus of $100,000 upon his employment with us.
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The following table provides information concerning grants of options to purchase our common stock
made during fiscal 2002 to the executive officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table:

OPTION GRANTS IN FISCAL 2002

Potential Realizable Value at
Number of % of Total Assumed Annual Rates of
Stock Price Appreciation for
Option Term(4)

Securities Options Exercise
Underlying  Granted to  Price per
Options  Employees in  Share  Expiration

Name Granted(#) Fiscal 2002 ($/SH)(3) Date 5% ($) 10% (3)
Bruce L.Claflin.............. 840,000(1) 34 $5.15  06/11/11 $2,720,598 $6,894,530
M. Ifan Ali ................ 230,000(1) * $5.15  06/11/11 $ 744,926 $1,887,788
Dennis Connors . . ............ 230,000(1) * $5.15  06/11/11 § 744,926 $1,887,788
75,000(2) * $5.77  12/20/11 § 272,154 $ 689,692
John F. McClelland .. ......... 230,000(1) * $5.15  06/11/11 § 744,926 $1,887,788
Michael E. Rescoe . . .......... 230,000(1) * $5.15  06/11/11 $ 744,926 $1,887,788

¢y

@

&)

)

Less than 1%

Options listed above are subject to the terms of our 1983 Stock Option Plan (the “1983 Option Plan”).
These options vest and become exercisable in two equal annual installments on the anniversary of the date
of grant, provided the optionee continues to be an employee of 3Com. The options have a term of 10 years
from the date of grant.

This option is subject to the terms of our 1983 Option Plan. The option vests and becomes exercisable in
four equal annual increments on the anniversary of the date of grant, provided the optionee continues to be
an employee of 3Com. The option has a term of 10 years from the date of grant.

All options were granted at an exercise price equal to the closing price of our common stock on the date of
grant.

Potential realizable values are net of exercise price, but before deduction of taxes associated with exercise.
These amounts represent assumed rates of appreciation only, based on the SEC rules, and do not represent
our estimate of future stock prices. No gain to an optionee is possible without an increase in stock price,
which will benefit all stockholders commensurately. A zero percent gain in stock price will result in zero
dollars for the optionee. Actual realizable values, if any, on stock option exercises are dependent on the
future performance of our common stock, overall market conditions and the option holder’s continued
employment through the vesting period.
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The following table provides information concerning option exercises during fiscal 2002 and the
exercisable and unexercisable options held as of May 31, 2002, by the executive officers listed in the
Summary Compensation Table: ‘

AGGREGATED OPTION EXERCISES IN FISCAL 2002 AND FISCAL YEAR-END OPTION VALUES

Number of Securities Value of Unexercised
Shares Uondgrlying Unexercised . In-The-Money

Acquired on Value ptions at 5/31/02(#) Options at 5/31/02($)(1)
Name Exercise(#) Realized($) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Bruce L. Claflin ............... 0 0 3,505,219 4,154,066 28,537 372,407
M. Irfan Ali.................. 0 0 392,955 750,291 23,840 111,275
Dennis Connors .. ............. 0 0 342,919 772,608 0 94,300
John E McClelland ............ 0 0 711,663 753,784 217374 = 187,040
Michael E. Rescoe .. ........... 0 0 480,364 947,025 0 94,300

(1) Based on $5.5600 per share, the closing sale price of our common stock on May 31, 2002 as reported
by the Nasdaq National Market,

Employment, Severance and Change-of-Control Arrangements

Management Retention Agreements. It is our practice to enter into Management Retention Agreements
(“Retention Agreements”) with our senior executive officers. Under the terms of the Retention
Agreement with each of these executive officers, following a qualifying event involving a disposition or
upon a Change of Control (as described below) and upon the signing of a complete release of all claims,
such executive officer will receive (i} a lump sum payment equal to 100% of such executive officer’s annual
compensation (200% for the Chief Executive Officer) or, for such officers who are executives of the
Company’s independent businesses, 100% of annual base salary plus target bonus based on reaching 100%
of target; (ii) continued coverage of employee benefits until the earlier of two years from the date of
termination or when such executive officer receives comparable benefits from another emplover; (iii) a
bonus payment equal to the pro-rata share of that year’s target bonus; and (iv) the full acceleration of
stock options (and full acceleration of restricted stock grants for the Chief Executive Officer). Our Chief
Executive Officer would be entitled to receive the foregoing benefits upon a Change of Control. Our Chief
Financial Officer would be entitled to receive the foregoing benefits if our Chief Financial Officer
terminates employment within three months following a disposition, if our Chief Financial Officer’s duties
or responsibilities are materially diminished, or if our Financial Officer is terminated involuntarily other
than for cause, death or disability within twelve months of a Change of Control. OQur Senior Vice President
of Human Resources, our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, and our Vice President
of Corporate Branding & Communications would be entitled to receive the foregoing benefits if such
officer is terminated within the twelve months following a Change of Control or if such officer voluntarily
terminates for good reason. Each executive officer who is an executive of an independent business of
3Com is entitled to receive the foregoing benefits, if, within twelve months of a Change of Control, such
officer is involuntarily terminated other than for cause or voluntarily terminates his or her employment for
good reason. “Good Reason” under the Retention Agreements includes material reductions in duties,
title, authority or responsibility (provided that such a reduction occurs solely by virtue of consummation of
or following the Change of Control or disposition}, reduction of base salary, material reduction in
aggregate level of employee benefits, relocation or constructive termination. ~

In all of the Retention Agreements, if the officer’s employment is terminated for any other reason, he or
she will receive severance or other benefits only to the extent he or she would be entitled to receive those
benefits under our then existing severance or benefit plans or pursuant to any other written agreement. For
our Chief Executive Officer, Senior Vice President of Human Resources, Senior Vice President, General
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Counsel and Secretary and Vice President of Corporate Branding & Communications, if the benefits
provided under the Retention Agreements constitute parachute payments under Section 280G of the
Internal Revenue Code and are subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue
Code, then such officers shall receive (i) a payment sufficient to pay such excise tax and (ii) an additional
payment sufficient to pay the taxes arising as a result of such payment.

As defined in the Retention Agreements for executives not associated with one of our independent
businesses, a “Change of Control” means: (i) the acquisition by any person of 50% or more of the total
voting power of our then outstanding securities; (ii) the consummation of the sale or disposition of all or
substantially all of company assets; (iii) the consummation of a merger or consolidation of us where the
outstanding securities immediately prior thereto no longer represent at least 50% of the voting power
immediately after such merger or consolidation; (iv) a change in the composition of the Board during any
two consecutive years, such that a majority consists of persons who are not either directors who were in
office when the agreement was entered into or whose nominations were approved by a majority of the
directors who were in office not in connection with a transaction described in (i) through (iii) above. For
the Chief Executive Officer, “Change of Control” also occurs three months after a disposition of two of the
three independent businesses. For executives primarily associated with one of our independent businesses,
“Change of Control” means the sale or disposition, other than a spin-off or similar transaction, to third
parties of all or substantially all of that executive’s business unit.

Acceleration under Option Plans. Options granted under the 1994 Option Plan contain provisions
pursuant to which outstanding options must either become fully vested and immediately exercisable prior
to a “transfer of control” transaction or must be assumed in the transaction, and all unexercised options
terminate to the extent they are not assumed upon such “transfer of control” as defined under the 1994
Option Plan. For purposes of the 1994 Option Plan, a transfer of control is a change in ownership in which
our stockholders immediately prior to the ownership change do not retain, directly or indirectly, at least a
majority of the beneficial interest in our voting stock after the ownership change.

Options granted under the 1983 Option Plan and the 1994 Option Plan have their vesting accelerated as to
50% of the unvested shares subject thereto if an executive or employee optionee is terminated without
cause within 12 months after a “transfer of control” transaction.

Options granted under the 3Com Corporation Director Stock Option Plan (the “Director Plan™) contain
provisions pursuant to which all outstanding options granted under the Director Plan will become fully
vested and immediately exercisable upon a merger or acquisition of us where we are not the survivor, or
upon the sale of substantially all of our assets.

Severance Plan for Section 16(b) Officers. In April 2001, the Board approved a severance plan covering
our Section 16(b) officers. The severance plan provides for:

* Severance amount equal to one year’s base salary and target bonus;
* Accelerated vesting of all outstanding options by one year;
* COBRA benefits for a period of one year; and

* Extension of exercise period for all vested and unexercised options to a one-year period following
termination.

Employment Agreement with Bruce Claflin. We entered into an at-will employment agreement with
Mr. Claflin on January 1, 2001 concurrent with Mr. Claflin’s promotion to Chief Executive Officer. This
employment agreement provided for:

* An initial base salary of $750,000 per annum, plus a target bonus of 100% of base salary based on
performance criteria set by our Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee has
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discretion to vary the base salary and target bonus based on performance, competitive data and
achievement levels;

* An option, vesting as to 25% of the shares subject to the option on the anniversary of the date of
grant each year over a period of four years, to purchase one million shares of our common stock at
the fair market value on the date of the employment agreement and with full acceleration of vesting
in the event of a change of control;

* 100,000 shares of restricted stock, vesting as to 25% of the shares subject to the right of our
repurchase on the anniversary of the date of grant each year over a period of four years and with
full acceleration of vesting in the event of a change in control;

* $20,000,000 term life insurance policy benefiting Mr. Claflin’s family with premiums paid by us; and

* Severance benefits of two years’ base salary and target bonus, 50% vesting of any unvested stock
options and restricted stock and 18 months of continued benefits if Mr. Claflin is terminated
without cause or if Mr. Claflin voluntarily terminates his employment for good reason as defined in
the employment agreement. :

Compensation of Directors

Directors who are not 3Com employees received an annual retainer during fiscal 2002 as follows: lead
director of the Board $35,000; committee members $30,000 each; other directors $25,000 each; plus
reimbursement of travel expenses for members of the Board who reside outside of the local area.

Outside directors receive options to purchase common stock pursuant to the Director Plan. The Director
Plan provides for the initial grant of an option to purchase shares of our common stock to each of our
directors who is not a 3Com employee (“Outside Director”), with a maximum of 120,000 shares to be
subject to each such option (or 160,000 shares for the “lead” director). For continuing directors, an annual
renewal grant is made effective with each regularly scheduled company annual stockholder meeting,
subject to the same share limits described for initial grants. In addition, each Outside Director is granted
an option to purchase shares of our common stock upon becoming a member of a Board committee, with a
maximum of 48,000 shares to be subject to each such option. The actual number of shares to be subject to
the options granted for Board of Directors and committee service is established by the administrator of the
Director Plan. All options granted have a ten-year term, and the initial grant vests 25% on each
anniversary date of the grant and the annual renewal grant vests over two years with the first 50% vesting
one year after grant and the remaining 50% vesting two years after grant (subject to 3Com’s right to
repurchase any unvested shares) as long as the option holder continues to serve on the Board or a
committee. During fiscal 2002, options were granted under the Director Plan for the following number of
shares and at the per share exercise prices shown: Mr. Anderson-39,750 shares at $3.79 per share;
Mr. DiCamillo-39,750 shares at $3.79 per share; Mr. Dorman-54,500 shares at $3.79 per share;
Mr. Long-39,750 shares at $3.79 per share; Mr. Reddy~39,750 shares at $3.79 per share, 79,500 shares at
$10.13 per share and 26,500 at $18.00 per share; and Mr. Yovovich-39,750 shares at $3.79 per share. The
foregoing number of shares subject to options and per share exercise price are shown on a post-Palm
Distribution Adjustment basis.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act requires our directors, executive officers and persons who
beneficially own more than 10% of our common stock to file reports with the SEC. These persons are
required by the SEC to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports that they file.
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Based on our review of reports furnished to us and written representations from our directors and
executive officers, we believe that all filing requirements were complied with in a timely manner during
fiscal 2002 except as follows:

John McClelland filed one late Form 4 related to one transaction and Michael Rescoe filed one late
Form 4 for a transaction during fiscal 2002 that was eligible for deferred reporting in fiscal 2001.

Compensation Committee Interlocks And Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee during fiscal 2002 consisted of Messrts. Yovovich and Kantz, and upon the
resignation of Mr. Kantz, Mr. DiCamillo, none of whom is or has been an officer or employee of 3Com.
No interlocking relationship existed during fiscal 2002 between our Board or Compensation Committee
and the board of directors or compensation committee of any other company.

Related-Party Transactions -

In February 2001 and May 2001, 3Com purchased shares of preferred stock of Intransa, Inc. for $95,000
and $1,900,000, respectively. Mr. Benhamou, our Chairman of the Board, invested $100,000 in Intransa in
May 2000. 3Com previously licensed certain technology to Intransa in exchange for a minority interest.
Mr. Benhamou is a director of Intransa and has also received options to purchase shares of Intransa as
compensation for his service as a director.

In February 2000, January 2001 and December 2001, 3Com purchased shares of preferred stock of
Atrica, Inc. for $100,000, $4,780,000 and $4,000,000, respectively. Mr. Benhamou, our Chairman of the
Board, invested $250,000 in January 2001 and $750,000 in December 2001 in Atrica. 3Com previously
licensed certain technology to Atrica in exchange for a minority interest. Mr. Benhamou is a director of
Atrica.

Except as described above or otherwise described under “Executive Compensation,” there have not been
any transactions, and there are currently no proposed transactions, in which the amount involved would
exceed $60,000 to which we or any of our subsidiaries were or are to be a party and in which any executive
officer, director or 5% beneficial owner of our common stock, or members of the immediate family of
them, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest, and there are no business relationships
between us and any entity of which a director of 3Com is an executive officer or of which a director of
3Com owns equity interest in excess of 10%, involving payment for property or services in excess of 5% of
our consolidated gross revenues for fiscal 2002.
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3COM CORPORATION

REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Directors determines compensation for
the chief executive officer, reviews and makes recommendations regarding pay programs for Section 16(b)
executive officers and supervises the administration of the Company’s equity plans for executives and all
employees. The Committee is composed of two outside directors, neither of whom is an employee or
former employee of the Company.

Executive Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

3Com’s executive compensation philosophy seeks to provide a meaningful total compensation opportunity
to each executive with a large portion of the package variable and aligned with shareholder value creation.
Consequently, it is intended that 3Com executives may realize significant incentive value when 3Com
shareholders receive significant gains. 3Com’s executive compensation programs are designed to:

* attract, retain and motivate highly qualified executives;
* align executive compensation with shareholder value creation; and
e ensure that rewards are commensurate with performance.

The Committee annually reviews the Company’s executive compensation programs and policies in light of
the above philosophy, as well as changes and trends in the external marketplace. The Committee retains
the services of a leading compensation consulting firm to advise on pay levels and mix, incentive plan
design, and performance measurement. To assess market pay levels and mix, the Committee relies upon
published survey and publicly-disclosed compensation data for executives with comparable responsibilities
at other high-technology companies of comparable size and business focus. In addition, the Committee
reviews 3Com’s incentive plan designs and performance linkage to ensure that programs continue to
support the Company’s strategic and operational goals.

Components of Compensation

Executive compensation at 3Com consists primarily of base salary, a cash incentive opportunity, and
equity-based incentives consisting primarily of stock options as well as restricted stock.

Base Salary

3Com targets executives’ base salaries at the median-to-60™ percentile of the competitive market. In
determining each executive officer’s base salary, the Committee considers competitive market data for
similar positions at high-technology companies, individual responsibilities and performance, and internal
equity within 3Com. In fiscal 2002, executive salary reviews were deferred from June to December and for
fiscal 2003 the salary review will occur in December.

Executive Bonus

3Com’s Executive Bonus Plan rewards executives for the attainment of key Company goals. The CEO’s
target bonus opportunity is 100% of annual base salary, while the target bonus opportunities for other
executive officers range from 50% to 60% of annual base salary. If bonuses are awarded in fiscal 2003, the
cash payment will be made in January and July.

For fiscal 2002, bonus payments for all executive officers were contingent upon achievement of operating
unit contribution margin, corporate operating income and pro forma net income goals. Potential payments
for fiscal 2002 ranged from zero to 200% of target, based on performance. 3Com operated in a loss
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position throughout fiscal 2002; however, financial performance improved dramatically over the course of
the fiscal year. As a result, for the first half of fiscal year 2002, executive bonuses were less than 4% of
target. With improving performance and attainment of a pro forma net income objective by the end of the
fourth quarter, the second half bonuses averaged 53% of target, bringing the average percent of bonus
target paid to 28% for all of fiscal 2002.

For fiscal 2003, bonus payments will be based principally on operating profit measures as well as revenue
targets at the corporate and operating unit levels.

Equity Incentives

Executive officers’ pay mix emphasizes equity incentives. Consequently, equity compensation for 3Com’s
executives is normally targeted at the 65 percentile of the competitive market. Executive equity grants are
determined by reviewing a composite set of data including Black-Scholes estimates of disclosed grants
made by comparable companies, third-party survey data, internal relationships, and potential incremental
dilution. The Committee believes that equity compensation should be emphasized because it is most
directly linked to shareholders’ interests. The Company’s equity incentives have been primarily in the form
of stock options, with restricted stock used on a more limited basis. Stock options are issued at an exercise
price of fair market value on the date of grant. Because of special retention issues associated with a year
focused on restructuring and business recovery, options granted in fiscal 2002 vest ratably over a two-year
period, which is an exception from the normal four-year vesting of options granted under the Company’s
plan. The options we issue become valuable and exercisable only if the executive officer continues to work
at 3Com and the stock price subsequently increases.

For fiscal 2003, the Company granted stock options and performance-accelerated restricted stock to
executives. While the aggregate number of shares granted to executives increased, the total grant value of
executive long-term incentives, measured on a Black-Scholes basis, is below the Company’s targeted
. positioning. Stock option grants made in fiscal year 2003 will vest ratably over four years and the restricted
stock grants will vest in their entirety after four years with the potential for accelerated vesting upon the
achievement of certain financial goals during fiscal 2003.

3Com encourages all employees, including executives, to participate in stock ownership through the
tax-qualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). The plan, within I.R.S. limits, gives employees the
opportunity to purchase 3Com stock with up to 10% of their base salary and bonuses which in turn permits
employees and executives to increase their ownership in the Company and profit as the value of 3Com
stock increases.

CEQ Compensation

The Chief Executive Officer’s salary, bonus and equity grants follow the policies set forth above. In
determining Mr. Claflin’s compensation package, the Committee considered compensation practices at
companies similar in size and complexity to 3Com. The annual base salary for Mr. Claflin was increased
from $750,000 to $825,000 effective January 1, 2002. This 10% increase was based upon market data and
Mr. Claflin’s strong progress in leading the restructuring of the Company. Mr. Claflin’s salary remains
below the 60" percentile target established by the Compensation Committee through marketplace data.
Mr. Claflin’s bonus opportunity ranges from zero to 200% with his target bonus set at 100% of salary. For
fiscal 2002, Mr. Claflin earned and received a cash bonus of $210,375, or 25.5% of his target bonus. In
terms of equity for fiscal 2002, Mr. Claflin was awarded stock option and restricted stock grants of 840,000
and 150,000 shares, respectively. Both the fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2003 equity grants fall below the median
equity level of CEOs in 3Com’s peer group.
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Compliance with Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code, enacted in 1993, generally disallows a tax deduction to a
public corporation for compensation of more than $1 million paid to the corporation’s CEO and four other
most highly compensated officers. Qualifying performance-based compensation will not be subject to the
cap if certain requirements are met. The Committee has reviewed 3Com’s Executive Bonus Program and
has weighed the benefits of compliance against the burdens. While the Committee’s intent is to maximize
the deductibility of executive compensation to the extent reasonable, the Committee has chosen not to
qualify the Executive Bonus Plan or the Restricted Stock Plan at this time in order to maintain flexibility.
The Committee believes that any loss of deductibility will not be material to the Company’s results and
that the burdens of compliance outweigh the benefits. 3Com’s stock option plans, however, are designed to
comply with Section 162(m), so stock option grants under the plans are generally tax deductible upon
exercise. ’

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Paul G. Yovovich and Gary T. DiCamillo
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Audit and Finance Committee oversees our financial reporting process on behalf of the Board.
Management has the primary responsibility for our financial statements and the overall reporting process,
including our system of financial controls. In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities during fiscal 2002, the
Audit and Finance Committee periodically:

» reviewed the unaudited and audited financial statements with management and our independent
auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP;

* discussed the accounting principles, significant assumptions, estimates and matters of judgment
used in preparing the financial statements with management and Deloitte & Touche;

* reviewed the Company’s financial controls and financial reporting process; and

» reviewed significant financial reporting issues and practices, including changes in accounting
principles and disclosure practices.

The Audit and Finance Committee also reviewed with Deloitte & Touche, who are responsible for
expressing an opinion on the conformity of the audited financial statements with generally accepted
accounting principles, Deloitte & Touche’s judgment as to the quality, and not just the acceptability, of our
accounting principles as applied in our financial reporting and such other matters as are required to be
discussed with the Audit and Finance Committee under generally accepted accounting principles. The
Audit and Finance Committee periodically met with Deloitte & Touche, with and without management
present, to discuss the results of their examinations, their evaluations of our internal controls and the
overall quality of the our financial reporting.

In addition, the Audit and Finance Committee discussed with Deloitte & Touche the independence of
Deloitte & Touche from us and our management. The Audit and Finance Committee received from
Deloitte & Touche the written disclosures required by the Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1
and discussed with Deloitte & Touche any matters required to be discussed by the Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 61 (Communications with Audit Committees). The Audit and Finance Committee also
considered the compatibility of Deloitte & Touche’s non-audit services (principally tax advisory services)
with the standards for auditors’ independence. The Audit and Finance Committee discussed with
Deloitte & Touche the overall scope and plans for their audit.

Each of the directors who serves on the Audit and Finance Committee is “independent” for purposes of
the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market and meets the financial literacy and expertise tests recommended by
the Blue Ribbon Committee on Improving the Effectiveness of Corporate Audit Committees. The Audit
and Finance Committee updated and revised its charter in fiscal 2002. The current Audit and Finance
Committee Charter is attached as Exhibit B. During fiscal 2002, the Audit and Finance Committee met
eight times.

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above and representations by management that the
financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the Audit
and Finance Committee recommended to the Board that the audited financial statements be included in
the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. The Audit and Finance
Committee also recommended to the Board, subject to stockholder approval, the selection of Deloitte &
Touche LLP as our independent accountants for the fiscal year ending May 30, 2003.

AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Fred D. Anderson
Gary T. DiCamillo
James R. Long
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COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RETURN

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the cumulative total return of our common stock with the
cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index, the Standard & Poor’s Networking
Equipment Index and our Peer Group (1) for the period commencing on May 31, 1997 and ending on
May 31, 2002 (fiscal year end)(2).
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May 31,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
3C0M .t e 100 5232 5631 8621 2047 2047
S&P S00 ... e e 100  130.68 158.16 174.73 156.29 134.65
S&P Networking Equipment . .. ................... 100 12391 249.90 515.52 181.65 146.72
Peer Group . . ... oo 100 133.89 221.89 428.81 143.62 114.55

(1) Our peer group consists of Agere Systems, Inc., Avaya, Inc.,, Cisco Systems, Inc., Enterasys
Networks, Inc., Extreme Networks, Inc.,, Foundry Networks, Inc., Intel Corporation, Lucent
Technologies, Inc., Nortel Networks Corporation, and Sonus Networks, Inc.

(2) Assumes that $100.00 was invested on May 31, 1997 in our common stock and each index, and that all
dividends were reinvested. No cash dividends have been declared on our common stock. On July 27,
2000, the Palm Distribution was made. The distribution of the Palm shares to our shareholders is
treated as a special dividend for purposes of calculating shareholder return. It is assumed that the
shares of Palm received in the Palm Distribution were sold at the when-issued closing market price on
July 27, 2000 and all of the proceeds were reinvested in shares of our common stock at the
when-issued closing market price on the same date. Stockholder returns over the indicated period
should not be considered indicative of future stockholder returns.
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RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Board has selected Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent public accountants for the fiscal year
ending May 30, 2003. Deloitte & Touche LLP has acted in this capacity since its appointment in 1980. A
representative of Deloitte & Touche LLP will be present at the Annual Meeting, will be given the
opportunity to make a statement if he or she so desires, and will be available to respond to appropriate
questions.

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed to us by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
and their respective affiliates (collectively, “Deloitte & Touche™) for professional services rendered for the
audit of our annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002 and for the reviews of the
financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for that fiscal year were $1,400,000.

Financial Information Systems Design And Implementation Fees

Deloitte & Touche did not perform any information technology services relating to financial information
systems design and implementation for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002.

All Other Fees

The other fees billed by Deloitte & Touche for services rendered to us for the fiscal year ended May 31,
2002 were $978,000 including audit-related services of approximately $869,000 and non-audit services of
$109,000. Audit-related services include foreign statutory audits and stand-alone audit related work. The
Audit and Finance Committee considered and determined that the provision of the services other than the
services described under “Audit Fees” is compatible with maintaining the independence of Deloitte &
Touche LLP as our independent public accountants,

Vote Required

The affirmative vote of a majority of the Votes Cast is necessary to approve this proposal. Assuming a
quorum is present, abstentions will have the effect of a vote “against” this proposal, and broker non-votes
will have no effect on the outcome of the vote. If our stockholders do not ratify the appointment of
Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent public accountants, the Board will reconsider such
appointment. THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE ¢“FOR”
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP AS OUR INDEPENDENT
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING MAY 30, 2003.
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS TO BE PRESENTED AT NEXT ANNUAL MEETING

Stockholder proposals that are intended for inclusion in our proxy statement relating to the 2003 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders must be received at our offices at 5400 Bayfront Plaza, Santa Clara, California
95052-8145, no later than April 15, 2003 and must satisfy the conditions established by the SEC for
stockholder proposals to be included in our proxy statement for that meeting.

If a stockholder wishes to present a proposal at our 2003 annual meeting and the proposal is not intended
to be included in our proxy statement relating to that meeting, the stockholder must give advance notice to
us prior to June 26, 2003, which is the deadline determined in accordance with our bylaws. If a stockholder
gives notice of such a proposal after the bylaw deadline, the stockholder will not be permitted to present
the proposal at the meeting.

23




TRANSACTION OF OTHER BUSINESS

At the date of this Proxy Statement, the only business that the Board intends to present or knows that
others will present at the meeting is as set forth above. If any other matter or matters are properly brought
before the meeting, or any adjournment thereof, it is the intention of the persons named in the
accompanying form of proxy to vote the proxy on such matters in accordance with their best judgment.

Any stockholder may present a matter from the floor for consideration at a meeting so long as certain
procedures are followed. Under our bylaws, for a matter to be deemed properly presented by a
stockholder, timely notice must be delivered to us not later than 90 days prior to the next annual meeting
(under the assumption that the next annual meeting will occur on the same calendar day as the day of the
most recent annual meeting). As to each proposed matter, the notice must include the following: (a) a
brief description of the business desired to be brought before the meeting and reasons for conducting such
business at the meeting; (b) the name and address, as they appear on our books, of the stockholder
proposing such business; (c) the class and number of shares of our stock that are beneficially owned by the
stockholder; and (d) any material interest of the stockholder in such business. The presiding officer of the
meeting may refuse to acknowledge any matter not made in compliance with the foregoing procedure.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
~
Mark D. Michael

Secretary
August 13, 2002
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Exhibit A
3Com Board Guidelines on Corporate Governance Issues

1. Primary Functions of the Board of Directors. 'The business and affairs of the corporation shall be under
the direction of the board. This includes overseeing the conduct of the corporation’s business by
management and review of the corporation’s financial objectives and major corporate plans, strategies and
actions. 3Com directors are expected to promote the best interests of shareholders in terms of corporate
governance, fiduciary responsibilities, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and maintenance
of accounting, financial or other controls. Directors will participate in the selection, evaluation and, where
appropriate, replacement of the Chief Executive Officer and will provide input to the CEO for the
evaluation, as well as the recruitment, of the principal senior executives of the corporation.

2. Authorization Guidelines. Consistent with the board’s power to delegate management of the
day-to-day operation of the corporation’s business, the board shall exercise business judgment in
establishing and revising guidelines for authorization of expenditures or other corporate actions, and these
will periodically be reviewed with management.

3. Board Access to Senior Management. Directors have complete access to 3Com’s executive committee.
As a courtesy, directors will use judgment to ensure that such contact would not be distracting to the
business operation, or management reporting structure of the corporation and any such contact in writing
shall be copied to the CEO. The board encourages the CEO, from time to time, to bring managers into
board meetings who can provide additional insight into the items being discussed or who have future
potential that the CEO believes should be made visible to the board.

4. Leadership of the Board. The leadership of the board shall include a chairman of the board and a lead
outside director. The Chairman shall appoint a lead outside director. The Chairman shall exercise
initiative in recommending to the board candidates for directorships and board committee assignments.
The Chairman and Secretary shall disseminate to directors on a timely basis briefing materials to be
included in the meeting agenda, as well as minutes from prior meetings and any written reports by
committees. The Nominating and Governing Committee, pursuant to its committee charter, shall evaluate
board effectiveness and recommend best practices with respect to board governance.

The board endorses the role of a lead outside director, to be appointed by the Chairman. The lead outside
director shall serve as the focal point for outside directors regarding resolving conflicts with or terminating
the CEO, cooperating with the CEO in resolving conflicts with or terminating outside directors, and
coordinating feedback to the CEO on behalf of outside directors regarding business issues and board
management. The lead outside director will also serve as a special counsel to the CEO.

5. Charters of Standing Committees. 'The current committee structure of the corporation includes the
following committees: Audit and Finance, Compensation, a Nominating and Governance committee, and
Technology. The charters of each standing committee will be reviewed periodically with a view to
delegating committees with the authority of the board concerning specified matters appropriate to such
committee. Such authority will be set forth in board resolutions or bylaws pertaining to the charters of
board committees.

6. Board Selection Process. 1t is expected that all directors will be alert to potential board candidates
with appropriate skills and characteristics and communicate information regarding board selection matters
to the Nominating and Governance Committee. The Nominating and Governance Committee shall
exercise initiative in recommending to the board candidates for directorships and board committee
assignments. The board endorses the value of seeking qualified directors from diverse backgrounds
otherwise relevant to the corporation’s mission, strategy and business operations and perceived needs of
the board at a given time.




7. Director’s Term of Office. Directors are elected to hold office for term of two years. As an alternative
to term limits, the Chairman and lead director will review each director’s continuation on the board at the
conclusion of each two-year term. This will also allow each director the opportunity to conveniently
confirm his or her desire to continue as a member of the board.

8. Board and Committee Meetings. In preparation for meetings of the board and its committees, the
Chairman will consult with the CEO regarding the agenda and content and with support from the
Secretary shall disseminate to directors on a timely basis briefing materials regarding matters to be
included in the meeting agenda, as well as minutes from prior meetings and any written reports by
committees. On those occasions in which the subject matter is too sensitive to put on paper, the
presentation will be discussed at the meeting. Presentations to the board may rely on directors having
reviewed and digested information set forth in the briefing materials, thus allowing more time for
discussion, clarification, and feedback.

Consistent with authorization guidelines and committee charters, day-to-day operational matters, routine
administrative items and matters specified in standing committee charters shall be acted upon either by
management or a board committee, as reflected in normal management or committee reports to the board.
The format of each board meeting may include executive session with the directors and Chairman.
Adequate time will be scheduled for completion of matters placed on the agenda of each meeting,
including an annual off-site meeting of the board to review long-term strategy.

July 18, 2002




Exhibit B
Audit and Finance Committee Charter

I. Purpose and Authority. The Audit Committee is established to assist the Board of Directors of 3Com
Corporation in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting
process, system of internal controls over financial reporting, audit process, and process for monitoring
compliance with laws and regulations and 3Com’s Code of Conduct. The Committee provides an open
avenue of communication between financial management, internal auditors, external auditors and the

Board.
II. Composition. The Committee will consist of at least three members of the Board. The Board will
appoint Committee members. Committee members shall meet the independence and experience

requirements as required by the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules. Each member shall be financially literate
and at least one member will have accounting or related financial management expertise.

III. Meetings. The Committee will meet at least four times a year, with authority to convene additional
meetings as circumstances require. The Committee will invite members of management, auditors or others
to attend meetings and provide pertinent information. It will hold private meetings with the internal and
external auditors, and executive sessions.

IV. Responsibilities. The Committee is authorized to carry out responsibilities in the following areas:

A. Financial

(1) Review the annual audited financial statements with management, including major issues
regarding accounting and auditing principles and practices, and the adequacy of internal controls that
could significantly affect the Company’s financial statements.

(2) Review critical accounting policies and any major accounting policy changes.

(3) Review with management and the external auditors the Company’s quarterly press release
regarding results of operations and financial statements before filing of its report on Form 10-Q and
Form 10-K, including the results of the external auditors’ reviews of the quarterly financial statements.

(4) Review with management and the auditors the effect of regulatory and accounting initiatives, as
well as review and approve any off-balance sheet structures on the Company’s financial statements.

(5) Review any unusual methods of acquiring or holding interests in other entities.

(6) Review with management and the external auditors significant financial reporting issues and
judgments made in connection with the Company’s financial statements, including the effect of
alternative GAAP methods on the Company’s financial statements and a description of any
transactions as to which management obtained Statements on Auditing Standards No. 50 letters.

(7) Review periodically the capital structure of the Company and to the extent deemed necessary,
recommend to the Board transactions or alterations of the capital structure of the Company.

(8) Review and recommend to the Board changes in the Company’s treasury resolutions and
expenditure authorizations.

(9) Periodically meet with management on matters pertaining to the Company’s investment practices
for foreign exchange, investments, and derivatives.

B. Internal Controls

(1) Consider and review with management, the external auditor and the director of internal audit the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over annual and interim financial reporting, including
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information technology security and control. These controls shall provide reasonable assurance of the
integrity of the financial information and assurance that the Company’s reported financial results are
presented fairly in conformity with GAAP.

(2) Understand the scope of internal and external auditors’ review of internal controls over financial
reporting and obtain reports on significant findings and recommendations, together with
management’s TeSpPONSES.

C. Internal Audit

(1) Review with management and the internal audit director the charter, plans, annual budget,
activities, staffing and organizational structure of the internal audit function. Ensure there are no
unjustified restrictions or limitations, which impact or impair the scope of the internal audit
department’s activities or their access to required information.

(2) Review and concur in the appointment, replacement or dismissal of the internal audit director.

(3) Review significant internal audit findings reported during the quarter and their respective impact
on internal controls, the control environment and the overall effectiveness and efficiency of the
Company’s operations.

D. External Audit

(1) Review the external auditors’ proposed audit scope and approach, including coordination of
external audit effort with internal audit.

(2) Exercise final approval on the appointment or discharge of the external auditor. Review the
experience and qualifications of the primary partners on the external audit team and the quality
control procedures of the firm.

(3) Review the external auditors’ Management Letter and recommendations and management’s
response.

(4) Review and approve the annual budget for all audit and non-audit services from the external
auditor, based on budget categories consistent with those used by the S.E.C. Approve in advance any
other fees for non-audit services provided by the external auditor, which exceeds the greater of ten
percent (10%) of audit fees or $100,000 in the aggregate for the fiscal year. The following non-audit
services are not to be provided by the external auditor: bookkeeping or other services related to the
Company’s accounting records or financial statements; financial information systems design and
implementation; appraisal services; valuation services or fairness opinions; actuarial services; internal
audit services relating to financial controls, financial systems or financial statements; management
functions; employee recruitment; broker dealer services; or legal services.

(5) Review and confirm the independence of the external auditors, including by obtaining statements
from the external auditor regarding its independence. Discuss relationships between the external
auditors and the Company with the auditors and consider whether the provision of non-audit services
is compatible with maintaining the external auditor’s independence.

(6) Review and concur with the Company’s hiring as an employee or engagement as a contractor of
any employees of the external auditor who were engaged on the 3Com account in the most recent two
years.

E. Compliance

(1) Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and
the results of management’s investigation and follow-up (including disciplinary action) of any
instances of noncompliance.
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(2) Review with management and the external auditors any correspondence with regulators or
governmental agencies and any employee complaints or published reports, which raise material issues
regarding the Company’s financial statements or accounting policies.

(3) Review the process for communicating the Code of Conduct to Company personnel, for
reporting incidents and for monitoring compliance annually.

(4) Obtain regular updates from management and the Company’s legal counsel regarding legal
matters which may have a material impact on the financial statements, including any related-party
transactions, and any material reports or inquiries received from regulators or governmental agencies.

(5) Conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within the Committee’s charter. It is
empowered ta: (i) retain outside counsel, accountants, or others to advise or assist the Committee in
the conduct of an investigation; (ii) seek any information it requires from external parties or
employees, all of whom are directed to cooperate with the Committee’s requests; (iii) meet with
management, external auditors, or outside counsel, as necessary, and (iv) meet with the Company’s
financial advisors.

V. Reporting. The Committee’s reporting responsibilities will include reports to the Board about
Committee activities, issues and related recommendations, and preparation of the report to be included in
the Company’s annual proxy statement describing the Committee and its activities, as required by the rules
of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

V1. Committee Charter. The Committee shall also perform otheractivities related to this Committee
charter as requested by the Board, including: (i) a review and assessment of the adequacy of the charter
annually and request for Board approval of any proposed changes; (ii) annual confirmation that the
responsibilities outlined in this charter have been carried out; and (iii) ensure that this charter is published
at least every three years in the Company’s annual proxy statement.
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Exhibit C
3Com Corporation Compensation Committee Charter
A. The Compensation Committee shall have all the authority of the board to act or exercise corporate

powers with respect to the following:

1. Supervise the administration of the company’s employee stock option plans, employee stock
purchase plan, restricted stock plan, and provide disinterested administration of any employee benefit
plans in which Section 16 officers are eligible to participate.

2.  Review the administration of the company’s 3Share profit sharing plan, including determination
of whether performance goals have been met.

3. Report to the shareholders regarding the company’s executive compensation practices and
policies.

4. Retain a compensation consultant, from time to time, to advise the Compensation Committee on
executive compensation practices and policies, or any other matters within the charter of the
Compensation Committee.

B. The Compensation Committee shall also:

1. Review and recommend to the board actions affecting salaries, bonuses, stock options, benefits
and other compensation arrangements for the company’s executive officers.

2.  Make recommendations to the board on 3Com’s executive compensation practices and policies.

3. Make recommendations to the board regarding the evaluation of performance by the company’s
executive officers and issues of management succession.

4., Make recommendations to the board regarding reservation of shares for issuance under
employee benefit plans.

March 15, 1995




Exhibit D
Nominating and Governance Committee Charter

I. Mission. The primary focus of the Nominating and Governance Committee (the “Committee™) is on
the broad range of issues surrounding the composition and operation of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”). The Committee provides assistance to the Board, the Chairman and the CEQ in the areas of
membership selection, committee selection and rotation practices, evaluation of the overall effectiveness of
the Board, and review and consideration of developments in corporate governance practices. The
Committee’s goal is to assure that the composition, practices and operation of the Board contribute to
value creation and effective representation of 3Com stockholders.

II. Membership. The Committee should be composed of at least two independent directors.

III. Responsibilities. The responsibilities of the Committee in the areas of Nominating and Corporate
Governance shall be to:

A. Nominating

(1) Develop a Board, which is diverse in nature and provides management with experienced and
secasoned advisors in fields related to current or future business directions of the Company;

(2) Make recommendation to the Board regarding all nominees for board membership, whether
for the slate of director’s nominees to be proposed by the Board to the shareholders or any
director nominees to be elected by the Board to fill interim director vacancies;

(3) Review director candidates submitted by stockholders;

(4) Appoint directors to committees and suggest rotations for chairpersons of committees of the
Board as it deems desirable from time to time; and

(5) Determine, acting through the Chairman and the CEQ, the effect of other directors’ change
in employment status and request the Board to consider and accept resignation if necessary.

B. Corporate Governance

(1) Regularly review issues and developments related to corporate governance issues and
formulate and recommend governance standards to the Board,;

(2) Make recommendations to the Board regarding committee structure and delegated
responsibilities to be included in the charter of each board committee;

(3) Evaluate and recommend any revisions to board and committee meeting policies and
logistics;

(4) Consider and recommend changes in the size of the Board; and

(5) On a bi-annual basis, solicit input from the Board and conduct a review of the effectiveness
of the operation of the Board and its committees, including reviewing governance and operating
practices and the 3Com Board Guidelines on Corporate Governance Issues. '

IV. Meetings. The Committee will meet a minimum of twice per year and more frequently as
circumstances require.
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This report on Form 10-K, including the following sections, contains forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, that involve risks and uncertainties, as
well as assumptions that, if they never materialize or prove incorrect, could cause our results to differ
materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. All statements other than
statements of historical fact are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements, including
any projections of earnings, revenues or other financial items; any statements of plans, strategies and
objectives of management for future operations; any statements concerning proposed new products,
services or developments; any statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; any
statements of belief, expectation or anticipation; and any statement of assumptions underlying any of the
foregoing. The risks, uncertainties and assumptions referred to above include particularly statements
regarding the following:

* our beliefs regarding future trends in the industries in which we compete;
* our beliefs regarding our strengths as compared to our competitors;

* our plans to sell excess real estate in several locations in the United States in the next 12 to
18 months;

* our expectation that we will not pay cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future;
* our beliefs regarding the realizability of intangible assets;

* our expectation that we will incur additional charges in fiscal 2003 related to our continued cost
reduction efforts, including the integration of BCC into BNC;

* our expectation of a continued downward trend in sales of BCC products due to the shift towards
the LOM form factor;

* our expectation that there will not be any significant improvement in overall telecommunlcatlons
industry market conditions in the near future;

* our expectation that research and development expenses will decrease in absolute dollars in future
periods as we consolidate our projects into a fewer number of lower-cost locations, and that such
consolidation will-be complete by the end of fiscal 2003;

* our expectation that general and administrative expenses will decrease in absolute dollars in future
periods;

* our belief that it is more likely than not that our deferred tax asset will be realized by our forelgn
subsidiaries; :

* our plans to consolidate two of our businesses into a single business to gain further benefits from
leveraging common resources;

* our belief that strict cost containment and expense reductions are essential to achieving positive
cash flow from operations in future quarters and returning to profitability;

* that we may undertake additional measures to contain costs and reduce expenses if revenues and
market conditions do not improve;

« our expectation that certain product lines will account for a higher percentage of our future sales
over time;

* our plan to adhere to the financial covenants of the Credit Facility and avoid an event of default;
* our belief that our tax positions in various jurisdictions are proper and fully defensible;

* our expectation that the number of acquisitions of businesses or product lines will decrease in
comparison to historical levels;




« our plans to continue to pursue strategic relationships to complement internal development of new
technologies and enhancement of existing products and to exploit market potentials;

* our expectation that international markets will continue to account for a significant percentage of
our sales;

* our expectation that our stock price may continue to experience volatility in the future;

* our belief that investments under 3Com Ventures complement our business strategies and research
and development efforts;

* our expectations regarding future capital contributions to venture funds and future payments under
royalty agreements over the next 12 months;

* our belief that our existing cash and equivalents, short-term investments, revolving line of credit,
and cash generated from operations will be sufficient to satisfy our anticipated cash requirements
for at least the next twelve months;

¢ our expectation that the adoption of SFAS 141 and SFAS 144 will not have a material effect on our
results of operations or statements of financial position;

* our intention to hold our fixed income investments until maturity;

* our expectation to substantially complete our restructuring activities that were initiated in fiscal
2002 related to the reduction in force and cost reduction measures during fiscal 2003, and our
expectation to incur further expenses during fiscal year 2003 as the restructuring activities continue
and definitive plans are established;

* our belief that domestic and foreign income tax examinations will not have a material adverse effect
on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations;

* and our belief that we have defenses in each of the litigation cases in which we are named as a
defendant and our intention to vigorously contest each of those matters.

These statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and events to
differ materially. For a detailed discussion of these risks and uncertainties, see the “Business Environment
and Industry Trends” section of this Form 10-K. 3Com undertakes no obligation and does not intend to
update forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of this
Form 10-K.

PRESENTATION OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS—PALM, INC,

The following information relates to the continuing operations of 3Com Corporation and our consolidated
subsidiaries (3Com). Palm, Inc. (Palm) is accounted for as a discontinued operation, as a result of our
decision to distribute the Palm common stock we owned to 3Com sharehoiders in the form of a stock
dividend. Subsequent to the distribution to our shareholders on July 27, 2000, Palm’s operations ceased to
be part of our operations and reported results.

PART 1
ITEM 1. Business
GENERAL

3Com Corporation (3Com) was founded on June 4, 1979. A pioneer in the computer networking industry,
we believe we are the only networking company that offers a unique blend of practical and innovative
technology that provides our channel partners and customers with high-value, practical-to-use solutions.
Our competitive strengths include our strong balance sheet, industry-leading intellectual property
portfolio, distributor and customer relationships, and brand identity. We believe that the leading tier one




networking company of the future will be the one that offers innovative, feature-rich products and
solutions that excel at low cost of acquisition and ownership. Further, if that company also- maintains the
lowest cost structure and best asset velocity, it can generate superior financial returns. We intend to be that
company. : ‘

On June 6, 2002, we announced that after substantially improving the competitiveness of Business
Connectivity Company (BCC) and Business Networks Company (BNC), 3Com would merge BCC into
BNC to drive further efficiencies in each business while leveraging growth opportunities. Since July 1,
2002, we have structured our operations around two businesses. BNC focuses on the enterprise market and
now consists of three divisions: Local Area Network (LAN) Infrastructure Division, Personal Systems
Division, and Connectivity Division. The Connectivity Division of BNC focuses on basic client connectivity
products and solutions. The Network Jack product is now managed under the Personal Systems Division of
BNC, and other offerings formerly managed under Business Connectivity Company in fiscal 2002 are now
managed under the LAN Infrastructure Division of BNC. CommWorks Corporation continues to focus on
the telecommunications service provider market.

In fiscal 2003, we will operate our company and report our financial results in three ongoing segments:

1) Enterprise Networking Segment, consisting of the LAN Infrastructure Division and Personal Systems
Division of Business Networks Company,

2) Connectivity Segment, consisting of the Connectivity Division of Business Networks Company, and
3) CommWorks Segment.

Each of these segments has a unique capital investment and business model tuned for the dynamics of its
target market. Additionally, our exited products will continue to be presented as a separate segment.

In fiscal 2002, we operated three ongoing segments: Business Networks Company, Business'Connectivity
Company, and CommWorks Corporation. The discussion of industry segments below is presented as we
operated our company and reported our financial results in fiscal 2002.

INDUSTRY SEGMENTS
Business Networks Company

Building on 3Com’s historical success in the networking infrastructure market, 3Com’s Business Networks
Company is a leader in delivering innovative networking products and solutions that are feature-rich so
they can support the increasingly complex and demanding application environments in today’s businesses,
while remaining easy to install, use, and operate, and affordable to own. :

BNC provides a broad range of innovative networking solutions, which enable customers to manage
business-critical information, enhance the productivity of employees, and improve the effectiveness of
business relationships at an affordable price. By enriching the user experience through high performance
and innovative technology, BNC provides practical solutions to meet the demanding real-world needs of
customers, while at the same time allowing them to run their businesses rather than spend time focusing on
getting the technology to work.

Industry Background:

During the 1980s and 1990s, 3Com became a worldwide leader building enterprise networks and the
equipment that connects computers to networks. In 1981, International Business Machines Corp. (IBM)
introduced the personal computer (PC) and in 1983, 3Com introduced the first network interface card
(NIC) that connected the IBM PC into Ethernet networks. At first, computers were connected together in
LANS, so people in workgroups could more easily share information, such as spreadsheets, and resources,
such as printers and servers. Then, network applications—email, for example—were developed, and these
applications ignited the demand to connect workgroups together into enterprise-wide networks. Outside of




the enterprise, individuals connected over wide area networks (WANs) and started forming on-line
communities through services such as CompuServe and America Online. The second half of the 1990s saw
the build-out of the Internet, and by the end of that decade the number of people and businesses
connected to networks had all scaled far beyond what anyone ever imagined.

Based on current economic trends, most organizations are under pressure to scale back investment in
capital projects, and even more so with regard to operating expenses. They are also being forced to look at
all possible ways to increase shareholder value and show return on invested capital. From a technology
perspective, this is causing investments in networking and desktop equipment to be questioned more than
ever before. Information technology (IT) managers must be able to justify any new investment in
infrastructure.

From a customer perspective, most organizations are attempting to get closer to their customers by
implementing customer relationship management (CRM) applications. With the growth of supply chain
management, businesses must be able to support a diverse user community that includes suppliers,
partners and customers. Information and knowledge management is yet another key part of understanding
the customer, as databases are consolidated and information exchanged. All of this is part of the larger
drive to increase staff efficiency and productivity. To realize the full benefits of this, an organization must
integrate their CRM system together with their manufacturing system more effectively.

Finally, network managers are increasingly concerned about the integrity of corporate data and how this
data, their users, and devices are secured. This problem is magnified when users are on the move and
outside the controlled corporate environment. More people are accepting the Internet as a business tool,
which has led to an explosion in e-business and the general growth of Internet-based transactions in the
commercial workplace.

Markets and Customers:

BNC develops networking solutions for enterprise and small business customers worldwide. These
solutions are sold through the company’s worldwide channel of over 55,000 value-added resellers, system
integrators and telecommunications service providers.

BNC acknowledges that networking needs vary by size of business, from industry to industry, and across
the globe. BNC therefore develops a full product line of networking solutions to fit the demanding
business needs of customers from the very small to the very large. BNC does this by delivering rich
functionality, high performance, reliability, and security in a way that is easy to install, configure, manage,
and use, and is well-suited for the target customer environment. Importantly, BNC delivers these solutions
in a way that is affordable to own and operate.

BNC has one of the largest installed bases of mid-sized and large enterprise customers in the industry and
has sold tens of millions of switching ports not only to commercial customers but also to many in
healthcare, government and education. BNC delivers the performance, features and flexibility demanded
by these customers to meet their changing enterprise needs.

BNC also has a strong position in the small business marketplace, which stems from its understanding of
the needs of small businesses and its ability to provide them with networks that are reliable as well as easy
to buy, install and manage. With BNC’s solutions, small businesses can spend less time dealing with
technology and more time focusing on their growing business.

Future Trends:

Enterprise networking has evolved rapidly over the last 10 years. The departmental workgroup networks
spawned by the adoption of Ethernet and the explosion of PC use have developed into enterprise-wide
client/server networks, and those networks have been extended via the Internet. Originally a research tool,
the Internet has grown quickly to become a major influence on the design and deployment of networks.




Unfortunately, however, the Internet has brought mixed blessings. Challenges, such as weak security, poor
performance, and complexity in the data center, often undermine the positive attributes of reach,
economies of scale, and speed of deployment. As network usage continues to grow within the enterprise
and expands to include third parties such as business partners and customers, networks have to evolve to
improve the end user’s experience of the network and the return on investment to the enterprise, while
freeing up the IT manager to focus on delivering business benefits.

Today’s network must provide a firm foundation to satisfy a business’ strategic goals: acquiring and
retaining customers, conducting commerce, providing a competitive advantage, and delivering profits. To
fulfill this purpose, the network of the 21% century must deliver greater network performance, availability,
and scalability in a cost-conscious environment. The network must become focused on supporting the
needs of individual users, not solely on the delivery of raw data or generic applications. Intelligence must
be pushed to the edge of the network to securely provide immediate access to relevant data to any user at
any location.

BNC has a unique approach for delivering network capabilities to enterprise customers. The approach is to
put specific features at the point in the network where they can be most effective and where it makes most
sense for them to be. Unlike many competitors which choose to design an increasingly complex array of
features into large, expensive switching engines at the core of the LAN where they are farthest from the
end user, BNC moves the functionality closer to end users and to the applications. This approach offers
more flexibility in network design by allowing IT managers to easily select and deploy the capabilities they
want when and where they need them, resulting in a more cost effective, “pay-as-you-grow”
implementation. By distributing these capabilities to the most effective places, the demand placed on
individual network components is reduced, and the potential performance and reliability of the network is
increased.

Previously used only by larger organizations, such as banks, hospitals, and stock exchanges, high-availability
networking is now an affordable solution for enterprises that require their business systems—from
interoffice communications, to customer service, to procurement, to time tracking and billing, sometimes
even the storefront itself—to always be available.

Our recently announced XRN™ (eXpandable Resilient Network) technology for core switching
demonstrates how BNC is changing the way that networks are built to deliver better performance,
availability, and scalability. With XRN technology, companies no longer have to make huge up-front
investments or significantly increase their IT staff to ensure that their core network backbone is
continuously available to users who need them. XRN technology complements our existing modular core
switch offering, allowing network managers to build affordable network cores with exceptional
performance and flexibility. With XRN technology, multiple interconnected Gigabit switches behave as a
distributed switching fabric that grows with the network, without the physical limitations, or disaster
recovery risks, of a centralized core device.

Beyond the LAN core, BNC is developing networkmg solutlons to address real needs faced within the
enterprise:

Security—Companies need to tighten security measures in order to protect users, intellectual capital, and
assets through enhanced authentication, encryption and control.

Content—To improve performance and speed for all network users, companies need to push content to the
edge of the network more quickly and find better ways to distribute relevant information rapidly across the
Internet. Different levels of performance are required for different users, depending on their network
.priority (for example, customers over administrative staff, voice over data traffic), their location, and their
device access. '




Mobility—Today’s employees need more portable network access enabling them to be both mobile and
location-independent. Whether the user goes across the room or across the world, the network should be
able to find them, identify them, and give them access. '

Collaboration—Companies increasingly look to leverage the ubiquity of the Internet.to simplify the way
that people interact using integrated voice, video, and data communications. Soon, users will be able to use
one messaging system to collect voicemails, emails, and faxes, and to benefit from better communications
through shared applications.

BNC uniquely offers scalable, high-performance solutions that meet the needs for security, content,
mobility, and collaboration. BNC combines rich user functionality with the ease of use required to create
the emerging networks of the future.

Product Offerings:

BNC develops five categories of solutions: 1) LAN infrastructure, composed of switches and web solutions,
2) networked telephony systems for voice over existing network connections, 3) wireless access points and
adapters based on Wi-Fi technology, 4) Internet access gateways and 5) network management software. In
addition, BNC recognizes that service and support is an important component of the solutions we sell,
particularly to the enterprise market. To that end, BNC offers service and support programs as well as
professional services assistance for larger-scale projects.

LAN Infrastructure:

Core Switching. BNC offers both modular and stackable core solutions in its Switch 4000 Series and
SuperStack® 3 4900 Series, delivering highly resilient and available Layer 2 and Layer 3 Fast and Gigabit
Ethernet solutions for the core of the enterprise network. BNC offers an alternative to traditional
modular-centric designs through the Switch 4060 and Switch 4050 range. These switches are the first new
LAN core products to support XRN technology—BNC’s new core switching technology, which increases
network resiliency and availability in a unique “pay-as-you-grow” way.

Edge Switching. BNC provides a full range of stackable switches to provide performance and flexibility at
the edge of the network that includes the SuperStack 3 3300, 4400, 4300, 4200, and Baseline Series
products. Full featured products such as the SuperStack 3 Switch 4400 offer advanced, multi-layer packet
classification designed to enhance network control, improve efficiency, and automatically prioritize
real-time traffic such as LAN telephony, an important feature for converged voice/data networks. For
mid-sized networks and branch offices that do not require the complexity of network management, BNC
offers the SuperStack 3 Baseline Series switches that are cost-effective without sacrificing network
performance or ease of use.

Web Solutions. The SuperStack 3 Firewall, Webcache and Server Load Balancer allow customers to
access the Web faster, more securely and at a lower cost, as well as ensure network availability.

Small Business. OfficeConnect® family of switches, hubs, firewalls, and gateways are designed specially
for cost-sensitive networking users working in smaller networking environments that require reliable and
powerful LAN solutions. New OfficeConnect wired and wireless gateways bring economical, secure
Internet sharing to small offices. They include four-port Ethernet/Fast Ethernet switches, Ethernet WAN
connections for broadband modems, virtual private network capabilities, Internet Protocol (IP)-addressing,
and privacy features.

Wireless LAN:

BNC offers a large portfolio of standards-based wireless LAN solutions to meet a wide variety of customer
segment and application-specific needs. The Wireless LAN Access Point product line includes highly
secure, scalable, and managed solutions for the large enterprise as well as affordable and easy to use




solutions for small businesses. In addition to Wireless LAN Access Points, BNC offers innovative and
flexible Wireless LAN Workgroup Bridges and Building-To-Building Bridges. The Wireless LAN
Workgroup Bridge is the industry’s first and only Wi-Fi certified workgroup bridge, offering quick and
cost-effective wired-to-wireless bridging ideal for use in conference room and public access deployments.
Building-To-Building Bridges easily connect remote wired or wireless LAN locations without the need for
costly leased lines.

Networked Telephony:

SuperStack 3 NBX® and NBX 100 networked telephony solutions offer enterprise and small business
customers significant telephony cost savings, flexibility and voice/data application integration over existing
wiring, supporting up to 1,000 users per {ocation. The NBX software enables enhanced call processing and
multi-site IP networking. Also, the NBX platform supports enhanced applications through our Solutions
Partner Program.

Network Management Software:

3Com Network Supervisor is a powerful yet easy-to-use management application that graphically
discovers, maps, and displays network links and IP devices, including NBX telephones and some popular
third-party products. It is included with most 3Com managed networking devices.

Customer Service and Support:

Our maintenance offerings cover all the aspects of support that channel partners need to deliver a top class
service to their end users, including telephone support, hardware replacement, software updates, and
providing spare parts and engineers on site.

3Com Professional Services make available for our partners the expertise of BNC engineers, enabling them
to be more successful in their solution delivery. This is provided through a combination of a team of
dedicated ‘solutions office engineers’ at a central level and ‘large project engagement managers’ in the
field.

Sales, Marketing, and Distribution:

BNC has a broad distribution channel, allowing both reach and depth in terms of bringing our products
and solutions to our customers, We are fully committed to working with our worldwide base of over 55,000
resellers and channel partners. While the majority of product sales are to partners in our two-tier
distribution channel, which is utilized by both BNC and BCC, we also work closely with systems
integrators, major telecom service providers and direct marketers. BNC also maintains a field sales
organization that works alongside our partners to assist them in achieving their business goals.

Our two-tier distribution channel is comprised of distributors and resellers. Distributors are the first tier of
the channel providing global distribution, logistics, market development and other services. Distributors
generally sell to the second tier of the channel, comprised of value-added resellers (VARs) and other
channel partners.

3Com’s resellers provide value to end users’ solutions through application, technology, or industry-specific
expertise, and product and/or service offerings that complement 3Com networking solutions. To support
our resellers, we maintain a comprehensive partner program, the Focus Partner Program. The partner
program identifies three levels of partners (Gold, Silver and Bronze) based upon different factors such as
expertise in 3Com products and solutions, certifications, customer reach, ability to support pre and post
* sales services, revenue, and growth potential. This program provides the resellers with varying benefits and
services including marketing, training, sales support, service and support, and project help desks.

BNC’s worldwide sales team focuses on the various channels mentioned above. While the specifics can
vary slightly based on geographic differences, in general they can be summarized as follows. Distributor




account managers support the distributors in their activities to support their businesses from marketing
through to supply chain and sales out management. Reseller sales support ranges from telephone account
management for the Bronze partners through to field based sales support for Gold or Silver accounts.
Further, field-based resources work closely with our resellers to assist them in their work with end users to
generate and close sales opportunities. In some countries specific sales resources focus on supporting
targeted service providers and systems integrators.

In addition, BNC leverages 3Com’s corporate marketing efforts, which focus on increasing 3Com
awareness, consideration and preference with our target enterprise and small business customers to create
demand for 3Com products with our channel partners. In addition, marketing supports activities to attract,
retain and develop partner channels to ensure we have the right channel partners to support our business
and to help their businesses to be successful. These activities range from advertising and direct marketing
activities, through sales tools, collateral and training to promotions and incentives.

Competition:

BNC competes in the enterprise network infrastructure market providing products and solutions for voice
and data as well as wired and wireless communications. While BNC competes with a small number of large
firms, including Cisco Systems, Inc. (Cisco) and Nortel Networks Corp. (Nortel) in the overall market,
BNC also competes with various other companies in specific market segments or product categories.

BNC’s principal competitors in the enterprise networking market today include Avaya, Inc. (Avaya), Cisco,
Enterasys Networks, Inc. (Enterasys), Extreme Networks, Inc. (Extreme), Hewlett Packard Company
(HP), and Nortel. In the small business market, BNC competes with Allied Telesyn, Inc., D-Link
Systems, Inc. (D-Link), Linksys, and NetGear, Inc. (NetGear).

The primary competitive factors in BNC’s market are as follows:

. Ability to deliver a full line of networking solutions for the LAN that includes both products and
services

* Ability to deliver leading edge solutions in Gigabit switching, voice, and wireless to meet end user
business needs

* Delivery of lowest Total Cost of Ownership to end customers
* Delivery of highest Return on Investment for IT purchases
* Price performance

. Delivery'of rich features and functionality while maintaining ease of setup, use and ongoing
operation

* Product and system performance

* Reliability

* Size and reach of distribution channels

+ A globally recognized and preferred brand

In addition to delivering the performance, availability and functionality required of today’s networks, BNC
is relentlessly focused on ensuring its solutions are easy to install, use and operate, as well as affordable to
own.

Research and Development:

BNC'’s research and development approach focuses internal investments upon those core activities that are
necessary. to deliver differentiated products or planned product cost reductions. This is particularly true for
newer technologies where it is important to develop internal intellectual property or platforms for future




product offerings. For non-core activities that may include mature technologies or widely available
components, the company leverages third parties for sourcing or contract work for that portion of the
product development. This two part approach increases BNC’s ability to bring products to market in'a
timely and low cost manner and ensures that the company is focused upon those product attributes that
matter most to our customers.

Research and development investments in application specific integrated circuits (ASICs) and value-added
software remain a high priority for the company. ASICs provide higher performance, innovative features,
as well as cost benefits. Gigabit switching ASICs such as the ones developed for the company’s XRN
technology deliver high, non-blocking performance as well as unique combinations of capabilities such as
Distributed Resilient Routing, Distributed Device Management, and Link Aggregation Clustering. ASICs
used in the company’s networked telephony solutions enable powerful features and provide key cost

- advantages. Along with our ASICs, value added software provides differentiation across our product lines.
In many cases, sophisticated software underlies the reliability and ease of use that our customers have
grown to associate with 3Com products—“It just works.” Examples include everything from
self-configuration capabilities in our wireless LAN access points and 10/100 sw1tches to automatic
prioritization of networked telephony traffic traversing our Switch 4400.

In fiscal year 2002, targeted research and development investments resulted in the release of important
enhancements and additions to our product lines. Among these were the addition of significant new
product offerings in Layer 3 Gigabit switching, networked telephony, and wireless LAN, among others. In
the future, we will continue to invest in areas that deliver growth for the company and value to our
customers such as 10 Gigabit Ethernet, XRN technology, and Unified Communications.

Business Connectivity Company

3Com’s Business Connectivity Company is a leading provider of easy to use, reliable, high-performance
connectivity solutions at the edge of the network that enable users to access information. BCC develops
and sells a full portfolio of connectivity solutions that provide LAN connectivity at the edge of the network.
The technologies supported by our products include all speeds of Ethernet, wireless LAN, Bluetooth, and
LAN/Modem combination products. We offer these technologies'in all of the common user configurations
and form factors including personal computer interface (PCI) NIC, PCI-X NIC, PC Card, Mini-PCI,
universal serial bus (USB) interface, ASICs for LAN on the Motherboard (LOM), and intellectual
property for licensing our connectivity technologies to third parties.

BCC’s products have a long-standing reputation for providing easy to use, reliable, and high performance
connectivity solutions for notebook, desktop, and server systems. This success is evidenced by our
partnerships with major PC OEMs and our large installed base in corporate enterprise.

Industry Background:

As discussed earlier, 3Com introduced the first Ethernet NIC for PCs in 1983. Since then, we have
introduced a wide range of innovative products that have changed the way we live, work and communicate.
Today our products connect desktops, servers and mobile users. Our Ethernet adapter products now reach
1 gigabit per second speeds over wired infrastructure and 11 megabits per second (Mbps) in a wireless
environment. Qur products allow users to access information from their desk, conference rooms and
remotely via v.92 technology and our Mobile Connection Manager software. This has allowed our
customers to improve productivity and collaboration, while adapting to the ever-changing needs of today’s
increasingly mobile workforce.

We have become the preferred supplier of Ethernet connectivity to the Fortune 1000. As the market
evolved and matured, niche competitors entered the market and, over time, attempted to become
mainstream players. Companies, including Western Digital Corp., Lannet Company, Inc., SMC
Networks, Inc., Cogent Communications Group, Inc., Xircom, Inc., and Proteon, have either sold their
business to one of the remaining players or have left the market entirely. Today, BCC has focused




networking competitors including D-Link, Accton Technology Corp. (Accton), and Linksys in Taiwan, and
major silicon providers including Intel Corp. (Intel) and Broadcom Corp. (Broadcom) based in the U.S.
The Taiwanese competitors are typically focused on board level products, while Intel and Broadcom are
focused on silicon products. These two business models are the result of 20 years of innovation and
consolidation in the Ethernet connectivity market.

Markets and Customers:

The primary customer focus for BCC is enterprise customers, including Fortune 1000 corporations. BCC’s
success in addressing this target market can be illustrated by a recent study by Instat/MDF (June 2002)
showing that 3Com continues to maintain a significant lead in NIC brand awareness. In this survey among
enterprise respondent’s 3Com had 61.3% share for current NIC usage and 54.8% for future NIC
deployments.

BCC'’s solutions are targeted for worldwide distribution to enterprise and small business customers via PC
original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) and VARs. BCC sells directly to PC manufacturers, who
integrate our connectivity products primarily into their commercial PC product offerings. BCC branded
products are sold primarily though our two-tier distribution channel, which leverages the capabilities of our
resellers and channel partners.

Future Trends:

As connectivity evolves, there has been a transition from higher priced NICs to lower priced ASICs that
are installed on the PC motherboard in a LOM configuration. Looking forward, connectivity products will
increasingly reside in smaller and lower priced form factors, designed in coordination with the PC
motherboard itself. Virtually all commercial PCs and a growing percentage of consumer PCs are now
configured with LOM with either a LAN ASIC or LAN connectivity integrated into the Bridgechip set.
The Bridgechip set provides the interfaces between the processor and various peripherals in a PC including
the PCI bus and the USB ports. In addition, the Bridgechip set vendors have integrated additional
functions including graphics, audio, and now LAN networking into their silicon. This migration in function
from PCI cards or stand-alone ASICs into the Bridgechip provides a significant cost reduction to the PC
manufacturer. As this trend continues, this configuration will become the form factor of choice for
connectivity products, significantly impacting and eroding the market for NICs.

In addition to changing form factors, users are demanding higher speed connectivity products. BCC
anticipates that a growing number of connectivity products will be based on Gigabit Ethernet (GbE)
(10/100/1000) line speed. In fiscal 2003, BCC expects to introduce its first 10/100/1000 product for desktop
PCs.

As BCC moves forward, it looks to utilize its strong brand, installed base and market share positions, as
well as its intellectual property portfolio, to maximize the profitability of 10/100 connectivity products.
BCC will leverage alliances, which provide cost effective product development, allowing for the effective
extension of these legacy products. BCC will look to bring this technology to new markets—in untapped
geographic markets, and in new configurations, including integrating 3Com connectivity in Bridgechip sets
and new non-PC applications. Also, by utilizing low cost, outsourced NIC and LOM products, BCC will
engage the consumer PC segment, where products are often sold through catalogue and e-tail sales
channels.

BCC is uniquely positioned to license its strong intellectual property portfolio in connectivity, thus
providing the company with future royalty streams, with minimal overhead investment. Ultimately, BCC
will focus on yielding the greatest possible contribution margin and cash generation through the extension
of the 10/100 business.

BCC will continue to invest in developing products based on emerging connectivity standards including
higher speed versions of Ethernet, wireless Ethernet, and Bluetooth products. A major factor in BCC’s
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success has been our focus on ease of use, reliability, and performance. Our customers expect a 3Com
product to install easily and to operate reliably over the life of the system. Further, they expect a 3Com
solution will provide excellent performance, which will enhance the corporation’s productivity, by
providing timely access to information on the network. These attributes will be carried into 3Com’s future
product development efforts.

Product Offerings:

BCC develops four categories of solutions: 1) wired LAN connectivity products that enable computers as
well as non-PC devices to connect to Ethernet networks, 2) wireless LAN connectivity products, including
802.11 and Bluetooth compatible products, 3) Secure NICs, including embedded firewall products, for
applications that require high security of network devices, and 4) Network Jack, a 4-port Ethernet switch in
a standard single faceplate form-factor that allows network managers to cost-effectively add switch ports to
the network while avoiding costly new cable-pulls.

Wired LAN Connectivity:

BCC builds products that. enable computers as well as non-PC devices to connect to Ethernet networks.
Building on proprietary ASICs, hardware, and software, BCC is one of the world leaders in providing
10/100/1000Mbps Ethernet connectivity. Products include NICs, mini-PCI form factors, LOM, and PC
Card form factors. Customers for these products include Tier one and Tier two OEM PC manufacturers,
as well as key original design manufacturers (ODMs). BCC also leverages 3Com’s distribution and VAR
channels to sell branded products directly to end-users.

BCC offers both Copper and Fiber NICs that provide Gigabit connectivity. Gigabit NICs have been
primarily sold for servers. Looking forward, as Gigabit technology becomes more widely adopted, BCC will
sell Gigabit NICs for desktop PCs. Future products will also include Dual-Port Copper and Fiber Gigabit
server NICs. BCC will continue to sell GbE products to both major OEM customers, as well as through its
distribution channel. BCC will also look to invest in future GbE technologies, such as 10 GbE NICs for
server applications.

Wireless LAN Connectivity:

BCC builds 802.11 and Bluetooth compatible wireless products that enable users to stay connected to
information while at their desk or while roaming within the enterprise or the home. The productivity
increase associated with this ease of information access is driving many corporations to deploy wireless
networks. Based on proprietary software for drivers and the user ‘interface, BCC products include PC
Cards based on the 802.11 standard, Bluetooth PC Cards, Bluetooth USB modules, and 802.11b USB
modules. BCC will focus primarily on the distribution and VAR channels to sell branded products directly
to corporations and to end-users.

Secure NICs:

BCC has long been developing NIC connectivity features that provide value through lowering the total cost
of ownership to corporations. Our NIC management features are de-facto standards in many Forfune 1000
IT departments. In fiscal year 2001, BCC introduced our first NIC with a dedicated processor capable of
off-loading operations from the PC including off-loading 3DES (Data Encryption Standard) encryption in
a Windows 2000 environment. This intelligence at the edge of the network is a key component of our
strategy to continue to offer features that provide value to our corporate customers.

In January 2002, BCC began shipping an Embedded Firewall (EFW) as the next step in our NIC
management strategy. This product provides a high level of LAN security by controlling access to the
network. By utilizing a centrally controlled, tamper-resistant management console, we assist IT
departments by providing the control they need to protect their network assets from unauthorized access.
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Network Jack:

As connectivity evolves, intelligent solutions at the edge of the networks are adding increasing value. The
Personal Systems Division is creating a series of products to capture this potential. The products match the
traditional single gang faceplate size.

Launched in January 2002, the NJ100 Network Jack provides switching capability in a compact form factor
that quadruples connectivity, eliminating the need for expensive cable installation. A key feature of the
NJ100 Network Jack is the ability to receive power over ethernet (PoE) or from a local power supply. The
product can also forward power to connected devices that comply with the current IEEE 802.3af PoE draft
standard. Currently targeted at education, government, and medium enterprise customers, the NJ100
Network Jack is an ideal upgrade solution, especially in connectivity-constrained environments. The
Network Jack family of products will expand to add management features to serve the broader enterprise
segment.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution:

BCC utilizes a two-pronged sales channel strategy to address its target customers. By using our broad
two-tier distribution channel as described earlier, and a separate OEM channel focused on PC
manufacturers, BCC has high volume channels designed to reach and support enterprise customers
worldwide. BCC also maintains a field sales organization that works alongside our partners to assist them
in achieving their business goals. BCC’s second sales channel is focused on the major PC manufacturers
and leading ODMs. These sales teams provide the levels of dedicated in-depth technical support and
account management required by these major customers.

BCC’s OEM sales group is composed of dedicated, cross-functional account teams focused on major PC
manufacturers and regional OEM sales teams focused on smaller regional OEM customers. The dedicated
account teams manage the business relationship and the customer. This management includes
coordination of the supply chain, quality, and logistics in addition to managing pricing and demand
forecasts. The coordination is a key function as many PC customers have international manufacturing
locations and are increasingly using contract manufacturers like the ODMs who will design and
manufacture systems to the PC vendors specifications. This change in design and production strategy
requires close interaction within BCC’s OEM sales group.

Since a large percentage of PCs are sold by the non-brand name PC companies, BCC has a separate OEM
sales group focused on the smaller, regional PC companies. A dedicated sales focus is required to address
this segment as the regional OEM’s business tends to be very opportunistic and deal-based. Close
cooperation is required to ensure the BCC solution is appropriately positioned to support the OEM’s
ability to win their bid.

BCC, like BNC, also leverages 3Com’s corporate marketing efforts directed at our channel partners that
promote 3Com brand awareness and preference, as well as help their businesses to be successful.

Competition:

Major Taiwanese connectivity vendors, including D-Link, Accton, and Linksys, have established positions
in the low priced (less than $20) segment of the NIC market and have created consumer-oriented brands in
the U.S., Europe, and Asia. The Taiwanese competitors typically compete on price and tend to be market
followers. We believe we provide superior quality, service and support compared to these players. Several
vendors have succeeded in creating a corporate business in selected markets, such as D-Link in France, but
for the most part, the Taiwanese competitors are still attempting to create an up-market image for their
products.

Intel entered the Ethernet NIC market in the early 1990s. Intel’s stated goals were to diversify into related
markets and create demand for faster processors. Intel is an aggressive competitor who is well positioned
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to compete for the mind share of the Fortune 1000 chief information officers due to its position in
processor sales. Initially, Intel focused on NICs or board-level products. Today, Intel is focused on silicon,
especially ASICs and integrated Bridgechip sets they sell to PC OEMs. In the past, BCC has maintained—
or in some cases, grown—market share in sub-segments of the NIC business. Over the past year Intel has
been successful in the ASIC and Bridgechip market, where it has used proprietary interfaces and its
strength in processors and sales to create a strong competitive position. BCC has countered with
partnerships and alliances to create solutions that offer compelling products in this space. However, as we
move forward, silicon and Bridgechip will become a bigger portion of the annual total connectivity
shipments. ’

Research and Development:

BCC utilizes its engineering teams to internally develop high volume basic connectivity products utilizing
proven technologies, including our wired LAN connectivity ASIC, NICs, and PC Card products. Corporate
customers value the stability of the software image and robustness of design as key product attributes.
These features along with the extreme cost focus require in-depth knowledge of our products that is only
available to our internal design teams.

In BCC’s growth markets a limited investment methodology will be used, especially in low volume or in
new technology segments. In these markets BCC will leverage alliances to quickly bring new products to
market. Our product design approach will be to utilize outsourced hardware with product differentiation
provided by software (drivers and firmware), product quality assurance, and support. As market segments
achieve high volume we may bring these development efforts in-house as we have done with the basic
connectivity products.

CommWorks Corporation

CommWorks Corporation (CommWorks) develops and deploys carrier-class, IP-based multi-service access
and service creation platforms for telecommunications service providers. Our products allow
telecommunications service providers to offer existing and new services with the same high availability and
reliability as the traditional telecommunications network, but at much lower cost. In addition,
CommWorks combines expertise in both custom development and network integration to deliver highly
specialized solutions that address the specific challenges faced by telecommunications service providers.

CommWorks’ IP-based networks deliver greater functionality at significantly reduced cost and create the
ability to offer muitiple services over a common infrastructure. OQur networks feature several key
characteristics, including: ' '

* Scalability—Service providers need the ability to start small and grow the network as demand
increases. CommWorks gives service providers the ability to utilize their existing network and add
new services over time without major additions of hardware;

* Reliability—In voice communications, the benchmark for quality and reliability is the traditional
public switched telephone network (PSTN). CommWorks networks deployed today by some of the
world’s largest service providers are delivering voice quality and reliability on a par with—and often
better than—the traditional PSTN;

* Multiple services, common hardware—We offer service providers an IP platform based on a common
infrastructure that allows them to deliver multiple services. Regardless of the transport medium
(wireline, wireless, broadband) or the type of traffic (voice, data, fax, video), we allow the service
provider to turn the traffic into revenue-generating services; and

¢ Open architecture—Service providers do not want to be locked into a single vendor. Our networks
feature open, standards-based interfaces for multi-vendor connectivity. This encourages service
providers to deploy best-of-breed components and allows them to introduce new services in less
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time than for traditional network infrastructures. Also, our commitment to standards and open
interfaces allows service providers to customize solutions independently at each tier to address
individual customer needs.

CommWorks’ product portfolio includes the three key components of next generation networks—wireline
access systems, wireless access systems and a media independent softswitch—that are critical to enabling
complete next generation data and voice services to both fixed and maobile subscribers.

CommWorks has achieved certification under the Telecommunications Leadership 9000 (TL 9000)
program. Specifically designed and tailored for the telecommunications industry, TL 9000 establishes a
common set of quality system requirements for suppliers of telecommunication hardware, software and
services, including cost and performance-based metrics that measure product reliability and quality.

Industry Background:

CommWorks’ exclusive focus is on the telecommunications service provider market. Historically, the
telecommunications industry has been heavily regulated and dominated by a small number of incumbent
service providers and equipment vendors. As a result, evolution of the circuit-switched technologies
underlying the industry’s public telephone networks has been slow and innovation in new service offerings
and pricing has been limited. The telecommunications industry landscape began to change, however, in
response to the Telecommunications Reform Act of 1996, which deregulated the U.S. telecommunications
market and removed the barriers that previously restricted service providers to a specific geography or
offering. Over the past several years, deregulation has been progressing rapidly in other markets worldwide
as well.

Deregulation worldwide has fostered the creation of new operators to expand competitive service offerings
to customers. As a result, deregulation has served to dramatically increase the number of competitive
service providers, both facilities-based operators and resellers, and the number of network infrastructure
manufacturers supporting them. This increased level of competition between new entrants and incumbents
has resulted in lower prices for voice transport, long distance and wireless services. Such lower prices and
lower revenue growth rates have combined to exert downward pressure on service provider margins and
profitability. In addition, the collapse of the Internet/telecommunications bubble beginning approximately
two years ago has led to the failure of many new entrants and has contributed to creating a significant
excess of network capacity over market requirements. Combined, these two factors—pricing pressures and
excess network capacity—have resulted in decreased levels of capital investment in new equipment by both
competitive and incumbent service providers.

Markets and Customers:

CommWorks builds IP-based networks for many types of telecommunications service providers, including
incumbent local exchange carriers (ILECs); interexchange carriers (IXCs); post, telephone and telegraph
administrations (PTTs); competitive local exchange carriers (CLECs); wireless service providers; internet
service providers (ISPs); and other alternative service providers. We operate on a global basis, and our
customers include many of the world’s major telecommunications service providers.

Future Trends:

In the near term, revenue growth for the telecommunications industry is expected to continue to decline.
Projected growth in revenues for broadband data, wireless data, and enhanced services offerings is not
expected to be sufficient to offset projected declines in revenues for traditional business and consumer
long-distance services. As a result, in the near term, we anticipate the following trends:

* Business models for service providers likely will reflect slower growth and reduced profitability,
leading to additional consolidation within the industry; '
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+ Sales cycles likely will lengthen as service providers extend the useful lives of their existing networks
and exhibit a Jow tolerance for risk related to the deployment of new technology to support service
innovation;

* The migration from circuit-switched to packet-switched networks likely will occur over a longer
period than originally anticipated;

» Capital expenditures by service providers likely will continue to be constrained for the foreseeable
future; and . ' s : :

* The number of equipment vendors likely will decrease and those that remain must have the scale
and scope to manage extended sales cycles with fewer customers.

Over time, however, the market for IP-based networks such as those developed and deployed by
CommWorks is expected to stabilize and resume growth. To compete effectively in the expected near-term
and longer-term industry environments, CommWorks’ objective is to capitalize on its strengths in the
following areas:

* Strong presence and incumbency with major service providers worldwide;
* Global customer engagement experience and support structure;

* Complete product lines supported with research and development teams located throughout the
world;

* A long-term hardware platform focus and commitment with the Total Control® 1000 and Total
Control® 2000 platforms;

* Demonstrated packet telephony experience with major service providers worldwide, based on
significant, billable traffic carried on CommWorks gateways and softswitches;

* Proven ability to tailor equipment, software and services to meet customers’ unique requirements
and needs; :

¢ Solutions focused on the market for packet-based enhanced services, sometimes referred to as
“microservices”; and

* Influential role in the standards definition and adoption process.

Product Offerings:

CommWorks’ product solutions are based upon a three-tier packet-based architecture. The CommWorks®
three-tier architecture makes it possible for service providers to integrate with existing infrastructures,
customize solutions independently at each tier to address individual customer needs and utilize innovative
technologies to deliver an array of new IP-based enhanced services to their customers.

* Tier 1 of the CommWorks architecture, the media processing layer, employs media gateway functions
to integrate multiple types of traffic and accommodate disparate access networks.

* Tier 2, the control and network and service management layer, features the CommWorks softswitch
to bridge different signaling and provides multilingual call control protocols enabling multimedia
traffic to traverse disparate networks.

* Tier 3, the service creation layer, provides an open service creation environment that leverages open
interfaces and utilizes strategic partners to enable rapid application and service deployment. This
encourages service providers to deploy best-of-breed components and allows them to bring new
services to market faster.
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Wireline:

The Total Control 1000 and Total Control 2000 multi-service access platforms anchor Tier 1 of the
CommWorks architecture. These platforms support a variety of access media, including enhanced data
systems, IP telephony, wireless data and broadband access, and address key service provider requirements
for the shift from the PSTN to an IP-based infrastructure by enabling next-generation, IP-based
multimedia services and delivering fast, reliable, carrier-class functionality.

The Total Control 1000 offers comprehensive capabilities for both established and emerging services from
remote access servers for data traffic, transaction processors for credit cards and media gateways for voice
traffic. With more than 12 million access ports in service with the largest service providers and carriers
worldwide, the Total Control 1000 has the proven ability to deliver cost-effective integrated services.

The Total Control 2000 is CommWorks’ new multi-service access platform. The Total Control 2000 is
designed for areas with high population density where tens of thousands of connections are needed. The
Total Control 2000 system architecture will provide the highest density available in the industry. Also,
unlike many competitors’ products that support one form of voice coding, the Total Control 2000 will
support multiple voice coders to ensure that the greatest call density is achieved regardless of what is
negotiated during the call by the voice device.

The Total Control 2000 uses next generation switching technology based upon a true IP switching fabric
that offers complete switching performance upgradability. This capability, together with the Total Control
2000 platform’s inherent multi-service design, will enable service providers to easily expand the platform to
support new services and access technologies. Open interfaces and true multi-service capabilities provide
unique advantages such as faster time to market, service customization and network efficiency.

Wireless:

CommWorks’ wireless systems consist of hardware and software components residing in Tiers 1 and 2 of
the CommWorks architecture. Using the Total Control 1000 platform and CommWorks software, wireless
service providers are able to offer wireless data access in their CDMA (Code Division Multiple Access)-
based networks.

The Total Control 1000 Wireless InterWorking Function (IWF) High Density Gateway enables service
providers to converge wireless voice services with newer data applications across an integrated
infrastructure. The CommWorks IWF is a second generation (2G) hardware and software platform that
serves as a gateway from the wireless network, giving subscribers access to the Internet, corporate
intranets, PSTN dial-up and fax services. The IWF system resides within a service provider’s central office
or switching center and connects directly to the mobile switching center, serving as a gateway between the
CDMA wireless network and various wireline networks. The Total Control 1000 2G IWF High Density
Gateway is deployed in CDMA networks throughout the world.

CommWorks’ third generation (3G) wireless capabilities allow wireless service providers to offer enhanced
wireless data services through a platform that positions their networks for future growth, cost savings and
new revenue-generating services. CommWorks’ 3G wireless system, based on 3G cdma2000 standards,
interfaces with CDMA network infrastructure and delivers significantly higher data speeds. CommWorks’
3G wireless system was deployed in the world’s first commercial 3G CDMA network, as well as in the
largest 3G CDMA networks deployed today at customers including KDDI, Sprint PCS, SK Telecom,
TELUS Mobility and Verizon Wireless.

Softswitch:

The CommWorks softswitch product line anchors Tiers 2 and 3 of the CommWorks architecture, providing
call treatment, signaling, control and service creation across multiple access media—wireline, wireless,
broadband or any IP-connected subscriber. With its open, standards-based modular architecture, the

16




CommWorks softswitch allows service providers to easily support new and emerging access technologies
and to introduce a variety of end-user and service provider network services. By providing consistent call
control and applications across ali devices, CommWorks softswitch allows service providers to more readily
target vertical markets, enterprises and other groups with microservices (i.e., packet-based enhanced
services).

Applications:

CommWorks’ core IP-based telephony systems provide service providers with a flexible, lower cost
alternative for transporting voice calls across their networks transparently to end-users. In addition, and
perhaps more importantly, service providers can utilize the same IP-based voice infrastructure to enable
new microservices, which create opportunities for additional revenue and competitive differentiation.
CommWorks’ open and flexible softswitch product allows service providers to utilize their own developers,
allowing creativity to move to an Internet-style and giving service provides a time-to-market advantage on
new services that cannot be achieved with the traditional PSTN infrastructure. Applications enabled
through the CommWorks’ softswitch architecture, including a variety of new microservices, include the
following:

Hosted Voice Services. Where service providers provide basic data services today, they now have the
option with this application to offer a PBX or Centrex replacement solution to their business customers
utilizing the same data connections already in place. Such a solution eliminates the issues of managing
PBX office voice systems—in particular the complexity of adds, moves and changes to users of the
businesses voice network—and allows the telephone to take on the same degree of mobility as experienced
today with desktop computers. In addition, an integral microservice called Find me-Follow me allows
end-users to set rules within their voicemail system to determine notification and forwarding options for
incoming calls simply by entering their preferences via a Web-based interface. For any Hosted Voice
Service, the ability to offer IP-based conferencing is important. This microservice enables enhanced
conferencing features, such as the ability to host “on the fly” conference calls. IP conferencing is an ideal
solution for converged IP-based networks where multimedia conferencing (combining audio, video and
text) is required and must operate seamlessly to connect end-users across wireline and wireless networks.
Conferencing is also a premium service for service providers, and can contribute significantly to revenues
and profitability.

Enhanced IP Voicemail and Unified Communications. This solution provides a compelling option for
wireline and wireless service providers with aging legacy voicemail systems. Legacy voicemail systems have
matured to an end-of-life state and provide no option for migration to next generation IP-based services.
The CommWorks enhanced IP voicemail solution allows service providers to integrate their current
circuit-switched voicemail systems with the CommWorks platform to create a customized system that
meets the exact requirements of their customers and networks, from a complete voice mail system to a
comprehensive unified communications service. Voicemail service to end-users is completely transparent,
enabling a smooth transition. CommWorks’ Unified Communications capability allows end-users to
combine voice, e-mail and fax messages in one universal mailbox and manage them with a single device of
their choice—telephone, cell phone, e-mail client or personal digital assistant. An integral Message
Alert & Message Delivery microservice allows wireless subscribers to simplify management of multiple
voicemail accounts (office, home, cell phone). Message Alert accesses these multiple voicemail boxes and
notifies the end-user of incoming messages via a mobile short messaging service (SMS) or other device
(e.g., mobile phone, pager, personal digital assistant; etc.). In addition, Message Delivery, commonly
known as “mailbox on the fly”, allows service providers to offer fee-based voice messaging to customers
who want the convenience of voicemail without having to pay for a monthly service. The service provider
can set up a temporary mailbox for the customer, who can access messages for a fee.
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Alternate Calling Plans. A Multistage Calling microservice gives service providers additional options for
offering two and three stage dialing models for prepaid and calling card applications. Prepaid calling allows
subscribers to pay in advance or use traditional calling cards for phone service, most typically long distance
service. Service providers may also provide PC-to-Phone Calling using a number of IP-based clients, such
as Microsoft Corp.’s enhanced Windows Messenger client, Pingtel’s soft client, and others; with this
application, CommWorks can enable PC-to-phone capabilities with toll quality voice calls.

Voice Portal. This microservice allows end-users to obtain web-based information over the telephone,
and is enabled by giving customers access to Voice Extensible Markup Language (VXML)-enabled
websites or other related resources. Content can either be provided by third party content providers or
customized for a specific program offering by service providers. This service also allows end-users to issue
short commands to receive information on demand and to use services like voice dialing, teleconferencing
and directory assistance.

Professional Services:

CommWorks offers a variety of professional services that are integral to its product offerings. Through our
broad portfolio of carrier-class professional services and solutions, which encompass all phases of the
network lifecycle, we help customers plan, deploy and support advanced IP networks. CommWorks strives
to assist our customers with their business challenges, including reducing time to market, cost, complexity
and business risk. Our service offerings include the following:

Systems Integration. Our fully trained integration professionals can bring together the necessary
resources to stage, assemble and test individual network components to form an integrated system,
including procurement.

Installation. CommWorks offers complete installation services, including cabling, custom configuration
and network connectivity. CommWorks also provides network configuration and design, management of
the ordering and delivery process, site assessment and site preparation, on-site installation, verification
testing and supplementary documentation packages including equipment layout and topology drawings.

Custom Application Development. CommWorks helps customers integrate new technology into their
networks with innovative applications and enhancements to current applications. Qur development team
delivers solutions that are designed specifically for the customer. CommWorks’ core strengths include
operation management, network management and interface management.

Network Capacity Management. CommWorks provides best practices, proven methodologies and
industry-leading tool sets to give customers the information they need to make critical decisions about
their networks. Network capacity management services enable customers to determine which portion of
their networks can be downgraded, reallocated or upgraded. With extreme precision, customers are able to
predict when a resource will reach a certain, user-defined level of saturation and identify true network
saturation and utilization in order to make quicker, better-informed decisions about asset allocation.

Program and Project Management. Our program management services provide the focus and resources
required for complex network deployment. CommWorks’ experienced program managers have extensive
experience with some of the largest carriers and service providers in the world—including managing global
deployments. We utilize structured, industry-standard project management methodologies for all phases of
a project, including project definition, planning, execution, control and close.

Education Services and Training. CommWorks delivers training on CommWorks products when and
where customers need it most—in the lab, in the field or in the classroom. The expertise of our course
development and delivery specialists ensures that customer-learning programs achieve targeted,
measurable results. Our education services feature world-class content developers and training
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professionals, flexible delivery options and primary delivery processes designed around customizing
training to meet the customer’s specific needs.

Onsite Engineering Support. A dedicated engineer serves as the customer’s single point of contact,
becoming intimately familiar with their business and network environment to provide more personalized
assistarice. Dedicated engineers proactively anticipate and resolve issues to avoid future problems, and
meet with the customer team regularly to review support activity and provide expert assistance.

Online Support. CommWorks utilizes its technical support website, TOTALService Online, to provide
customers with access to one of the most comprehensive technical support resources in the industry.
Available 24 hours a day, seven days a week, this website provides a variety of value-added services. Key
available resources include online technical support cases, a comprehensive software and documentation
library and archive, a knowledgebase of technical tips, online user forums and a variety of custom web page
options.

Remote Technical Support. CommWorks’ remote technical support services are designed for the specific
needs of today’s service providers. We provide a single tier support structure, rather than the traditional
multi-tier support structure. CommWorks remote technical support provides global, around-the-clock
access to networking experts—a team of highly trained engineers who deliver consultative support using an
up-to-date laboratory dedicated to customer support operations and who have an escalation path directly
to the CommWorks research and development engineers who designed the product. Customers using these
services are connected directly to an engineer with expertise in their specific application, instead of being
routed to an administrative queue or being forced to leave voicemail with the hope of receiving a reply on
a timely basis. :

Sales, Distribution and Marketing:

CommWorks conducts its sales and marketing activities on a worldwide basis primarily through a direct
field sales organization and, in some markets, through resellers and other strategic marketing partners.
The company also has a number of marketing programs to support the sale and distribution of its products
and to inform existing and potential customers about the features and the performance of its products and
services.

Sales and Distribution:

CommWorks presently has field sales offices throughout the world, providing coverage in all key markets.
The role of the direct field sales organization is to establish and maintain direct relationships with key
service provider customers, in order to achieve direct sales to these accounts and. to develop leads for
potential sales to these accounts by our value-added resellers. In performing this role, the direct field sales
organization assists current and potential customers in developing solutions to complex networking
challenges and, in doing so, differentiates the features and capabilities of CommWorks’ solutions from
competitive offerings.

To complement its direct field sales organization, CommWorks has entered into sales agreements with a
variety of value-added resellers, including distributors and network and system integrators. Such resellers
enhance our ability to sell through their broad product and service fulfillment capabilities. Qur sales
agreements with resellers generally are made on a non-exclusive basis and provide the resellers with
discounts and other terms and conditions reflective of the volume of business conducted.

CommWorks also has established strategic alliances with selected original equipment manufacturers and
other marketing partners. Through these relationships, CommWorks is able to:

* Leverage a partner’s account presence and relationships in order to reach particular geographies,
markets and customers; and

19




* Collaborate with a partner to fill gaps in their respective offerings and deliver more complete and
robust solutions to potential customers.

Marketing:

CommWorks’ marketing efforts involve a variety of activities, including direct marketing, end user rebates
and promotions, participation in industry trade shows, an active public and industry analyst relations
program, publication of technical and educational articles in industry journals, and a publicly available web
site. In addition, we have introduced two key programs—the “CommWorks Community of Partners”
program and the “CommWorks Compatible” program.

The CommWorks Community of Partners program is designed to augment the CommWorks three-tier
architecture, extending product and service capabilities. A flexible architecture with open interfaces, the
CommWorks architecture allows interoperability and compatibility with industry-leading partners, bringing
a variety of feature and capability choices for service providers and their customers. Through the
CommWorks Community of Partners program, CommWorks offers its service provider customers a range
of solutions no single vendor could provide and enables them to create new services efficiently and
effectively, increasing their revenue potential.

The CommWorks Compatible program showcases vendor solutions that are technically and functionally
compliant with the CommWorks architecture in the enhanced data services, Voice over IP (VoIP) and
wireless market segments. Products identified as “CommWorks Compatible” must pass defined tests, and
enjoy greater brand visibility since they are proven to operate properly within a CommWorks solution
created to address a customer’s specific business need. Customers will be able to readily identify vendor
solutions that fit into their CommWorks-enabled networks.

Competition:

CommWorks competes in the telecommunications infrastructure market, providing next-generation IP
infrastructure. The market is characterized by rapid change, extended sales cycles, converging technologies
and a conversion from traditional circuit-switched infrastructure to nexti-generation packet-switched
infrastructure.

CommWorks competes with numerous vendors in each of our product categories, and we expect
competition to intensify in the future. However, we expect to see the number of smaller, niche vendors
decrease over time as venture capitalists become increasingly more selective in their investments and
service providers exhibit an increased reluctance to select smaller, less-well-known vendors.

We believe that our principal competitors are the traditional telecommunications equipment vendors, as
well as certain well-funded and well-staffed start-up companies. Principal competitors include Cisco,
Comverse Technology, Inc. (Comverse), Lucent Technologies, Inc. (Lucent), Nortel and Sonus
Networks, Inc. (Sonus).

The principal competitive factors in the markets in which CommWorks competes include:
* Market presence;
¢ Size of installed base;
» Experience in providing standard-based products to service providers;
* Performance;
* Price;

* The ability to provide new technologies and products;
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» The ability to provide value-added features, reliability and investment protection; and
* Conformance to industry standards.

We believe we compete favorably with our competitors with respect to each of the above listed factors. In
addition, we believe that 3Com currently exhibits a degree of financial strength and flexibility that exceeds
that exhibited by certain of our competitors. However, certain of our competitors have longer operating
histories, greater name recognition, larger customer bases and greater resources to devote to them than we
do and may be able to undertake more extensive marketing campaigns and adopt more aggressive pricing
policies than we can. To remain competitive, we believe we must continue to invest significant resources in
developing new products and enhancing our current products, as well as maintain customer satisfaction
worldwide.

Research and Develo@ent:

CommWorks believes that its future success is highly dependent upon its ability to develop, on a cost
effective and timely basis, new and enhanced products employing leading-edge technology. Accordingly,
CommWorks continues to make substantial investments in research and development activities. Our
current efforts reflect a strong emphasis and focus on increasing the features, performance and reliability
of our products to enable new revenue generating services for our customers, as well as reduced total costs
of ownership. During the past year, CommWorks has extended and enhanced its product offerings in the
areas of traditional remote access, wireless access, IP telephony, enhanced IP services, network
management and operational support services. Also, CommWorks has been a leading proponent of
industry standards and intends to remain active in driving and supporting important standards-related
activities.

Market conditions in the telecommunications industry remain severely depressed, and the timing of
meaningful recovery remains uncertain. There can be no assurances that our current research and
development efforts will result in new products that will be commercially successful, or that our products
will not be rendered obsolete by changing customer requirements, emerging technologies or actions by
competitors. '

CommWorks currently conducts its research and development activities in seven design centers worldwide.
As part of our ongoing cost reduction efforts, we are consolidating our research and development activities
into three design centers located in Rolling Meadows, Iliinois, USA; Toronto, Ontario, Canada; and
Bangalore, India. We expect to complete this consolidation process during fiscal year 2003.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

Our research and development expenditures in fiscal years 2002, 2001, and 2000 were $285.6 million,
$535.7 million, and $597.8 million, respectively. Our research and development expenditures include
efforts to create new types of products and classes of service as well as to expand and improve our current
product lines, as discussed in the “Research and Development™ sections of our descriptions of our BNC,
BCC, and CommWorks segments.

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

For both the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002, and June 1, 2001, Ingram Micro Inc. (Ingram Micro)
accounted for 15 percent of our total sales. For the fiscal year ended June 2, 2000, Ingram Micro and Tech
Data Corporation accounted for 15 percent and 13 percent of our total sales, respectively.

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

We market our products globally, primarily through subsidiaries, sales offices, and relationships with
OEMs and distributors with local presence in all significant global markets. Outside the U.S., we have
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several research and development groups, with the most significant group being in the U.K. We have
manufacturing and distribution facilities in Ireland and a distribution facility in Singapore. We maintain
sales offices in 43 countries outside the U.S.

BACKLOG

In many cases we manufacture our products in advance of receiving firm product orders from our

customers based upon our forecasts of worldwide customer demand. Generally, orders are placed by the .
customer on an as-needed basis and may be canceled or rescheduled by the customer without significant

penalty. Accordingly, backlog as of any particular date is not indicative of our future sales. As May 31,

2002, we do not have backlog orders that cannot be filled within the next fiscal year.

MANUFACTURING

We use a combination of in-house manufacturing and independent contract manufacturers to produce our
products. A substantial portion of BNC products are manufactured at our Blanchardstown, Ireland facility,
where purchasing, assembly, burn-in, testing, final assembly, and quality assurance functions are
performed. Contract manufacturers are used to produce BCC and CommWorks products, and a portion of
BNC products. We have significant contract manufacturing arrangements with Flextronics International
(Flextronics) and Manufacturers’ Services Limited (MSL) for the production of BCC and CommWorks
products, respectively.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND RELATED MATTERS

The quality of our innovation is reflected in a substantial portfolio of patents covering a wide variety of
networking technologies. This ownership of core networking technologies creates opportunities to leverage
our engineering investments and develop more integrated, powerful, and innovative networking solutions
for customers.

We rely on U.S. and foreign patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade secrets to establish and maintain
proprietary rights in our technology and products. We have an active program to file applications for and
obtain patents in the U.S. and in selected foreign countries where a potential market for our products
exists. Our general policy has been to seek patent protection for those inventions and improvements likely
to be incorporated in our products or that we otherwise expect to be valuable. As of May 31, 2002, we had
790 U.S. patents (including 764 utility patents and 26 design patents) and 193 foreign patents. During fiscal
2002, we filed 189 patent applications in the U.S. Numerous patent applications are currently pending in
the U.S. and other countries that relate to our research and development. We also have patent cross
license agreements with other companies.

We have registered 96 trademarks in the U.S. and have registered 127 trademarks in one or more of 76
foreign countries. Numerous applications for registration of domestic and foreign trademarks are currently
pending.

EMPLOYEES

As of May 31, 2002, we had approximately 4,615 regular employees, of whom 1,145 were employed in
engineering, 1,538 in sales, marketing, and customer service, 933 in manufacturing, and 999 in finance,
information technology, and administration. Our employees are not represented by a labor organization,
and we consider our employee relations to be satisfactory.

PALM SEPARATION

On September 13, 1999, we announced a plan to conduct an initial public offering (IPO) of our Palm
subsidiary. On March 2, 2000, we sold 4.7% of Palm’s stock to the public in an IPO and sold 1.0% of Palm’s
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stock in private placements. On July 27, 2000, we completed the Palm spin-off by distributing to our
shareholders all of the remaining Palm common stock that we owned. The distribution ratio was 1.4832
shares of Palm for each outstanding share of 3Com common stock.

RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

Beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, 3Com undertook several initiatives aimed at both changing
business strategy as well as improving operational efficiencies. Restructuring charges in fiscal 2002 and
2001 were $167.5 million and $163.7 million, respectively, which related to the realignment of our business
strategy and reduction in force and cost reduction efforts. Restructuring charges in fiscal 2000 were
$68.9 million, of which $9.9 million related to the separation of Palm from 3Com and $59.0 million related
to implementing our change in strategic focus. These charges are discussed further in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

ITEM 2, Propérties

We operate in a number of locations worldwide. In fiscal 2002, we had several significant real estate related
actlvmes

During the second quarter of fiscal 2002, we purchased properties in Santa Clara, California and
Marlborough, Massachusetts, totaling 1,732,000 square feet, that were previously under operating
lease arrangements, and therefore terminated those leases.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, we sold a 333,000 square foot office, distribution and
manufacturing facility in Singapore and leased back approximately 53,000 square feet for 3Com use.
This lease will expire in 2005.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, we vacated a 639,000 square foot manufacturing and office
facility in Mount Prospect Ilinois and consolidated the operations into our Rolling Meadows, Illinois’
facility.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, we entered into a five year lease agreement to lease approximately
68,000 square feet of our Rolling Meadows facility to a third party tenant.

We lease and sublease to third-party tenants as of May 31, 2002 approximately 267,000 square feet of office
and research and development space on our Santa Clara headquarters site, approximately 132,000 square
feet of office space in our Mountain View, California leased location, approximately 137,000 square feet of
“office and research and development space in our Marlborough site, approximately 418,000 square feet of
owned manufacturing and office space in the Chicago area, and approximately 59,000 square feet in
various locations throughout North America and Europe. These agreements expire at various times
between 2002 and 2008.
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Our primary real property locations as of May 31, 2002, included the following:

Location Sq. Ft. Owned/Leased Primary Use
United States—San 1,036,000 Owned Corporate headquarters, office, customer service,
Francisco Bay Area research and development, fulfillment and

computer center. 377,000 sq. ft. of this total is
held for sale.

267,000 Owned Office, research and development leased to third-
party tenant in Santa Clara and held for sale.

132,000 Leased Office, research and development leased to third-
party tenant in Mountain View.

United States—Chicago 511,000 Owned Office, research and development, customer
Area service.

United States—Chicago 639,000 Owned Property partially vacant, partially leased to 3™

Area party tenant, and held for sale.

United States—Boston 550,000 Owned Office, research and development, customer

Area service Portion of space leased to third-party
tenant.

United States—Salt 185,000 Owned Property vacant; held for sale.

Lake City Area
78,000 Leased Office, research and development.

Asia Pacific—Singapore 53,000 Leased Office and distribution.
Europe—Ireland 468,000 Owned Office, research and development, and
. manufacturing.
Europe—U K. 230,000 Owned Office, research and development, and customer
service.
45,000 Leased Office, research and development, and customer
service.

As part of our initiatives to maximize the efficiency of our facilities, we plan to consolidate and sell excess
real estate in several locations globally over the next 12 to 18 months, including facilities associated with
research and development and manufacturing operations located in Marlborough; Salt Lake City, Utah;
and Santa Clara. In July 2002 we sold our 639,000 square foot Mount Prospect facility.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

The material set forth in Note 20 of Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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Executive Officers of 3Com Corporation

The following table lists the names, ages and positions held by all executive officers of 3Com as of July 26,
2002. There are no family relationships between any director or executive officer and any other director or
executive officer of 3Com. Executive officers serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Name é&e Position

Bruce L. Claflin ........... 50  Chief Executive Officer

Dennis Connors . .......... 48  President, CommWorks Corporation

John McClelland . . .. ....... 57 President, 3Com Business Networks Company

Jeanne Cox............... 47  Vice President, Corporate Branding and Communications
Gwen McDonald. .. ........ 47  Senior Vice President, Corporate Services

Mark D. Michael .......... 51 Senior Vice President, Legal, General Counsel, and Secretary
Mark Slaven . . ............ 45  Senior Vice President, Finance and Planning, and Chief

Financial Officer

BRUCE L. CLAFLIN has been 3Com’s Chief Executive Officer since January 2001 and President and Chief
Operating Officer since August 1998. Prior to joining 3Com, Mr. Claflin worked for Digital Equipment
Corporation (DEC) from October 1995 to June 1998. From July 1997 to June 1998, he was Senior Vice
President and General Manager, Sales and Marketing at DEC and prior to that he served as Vice
President and General Manager of DEC’s Personal Computer Business Unit from October 1995 to
June 1997. From April 1973 to October 1995, Mr. Claflin held a number of senior management and
executive positions at International Business Machines Corporation (IBM). Mr. Claflin serves as a director
of Time Warner Telecom.

DEeNNIS CONNORS has been President of CommWorks Corporation since June 2002. Prior to that, he was
President of 3Com Business Connectivity Company from June 2001 to June 2002, Senior Vice President of
e-Commerce Group from June 2000 to June 2001, and Senior Vice President of Global Customer Service
from November 1999 to June 2001. Prior to joining 3Com, Mr. Connors was the Executive Vice President
and General Manager of Business Operations and Services for Ericsson, Inc. He also served as Ericsson’s
Vice President and Global Business Manager for WorldCom in 1997. During his tenure in Private Radio
Systems in the Ericsson/General Electric joint venture, Mr, Connors was the Vice President of Global
Product Development and Operations from 1995 through 1997, and between 1993 and 1995 Mr. Connors
was the Vice President of Marketing and Research and Development.

JoHN MCCLELLAND has been the President of 3Com Business Networks Company since June 2001. Prior
to that, he was 3Com’s Senior Vice President, Operations from December 2000 to June 2001 and Senior
Vice President, Supply Chain Operations from April 1999 to December 2000. Prior to joining 3Com,
Mr. McClelland was Chief Industrial Officer for the Philips Consumer Electronics division of Philips
International, B.V. from November 1998 to March 1999. Mr. McClelland was Vice President of
Manufacturing and Distribution at Digital Equipment Corporation from February 1995 to October 1998.
From October 1968 to January 1995, Mr. McClelland held various management positions at IBM. Most
recently at IBM, he held the position of Vice President Manufacturing and Distribution, IBM PC Co. from
April 1994 to January 1995. ‘

JEANNE CoX has been 3Com’s Vice President of Corporate Branding and Communications since
January 2002, Ms. Cox joined 3Com in July 2000 as Vice President of Global Corporate Communications.
Prior to joining 3Com, Ms. Cox worked for Visa International Asia-Pacific as General Manager of
Corporate Relations from 1990 to 1994, and again from 1997 to 2000. From 1994 to 1996, Ms. Cox was the
Vice President of Communications and Marketing Services with Twenty First Century Marketing Group,
and from 1985 to 1990 she served as the Vice President of the Consumer Division with the public relations
firm of Manning, Selvage & Lee in New York City.
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GWEN MCDONALD has been 3Com’s Senior Vice President of Corporate Services since August 2001, and
Interim Senior Vice President of Corporate Services from May 2001 to August 2001. Prior to that,
Ms. McDonald served in various capacities in Human Resources within 3Com for the past 12 years,
including Vice President of worldwide Human Resources for Staffing and Operations and Vice President
of worldwide Human Resources for Supply Operations. Prior to joining 3Com, Ms. McDonald was the HR
manager for LSI Logic’s Santa Clara operations in 1988 and served Fairchild Semiconductor for the
12 years prior to that, holding numerous key HR positions within Fairchild.

MaRK D. MiCHAEL has been 3Com’s Senior Vice President, Legal, General Counsel, and Secretary since
May 1999. Mr. Michael served as Senior Vice President, Legal, General Counsel and Secretary since
September 1997. Mr. Michael joined 3Com in 1984 as Counsel, was named Assistant Secretary in 1985,
and General Counsel in 1986. Prior to joining 3Com, Mr. Michael was engaged in the private practice of
law with law firms in Honolulu, Hawaii from 1977 to 1981 and in San Francisco from 1981 to 1984,

MARK SLAVEN has been 3Com’s Senior Vice President, Finance and Planning, and Chief Financial Officer
since June 2002. Prior to his appointment to this role, Mr. Slaven served as Vice President of Treasury, Tax,
Trade and Investor Relations. Mr. Slaven has been Vice President and Treasurer since August 2000. Prior
to that, Mr. Slaven was Vice President of Finance for Supply Chain Operations since joining the company
through 3Com’s acquisition of U.S. Robotics in June 1997, where he was Vice President of Finance for
U.S. Robotics’ manufacturing division. Before joining U.S. Robotics, Mr. Slaven was Chief Financial
Officer of the personal printer division at Lexmark International Inc.

PART II
ITEM 5. Market for 3Com Corporation’s Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

Fiscal 2002 High  Low  Fiscal 2001 High Low

First Quarter . .............. $5.66 $4.11 FirstQuarter ............... $17.94 $ 9.65
Second Quarter . ............ 480 345 Second Quarter ..... D 20.69 12.25
Third Quarter .............. 685 466 Third Quarter .............. 13.38 7.13
Fourth Quarter ............. 6.48 5.17 Fourth Quarter ............. 7.16 4.55

Our common stock has been traded on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol COMS since our initial
public offering on March 21, 1984. The preceding table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices as
reported on the Nasdaq Stock Market during the last two years. As of July 26, 2002, we had approximately
5,333 stockholders of record. We have not paid and do not anticipate that we will pay cash dividends on
our common stock.

On July 27, 2000, we distributed to our stockholders in the form of a stock dividend 1.4832 shares of Palm
for each outstanding share of 3Com common stock. The stock prices presented above are restated stock
prices and reflect the distribution of our ownership in Palm to our stockholders.
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SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
The following table summarizes our equity compensation plans as of May 31, 2002:

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of equity compensation
securities to be Weighted average plans (excluding
issued upon exercise price of securities reflected in
(Shares in thousands) exercise of options outstanding options 1%t column)
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders . . ................. I 26,613 $7.82 37,499
Equity compensation plans not approved by
stockholders . . .................... 84,489 7.07 72,026
Total . ........ ... ... .. ..., .. R 111,102 $7.25 109,525

|

Options issued and available for future issuance outside of the stockholder-approved plans have been
issued primarily under the 1994 Stock Option Plan, as amended, whose features are substantially similar to
those of the stockholder-approved plans. Also, additional options have been issued outside of stockholder-
approved plans arising from the assumptions of options in connection with acquisitions. No additional
options are available for future issuance under plans assumed from acquisitions.

During the period from June 1, 2002 through July 26, 2002, we have granted an additional 11.6 million
stock options at an average price of $4.49 per share.
ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial information has been derived from the audited consolidated financial
statements. The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of results of future operations and
should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
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Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Fiscal Years ended

: May 31, June 1, June 2, May 28, May 31,
ggr‘f';‘ﬁggfl;lf;ce"el’; L 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Sales...........c. i $1,477,932 $2,820,881 $4,333,942 $5,202,253 $5,156,016
Net income (loss) ............... (595,950)  (965,376) 674,303 403,874 30,214
Income (loss) from continuing

operations . .................. (595,950)  (969,913) 615,563 364,945 23,046
Income (loss) per share, continuing

operations:

Basic............ ... .. $ 171y $  (281) 8 177 8 101 § 0.07

Diluted ..................... (1.71) (2.81) . 1.72 0.99 0.06
Total assets . ................... $2,526,792 $3,456,872 $6,617,774 $4,250,844 $3,875,152

Assets, net of discontinued operations. 2,526,792 3,456,872 5,559,537 4,170,564 3,780,778
Working capital, net of discontinued

operations (1) ................ 1,159,822 1,397,977 3,181,420 2,111,909 1,839,527
Long-term obligations ............ 73,365 10,536 141,285 94,268 92,135
Retained earnings . .............. 35,814 771,639 1,982,079 1,403,709 1,079,775
Stockholders’ equity . ... .......... 1,950,205 2,505,421 4,043,064 3,196,455 2,807,495
Number of employees ............ 4,615 8,165 10,597 12,543 12,610

(1) Working capital is defined as total current assets less total current liabilities.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The foliowing discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto.

Our consolidated financial statements for all periods account for Palm as a discontinued operation, as a
result of our decision to distribute the Palm common stock we owned to 3Com shareholders in the form of
a stock dividend. Unless otherwise indicated, the following discussion relates to our continuing operations.
Subsequent to the distribution to shareholders on July 27, 2000, Palm’s operations ceased to be part of our
operations and reported results.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our significant accounting policies are outlined within Item 8 as Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements. Some of those accounting policies require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported by us. The following items require the most significant judgment and often involve
complex estimation:

Revenue recognition: 'We generally recognize a sale when the product has been delivered and risk of loss
has passed to the customer, collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured, persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists, and the fee is fixed or determinable. The assessment of whether the fee is fixed
or determinable considers whether a significant portion of the fee is due after its normal payment terms. If
we determine that the fee is not fixed or determinable, we recognize revenue at the time the fee becomes
due, provided that all other revenue recognition criteria have been met. Also, sales arrangements,
particularly with CommWorks customers, may contain product acceptance requirements that can impact
the timing of the recognition of the related revenue.
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We assess collectibility based on a number of factors, including general economic and market conditions,
past transaction history with the customer, and the credit-worthiness of the customer. We do not typically
request collateral from our customers. If we determine that collection of the fee is not probable, then we
will defer the fee and recognize revenue upon receipt of payment.

A significant portion of our sales are to distributors and value-added resellers. Revenue is generally
recognized at the time of shipment, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria are met. Sales to these
customers are recorded net of appropriate allowances, including estimates for product returns, price
protection, and potentially excess channel inventory levels.

Service and maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the life of the contract.

Allowance for doubtful accounts: We continuously monitor payments from our customers and maintain
allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make
required payments. When we evaluate the adequacy of our allowances for doubtful accounts, we take into
account various factors including our accounts receivable aging, customer credit-worthiness, historical bad
debts, and geographic and political risk. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. As of
May 31, 2002, our net accounts receivable balance was $147.1 million.

Inventory: Inventory is stated at the lower of standard cost, which approximates cost, or net realizable
value. Cost is based on a first-in, first-out basis. We review net realizable value of inventory, both on hand
as well as for inventory that we are committed to purchase, in detail on an on-going basis, with
consideration given to deterioration, obsolescence, and other factors. If actual market conditions are less
favorable than those projected by management, and our estimates prove to be inaccurate, additional write-
downs or adjustments to recognize additional cost of sales may be required. As of May 31, 2002, our
inventory balance was $61.8 million. '

Gooadwill and intangible assets: We review the value of our long-lived assets, including goodwill, for
impairment whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be fully recoverable or that the useful lives of these assets are no longer appropriate. During
fiscal 2002, we recognized $70.1 million for write downs of goodwill and intangible assets. As of May 31,
2002, we had $94.2 million of goodwill and intangible assets remaining on the balance sheet, the value of
which we believe is realizable based on the estimated future cash flows of the associated products and
technology. However, it is possible that the estimates and assumptions used, such as future sales and
expense levels, in assessing that value may need to be reevaluated in the case of continued market
deterioration, which could result in further impairment of these assets.

Restructuring charges: Over the last several years we have undertaken significant restructuring initiatives,
which have required us to develop formalized plans for exiting certain business activities. These plans have
required us to utilize significant estimates related to held for sale properties, which resulted in both
accelerated depreciation charges and write downs of those properties. In addition, we have had to record
estimated expenses for severance and outplacement costs, lease cancellations, long-term asset write downs,
and other restructuring costs. Given the significance of, and the timing of the execution of such activities,
this process is complex and involves periodic reassessments of estimates made at the time the original
decisions were made. The accounting for restructuring costs and asset impairments requires us to record
provisions and charges when we have a formal and committed plan. Our policies, as supported by current
authoritative guidance, require us to continually evaluate the adequacy of the remaining liabilities under
our restructuring initiatives. As management continues to evaluate the business, there may be additional
charges for new restructuring activities as well as changes in estimates to amounts previously recorded.

Warranty: A limited warranty is provided on our products for periods ranging from 90 days to the lifetime
of the product, depending upon the product, and allowances for estimated warranty costs are recorded
during the period of sale. The determination of such allowances requires us to make estimates of product

29




return rates and expected costs to repair or replace the products under warranty. If actual return rates
and/or repair and replacement costs differ significantly from our estimates, adjustments to recognize
additional cost of sales may be required.

RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES

Beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, we undertook several initiatives aimed at both changing
business strategy as well as improving operational efficiencies. We recorded restructuring charges of
$167.5 million, $163.7 million, and $68.9 million in the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002, June 1, 2001, and
June 2, 2000, respectively.

Actions Related to Reduction in Force and Cost Reduction Efforts

Beginning in the third quarter of fiscal 2001 and continuing through fiscal 2002, we restructured our
operations to enhance the focus and cost effectiveness in serving our markets. Three independent
businesses—Business Connectivity Company, Business Networks Company, and CommWorks
Corporation—were formed through this restructuring effort, with each business utilizing central shared
corporate services. As part of this restructuring effort, we implemented reductions in force and cost
reduction actions aimed at expense and asset reduction; exited our consumer Internet Appliance, cable
modem, and digital subscriber line (DSL) modem product lines; and increased our outsourcing of the
manufacturing of high volume server, desktop and mobile connectivity products in a contract
manufacturing arrangement. Concurrent with such outsourcing, we have been consolidating our real estate
portfolio. We sold our manufacturing and distribution facilities in Singapore in fiscal 2002, and plan to sell
additional facilities in several locations in the United States. For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002 and
June 1, 2001, we recorded charges of approximately $167.6 million and $150.7 million, respectively, related
to these restructuring initiatives. We expect to incur additional charges in fiscal 2003 related to our
continued cost reduction efforts, including the integration of BCC into BNC as announced in June 2002.
Although we are integrating BCC into BNC to realize cost savings from a common infrastructure, the basic
connectivity division within BCC will be reported separately from the integrated BNC to internal
management, including the chief operating decision maker. As a result, the principal operating segments
for fiscal 2003 will be: 1) Business Networks Company, 2) CommWorks, and 3) Connectivity Division.

Exit from the Analog-Only Modem and High-End LAN/WAN Chassis Product Lines and Separation of
Palm

We realigned our strategy in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000 to focus on high-growth markets,
technologies, and products. In support of this strategy, we exited our analog-only modem and high-end
LAN and WAN chassis product lines and completed the separation of Palm. For the fiscal years ended
May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, we recorded a restructuring credit of $0.2 million and a charge of
$13.2 million, respectively, relating to these activities. For the fiscal year ended June 2, 2000, we recorded
net restructuring charges of $59.0 million, consisting of restructuring charges of approximately
$125.4 million, partially offset by a gain recognized upon receipt of a warrant to purchase common stock in
Extreme Networks, Inc., valued at $66.4 million. We also recorded a credit of $0.2 million and charges of
$9.9 million for the fiscal years ended June 1, 2001 and June 2, 2000, respectively, related to the separation
of Palm. We completed our restructuring activities associated with the exit of the analog-only modem and
high-end LAN and WAN chassis product lines during fiscal 2001.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND JOINT VENTURES
We completed the following transactions during the fiscal year ended June 1, 2001:

* During the third quarter of fiscal 2001, we acquired the Gigabit Ethernet NIC business of Alteon
WebSystems (Alteon), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nortel, for an aggregate purchase price of
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$123.0 million, consisting of cash paid to Nortel of $122.0 million and $1.0 million of costs directly
attributable to the completion of the acquisition. We purchased the Alteon NIC business and are
licensing certain Gigabit Ethernet-related technology and intellectual property from Alteon.

Approximately $22.5 million of the aggregate purchase price represented purchased in-process
technology that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use, and
was charged to operations in the third quarter of fiscal 2001. A risk adjusted after-tax discount rate
of 25 percent was applied to the in-process project’s cash flows. This purchase resulted in
$86.0 million of goodwill and other intangible assets that were being amortized over an estimated
useful life of four years.

In fiscal 2002, we determined that lower than anticipated revenue growth resulted in an impairment
of the goodwill and developed product technology that arose from the acquisition of Alteon. These
intangible assets were written down $50.9 million to fair value, which was estimated using
discounted future cash flows. The impairment charge was included in amortization and write down
of intangibles, and is a component of contribution margin for BCC as reported in Note 18 of the
consolidated financial statements. As a result of the analysis, we wrote down all of the Alteon-
related goodwill and a portion of the Alteon developed product technology. Remaining net
intangible assets continue to be amortized over their original useful lives.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2001, we acquired Nomadic Technologies, Inc. (Nomadic), a
developer of wireless networking products that we have incorporated into solutions for both small
business and enterprise customers, for an aggregate purchase price of $31.8 million, consisting of
cash paid to Nomadic of $23.5 million, issuance of restricted stock with a fair value of $3.8 million,
stock options assumed with a fair value of $4.3 million, and $0.2 million of costs directly attributable
to the completion of the acquisition.

For financial reporting purposes, the aggregate purchase price was reduced by the intrinsic value of
unvested stock options and restricted stock totaling $6.9 million, which was recorded as deferred
stock-based compensation and is being amortized over the respective vesting periods.
Approximately $8.3 million of the aggregate purchase price represented purchased in-process
technology that had not yet reached technological feasibility, had no alternative future use, and was
charged to operations in the second quarter of fiscal 2001. A risk adjusted after-tax discount rate of
30 percent was applied to the in-process projects’ cash flows. This purchase resulted in $18.6 million
of goodwill and other intangible assets that were being amortized over estimated useful lives of
three to five years. Finite-lived intangible assets continue to be amortized over their original useful
lives, whereas remaining indefinite-lived intangible assets will no longer be amortized, but reviewed
for impairment at least annually in accordance with our adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (SFAS) 142, effective June 1, 2002.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2001, we acquired Kerbango, Inc. (Kerbango), developer of the
Kerbango™ Internet radio, radio tuning system, and radio web site, for an aggregate purchase price
of $73.5 million, consisting of cash paid to Kerbango of $52.2 million, issuance of restricted stock
with a fair value of $17.2 million, stock options assumed with a fair value of $3.8 million, and
$0.3 million of costs directly attributable to the completion of the acquisition. In addition, deferred
cash payments to founders and certain former employees totaling $7.7 million were contingent
upon certain events occurring through July 2002.

For financial reporting purposes, the aggregate purchase price, excluding deferred cash payments,
was reduced by the intrinsic value of unvested stock options and restricted stock totaling
$20.2 million, which was recorded as deferred stock-based compensation and was being amortized
over the respective vesting periods. Approximately $29.4 million of the aggregate purchase price
represented purchased in-process technology that had not yet reached technological feasibility and
had no alternative future use, and was charged to operations in the first quarter of fiscal 2001. A
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risk adjusted after-tax discount rate of 35 percent was applied to the in-process project’s cash flows.
This purchase resulted in $33.7 million of goodwill and other intangible assets that were being
amortized over estimated useful lives of three to five years.

As part of our efforts to improve profitability, we announced that we would exit the Internet
Appliance product line during fiscal year 2001. As a result, we determined that the net unamortized
assets had no remaining future value and consequently wrote off the net remaining amounts of
deferred stock-based compensation, goodwill, and intangible assets. This included $15.5 million of
accelerated amortization of deferred stock-based compensation for qualified terminated Kerbango
employees and $21.1 million of net goodwill and intangible assets related to the Kerbango
acquisition. These charges were included as part of restructuring charges in fiscal 2001.

* During the first quarter of fiscal 2001, we completed the transfer of our analog-only modem product
lines to U.S. Robotics Corporation (New USR), the new joint venture formed with Accton and
NatSteel Electronics. We contributed $3.1 million of assets to New USR for an 18.7% investment in
the joint venture. New USR assumed the analog-only modem product line, including U.S. Robotics
and U.S. Robotics Courier branded modems.

During fiscal 2001, we wrote off our $3.1 million investment in New USR as the value of this
+ investment was determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired. The amount was charged to
gains (losses) on investments, net.

We completed the following transactions during the fiscal year ended June 2, 2000:

* During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, we acquired Call Technologies, Inc. (Call Technologies), a
developer of Unified Messaging (UM) and carrier-class Operational Systems and Support (OSS)
software solutions for service providers, for an aggregate purchase price of $86.0 million, consisting
of cash of approximately $73.4 million, assumption of stock options with a fair value of
approximately $8.6 million, the assumption of $1.4 million in debt, and $2.6 million of costs directly
attributable to the completion of the acquisition. Approximately $10.6 million of the total purchase
price represented purchased in-process technology that had not yet reached technological
feasibility, had no alternative future use, and was charged to operations in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2000. This purchase resulted in approximately $86.7 million of goodwill and other intangible
assets that were being amortized over estimated useful lives of three to seven years.

The weakened telecommunications industry conditions in fiscal 2002 and 2001 resulted in the
impairments of the goodwill and related intangible assets that arose from the Call Technologies
acquisition. These assets were written down $15.3 million and $18.2 million in fiscal 2002 and 2001,
respectively, to fair value, which was estimated using discounted future cash flows. The write down
in fiscal 2002 related to goodwill and acquired customer relationships. The fiscal 2001 write down
included a portion of the developed technology and associated goodwill. These impairment charges
were included in amortization and write down of intangibles, and are components of contribution
margin for CommWorks as reported in Note 18 of the consolidated financial statements. Remaining
net finite-lived intangible assets continue to be amortized over their original useful lives, whereas
remaining indefinite-lived intangible assets will no longer be amortized, but reviewed for
impairment at least annually in accordance with our adoption of SFAS 142, effective June 1, 2002.

* During the third quarter of fiscal 2000, we acquired LANSource Technologies, Inc. (LANSource), a
developer of Internet and LAN fax software and modem sharing software, for an aggregate
purchase price of $15.8 million in cash, including $0.2 million of costs directly attributable to the
completion of the acquisition. Approximately $2.9 million of the total purchase price represented
purchased in-process technology that had not yet reached technological feasibility, had no
alternative future use, and was charged to operations in the third quarter of fiscal 2000. This
purchase resulted in approximately $13.3 million of goodwill and other intangible assets that were
being amortized over estimated useful lives of two to five years.
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As part of our efforts to improve profitability in fiscal 2001, we decided that we would exit certain
LANSource product lines and license the technology to a former competitor in that market. As a
result of this decision, we determined that an impairment of developed technology and related
goodwill that arose from the LANSource acquisition had occurred. These assets were written down
$1.1 million to their estimated realizable fair value. This amount was included in restructuring
charges in fiscal 2001. Also in fiscal 2001, we determined that a customer’s product line
discontinuation resulted in an impairment of a license agreement and related goodwill that arose
from the LANSource acquisition. Those assets were determined to have no future value, and
accordingly $1.0 million was written off.

In fiscal 2002, weakened telecommunications industry conditions indicated further impairment of
LANSource goodwill and intangible assets, primarily for core technology and related goodwill.
These assets were written down approximately $3.9 million to fair value, which was estimated using
discounted future cash flows. The $3.9 million and $1.0 million impairment charges recorded in
fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively, were included in amortization and write down of intangibles, and
are components of contribution margin for CommWorks as reported in Note 18 of the consolidated
financial statements. Remaining net finite-lived intangible assets continue to be amortized over
their original useful lives, whereas remaining indefinite-lived intangible assets will no longer be
amortized, but reviewed for impairment at least annually in accordance with our adoption of
SFAS 142, effective June 1, 2002.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2000, we acquired Interactive Web Concepts, Inc. (IWC), an
Internet business consulting, creative design, and software engineering firm, for an aggregate
purchase price of $3.5 million in cash, including $0.1 million of costs directly attributable to the
completion of the acquisition. This purchase resulted in approximately $4.1 million of goodwill and
other intangible assets that were being amortized over estimated useful lives of three years.

As part of our efforts to-improve profitability, we decided that we would discontinue providing IWC
services during fiscal year 2001. As a result, we determined that the net unamortized assets had no
remaining future value and consequently wrote off $2.1 million, which was the net remaining
amount of goodwill and intangible assets. This amount was included in restructuring charges in
fiscal 2001.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal years indicated, the percentage of total sales represented by the
line iterns reflected in our consolidated statements of operations:

Fiscal Years Ended

May 31, Junel, June?2,
2002 2001 2000

Sales .. e e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costofsales .. ... .. e 67.6 81.1 57.1
Gross MATZIN . . . vt ottt et e et e e e e e e 324 18.9 429
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing . ...... ... e e e 224 28.4 22.0
Research and development . ......... ... ... . .. 19.3 19.0 13.8
General and administrative .. ........ ... ... . i 89 6.5 49
Amortization and write-down of intangibles . ... .......... .. ... .. .. 7.9 25 0.6
Restructuring charges .......... ... .. . . 11.3 5.8 1.6
Losses (gains) on land and facilities, net. . .. ............ ... ... .. 0.1 (6.3) (0.6)
Purchased in-process technology ............ ... .. ... ... ... — 21 0.3
Merger-related credits, net. . .. ... ... ... L — — 0.1)
Total operating eXpenses . ... ... . ... 69.9 580 425
Operating income (0SS} . . ..o v i e (37.5) (39.1) 0.4
Gains (losses) on investments, Net . . ... ...ttt iru i, (1.2) 0.7y 194
Litigation settlement . . . . ... ...t — (8.8) —
Interest and other income, net .......... ... ... . ... .. .., 4.6 5.1 2.4
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and equity
INEETESES . . . o oo e (34.1) (435) 222
Income tax provision (benefit). .. ....... ... .. . o 6.2 9.1) 7.9
Other interests in loss of consolidated joint venture . .................. — — —
Equity interest in loss of unconsolidated investee . .................... — — 0.1
Income (loss) from continuing operations . .............c..vivvinu... (403) (344) 142
Income from discontinued operations . ............... ... ... ... — 0.2 14
Netincome (I0SS) . .« . . oottt e e (40.3)% (34.2)% 15.6%

Comparison of fiscal years ended May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001

Sales

Fiscal 2002 sales totaled $1,477.9 million, a decrease of 48 percent from fiscal 2001 sales of
$2,820.9 million. During fiscal 2002, our principal operating segments were: 1) Business Networks
Company, 2) Business Connectivity Company, and 3) CommWorks.

Business Networks Company. Sales of BNC products (switches, hubs, networked telephony, wireless
LANs, and customer service and support) in fiscal 2002 were $773.7 million, a decrease of 27 percent from
fiscal 2001 sales of $1,057.0 million. The decline in sales of BNC products, particularly in stackable and
* small business switches and hubs, when compared to fiscal 2001 was due primarily to weaker industry
conditions as a result of the continued economic downturn. Additionally, BNC products in general
experienced average selling price (ASP) erosion due to increased competition. Service revenue decreased
due to fewer maintenance contract renewals. Offsetting the general trend, BNC experienced an increase in
sales of its Stackable Gigabit Ethernet switching products. Sales of BNC products represented 52 percent
of total sales in fiscal 2002 compared to 37 percent of total sales in fiscal 2001.
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Business Connectivity Company.  Sales of BCC products (wired and wireless NICs and PC cards, LAN On
Motherboard ASICs, and Mini-PCI) in fiscal 2002 were $474.8 million, a decrease of 51 percent from fiscal
2001 sales of $966.5 million. The decrease in sales of BCC products when compared to fiscal 2001 was due
primarily to lower ASPs and declining unit sales. Factors that reduced ASPs were a shift in the market from
NICs and PC Cards to the lower priced LOM and Mini-PCI form factors, an increase in the proportion of
sales to OEMs, and pressure from increased competition. Unit sales also declined as lower priced form
factors—in particular the connectivity that is integrated into the Bridgechip set of the PC—began to
replace NICs and LOMs, and due to the economic downturn that started after the first quarter of fiscal
2001. These declines were partially offset by increased sales of our Gigabit Ethernet NIC products, as more
high-end users demanded the faster connectivity available through Gigabit products. Sales of BCC
products represented 32 percent of total sales in fiscal 2002 compared to 34 percent of total sales in fiscal
2001. As the market shifts towards the LOM form factor, we expect a continued downward trend in the
sales of BCC products, due partially to the lower ASPs generated by these products, but more significantly
due to our overall lower market share in this segment of the market.

CommWorks. Sales of CommWorks products (hardware platforms for wireline and wireless access,
software and softswitch elements that enable services to be delivered over these platforms, and
professional services for network service providers) in fiscal 2002 were $219.0 million, a decrease of
approximately $180.7 million, or 45 percent, compared to fiscal 2001. The decline in sales compared to a
year ago was experienced in both wireline and wireless products, and was due to significantly weakened
market conditions in the telecommunications industry, resulting in significantly reduced capital
expenditures by telecommunications carriers and service providers and, as a result, reduced purchases of
our wireline and wireless access products. Sales of CommWorks products represented 15 percent of total
sales in fiscal 2002 compared to 14 percent of total sales in fiscal 2001. The amounts and timing of future
capital expenditures by carriers and service providers is highly uncertain in light of the current depressed
industry market conditions, and we do not anticipate any significant improvement in overall industry
market conditions in the near future.

Exited Product Lines. Sales of exited product lines (consumer cable and DSL modem products,
analog-only modems, high-end LAN and WAN chassis products, and internet appliances) in fiscal 2002
were $10.5 million, a decrease of 97 percent from fiscal 2001 sales of $397.6 million. The majority of fiscal
2002 sales of exited products took place in the first fiscal quarter. This substantial elimination of sales of
these products was due to our change in strategic focus. We will, however, recognize revenue relating to
these products in fiscal 2003 that was deferred as of May 31, 2002. Sales of exited products represented one
percent of total sales in fiscal 2002 compared to 14 percent of total sales in fiscal 2001.

Geographic. U.S. sales represented 40 percent of total sales in fiscal 2002 compared to 45 percent in fiscal
2001, and decreased 54 percent when compared to fiscal 2001. International sales in fiscal 2002 decreased
42 percent when compared to fiscal 2001. The overall decline in both U.S. and international sales is largely
attributable to the wgrldwide deteriorating economic conditions, especially in the telecommunications
industry.

Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of sales was 32.4 percent in fiscal 2002, compared to 18.9 percent in fiscal
2001. Gross margin improved seven percentage points due to reductions in period costs, which were higher
in fiscal 2001 as a result of provisions for excess and obsolete inventory due to reduced demand and the

discontinuation of our consumer product lines. Gross margin improved four percentage points due to
increases in standard margins. Standard margin improved primarily due to the discontinuation of
low-margin consumer products and cost reductions in BNC products. These improvements were partially
offset by increased price competition and a mix shift towards lower margin BCC OEM products. Gross
margin improved three percentage points in fiscal 2002 due primarily to the elimination of minimum
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volume purchase commitments with subcontract manufacturers that we incurred in fiscal 2001. Sales of
previously written off inventory did not materially improve gross margin in fiscal 2002.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses in fiscal 2002 were $1,032.3 million, or 69.9 percent of sales, compared to
$1,635.8 million, or 58.0 percent of sales, in fiscal 2001. Excluding amortization and write down of
intangibles of $116.7 million, restructuring charges of $167.5 million, and net losses on land and facilities of
$1.4 million, operating expenses were $746.8 million, or 50.5 percent of sales for fiscal 2002. Excluding
amortization and write down of intangibles of $69.7 million, restructuring charges of $163.7 million, net
gains on land and facilities of $178.8 million, purchased in-process technology charges of $60.2 million, and
net merger-related credits of $0.7 million, operating expenses were $1,521.8 million, or 53.9 percent of
sales for fiscal 2001.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses in fiscal 2002 decreased $473.3 million, or
58.9 percent, from fiscal 2001. Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of sales decreased to
22.4 percent of sales in fiscal 2002 compared to 28.4 percent of sales in fiscal 2001. The year-over-year
decrease in sales and marketing expenses was attributable to lower selling expenses resulting from the
decrease in sales, the exit of product lines associated with our restructuring activities, reduced headcount,
and other cost reduction efforts. In addition, fiscal 2001 had higher than normal spending for corporate
branding programs.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses in fiscal 2002 decreased $250.1 million,
or 46.7 percent, compared to fiscal 2001. Research and development expenses as a percentage of sales in
fiscal 2002 were relatively flat as compared to fiscal 2001. The year-over-year decrease in research and
development expenses in absolute dollars was primarily due to headcount reductions and cost reduction
efforts, especially in our discontinued and mature product lines. We expect research and development
expenses will decrease in absolute dollars in future periods as we consolidate our projects into a fewer
number of lower-cost locations.

General and Administrative.  General and administrative expenses in fiscal 2002 decreased $51.5 million,
or 28.3 percent, from fiscal 2001. As a percentage of sales, general and administrative expenses increased
to 8.9 percent of sales in fiscal 2002 compared to 6.5 percent of sales in fiscal 2001. The year-over-year
decrease in general and administrative expenses in absolute dollars was primarily due to decreased
headcount, cost reduction efforts, and lower legal expenses relating to patent prosecution. In fiscal 2002
there were fewer new patent filings because of reduced research and development activities. The
year-over-year increase as a percentage of sales was due to our inability to reduce fixed costs at the same
rate as our decline in sales. We expect that general and administrative expenses will decrease in absolute
dollars in future periods.

Amortization and Write Down of Intangibles. Amortization and write down of intangibles in fiscal 2002 of
$116.7 million increased $47.0 million, compared to $69.7 million in fiscal 2001. QCharges in fiscal 2002
included $70.1 million of write downs for impairment of intangibles and $46.6 million of amortization.
Impairment charges in fiscal 2002 include $50.9 million for goodwill and developed product technology
related to the Alteon acquisition, $15.3 million for goodwill and acquired customer relationships related to
the Call Technologies acquisition, and $3.9 million related primarily to core technology and related
goodwill that arose from the LANSource acquisition. As discussed in “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis-Effects of Recent Accounting Pronouncements,” we adopted SFAS 142 at the beginning of fiscal
2003. While we are still in the process of determining the impact of impairment losses, if any, arising from
the initial application of SFAS 142, the amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
ceased as of June 1, 2002. At the time of our adoption of SFAS 142, assuming no future impairments,
amortization for fiscal 2003 will be approximately $9.6 million.
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Restructuring Charges. During fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001, we undertook several initiatives aimed at both
changing business strategy as well as improving operational efficiencies. Restructuring charges in fiscal
2002 and fiscal 2001 were $167.5 million and $163.7 million, respectively. Expenses for fiscal 2002 included
$93.9 million for facility-related charges, comprised of $41.4 million for accelerated depreciation on our
Mount Prospect facility, $24.4 million in write downs of held for sale property, $14.3 million for the loss on
the sale of our Singapore manufacturing facility, and $13.8 million for other facility charges; $53.0 million
for severance and outplacement costs; $13.6 million for long-term asset write-downs, and $7.1 million for
other restructuring charges., These charges were the result of both cost reduction actions we took to
restructure our operations that were announced on December 21, 2000, consolidation of our
manufacturing facilities and the discontinuation of our consumer cable and DSL modem product lines as
announced during June 2001, and continued efforts to improve our cost structure.

The write downs of held for sale property in fiscal 2002 related to our Mount Prospect facility and a
portion of the Santa Clara campus. Depreciation is stopped on held for sale properties, and any related
rental income is recorded as an offset to operating expenses, as is all rental income. Rental income for both
owned and leased properties was $41.9 million, $32.6 million, and $8.6 million for fiscal 2002, 2001, and
2000, respectively. We have properties held for sale in Santa Clara, Mount Prospect, and Salt Lake City,
and the total net book value of assets associated with these properties was $71.6 million as of May 31, 2002.
As discussed in Note 21 of the consolidated financial statements, we sold our Mount Prospect property in
the first quarter of fiscal 2003.

Restructuring charges in fiscal 2001 were due to both our restructuring plans announced on December 21,
2000, as well as our exit of our analog-only modem and high-end LAN and WAN chassis product lines.

Losses (Gains) on Land and Facilities, Net. Net loss on land and facilities was $1.4 million for fiscal 2002.
This was due to the write down of held for sale property in Salt Lake City that was classified as such prior
to the inception of our restructuring program. During fiscal 2001, 3Com finalized the sale of a 39-acre
parcel of undeveloped land in San Jose, California to a financial institution as directed by Palm for total
net proceeds of approximately $215.6 million. 3Com recorded a net gain of $174.4 million related to this
sale. In February 2001, 3Com sold a vacated office and manufacturing building in Morton Grove, Illinois
for total net proceeds of $12.4 million, resulting in a gain of approximately $4.4 million.

Gains (Losses) on Investments, Net

During fiscal 2002, net losses on investments were $17.9 million, comprised of $30.5 million of net losses
recognized due to fair value adjustments of investments in limited partnership venture capital funds and
write downs of other-than-temporary declines in value of investments in private companies, offset by
$12.6 million of net gains realized on sales of publicly traded equity securities. In fiscal 2001, net losses on
investments were $18.6 million, comprised of $135.7 million of net losses recognized due to fair value
adjustments of investments in limited partnership venture capital funds and write downs of
other-than-temporary declines in value of both publicly traded securities and investments in private
companies, offset by $117.1 million of net gains realized on sales of publicly traded equity securities.

Interest and Other Income, Net

Interest and other income, net was $67.4 million in fiscal 2002, compared to $144.6 million in fiscal 2001.
The decrease of $70.2 million compared to fiscal 2001 was primarily due to lower interest income as a
result of lower cash and short-term investment balances as well as lower interest rates, plus higher interest
expense due to borrowings on our term loan and revolving line of credit, partially offset by $12.1 million of
interest income on a tax refund received in the second quarter of fiscal 2002.
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Income Tax Provision (Benefit)

Our income tax expense was 18.1 percent of our pre-tax loss in fiscal 2002, compared to an effective
income tax benefit rate of 21.0 percent in fiscal 2001. Our fiscal 2002 expense is due to providing income
taxes in foreign and state jurisdictions and the write down of the domestic deferred tax asset that had been
supported by the appreciation in our real estate portfolio. However, due to the decline in the commercial
real estate market, realization became uncertain and this tax asset was written down during fiscal 2002. At
May 31, 2002, the remaining net deferred tax asset reflects foreign deductible temporary differences.
Although realization is not assured, we believe that it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax asset
will be realized by our foreign subsidiaries.

Comparison of fiscal years ended June 1, 2001 and June 2, 2000

Sales

Fiscal 2001 sales totaled $2,820.9 million, a decrease of 35 percent from fiscal 2000 sales of
$4,333.9 million.

Business Networks Company. Sales of BNC products in fiscal 2001 were $1,057.0 million, a decrease of
25 percent from fiscal 2000 sales of $1,416.6 million. The decrease in sales of BNC products when
compared to fiscal 2000 was due primarily to our stackable and modular switch products and professional
service revenue. The decrease in product sales was due to weaker industry conditions as a result of the
economic downturn. We also experienced ASP erosion due to increased competition. In addition, the
exiting of our large, complex chassis products at the end of fiscal 2000 and cost reduction efforts in fiscal
2001 also resulted in disruptions in sales of our ongoing products. The decrease in sales was partially offset
by growth in new product and market segments such as Gigabit switching, LAN telephony and wireless
LANSs. Professional service revenue decreased due to fewer integration and consulting projects. The
decrease in projects was attributable to both the decline in sales of products and a shift in product mix
towards solutions that were easier to install. Sales of BNC products represented 37 percent of total sales in
fiscal 2001 compared to 33 percent of total sales in fiscal 2000.

Business Connectivity Company. Sales of BCC products in fiscal 2001 were $966.5 million, a decrease of
25 percent from fiscal 2000 sales of $1,280.0 million. The decrease in sales of BCC products when
compared to fiscal 2000 was due primarily to sharp declines in ASPs. Decreases in ASPs were caused by a
product transition from NICs and PC Cards to LOM and Mini-PCI form factors and pricing pressures
from OEM partners. The decrease in sales was partially offset by growth in Gigabit NICs, with the
penetration of this market partially aided by the fiscal 2001 acquisition of Alteon. Sales of BCC products
represented 34 percent of total sales in fiscal 2001 compared to 30 percent of total sales in fiscal 2000.

CommWorks. Sales of CommWorks products in fiscal 2001 were $399.7 million, a decrease of 31 percent
from fiscal 2000 sales of $577.8 million. The decrease in sales of CommWorks products when compared to
fiscal 2000 was due primarily to the slowdown in the telecommunications industry, which resulted in a
significant decline in revenues from our wireline products, partially offset by growth of our wireless
products. Sales of CommWorks products represented 14 percent of total sales in fiscal 2001 compared to
13 percent of total sales in fiscal 2000.

Exited Product Lines. Sales of exited product lines in fiscal 2001 were $397.6 million, a decrease of
62 percent from fiscal 2000 sales of $1,059.6 million. The decrease in sales of exited product lines when
compared to fiscal 2000 was due primarily to the impact of our business restructuring and change in
strategic focus. Sales of exited products represented 14 percent of total sales in fiscal 2001 compared to
24 percent of total sales in fiscal 2000.

Geographic. U.S. sales represented 45 percent of total sales in fiscal 2001 compared to 49 percent in fiscal
2000 and decreased 40 percent when compared to fiscal 2000. International sales in fiscal 2001 decreased

'
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30 percent when compared to fiscal 2000. The overall decline in both U.S. and international sales was
largely attributable to the worldwide deteriorating economic conditions, especially in the
telecommunications industry.

Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of sales was 18.9 percent in fiscal 2001, compared to 42.9 percent in fiscal
2000. Gross margin declined ten percentage points in fiscal 2001 due to reductions in standard margin. The
decline in standard margin was primarily caused by a mix shift to lower-margin commercial access and
consumer broadband modem products and eroding prices on LAN infrastructure, NIC, and PC Card
products. Gross margin declined eight percentage points in fiscal 2001 resulting from higher provisions for
excess and obsolete inventory due to reduced demand and the discontinuation of our consumer product
lines. Gross margin declined six percentage points in fiscal 2001 due to underutilized capacity in our
manufacturing plants and commitment shortfalls with subcontract manufacturers. We also recorded a
liability related to future contractual commitments with a subcontract manufacturer as a result of our
intention to exit our consumer product lines and the reduction in sales demand.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses in fiscal 2001 were $1,635.8 million, or 58.0 percent of sales, compared to
$1,839.2 million, or 42.5 percent of sales in fiscal 2000. Excluding amortization and write down of
intangibles of $69.7 million, restructuring charges of $163.7 million, net gains on land and facilities of
$178.8 million, purchased in-process technology charges of $60.2 million, and net merger-related credits of
$0.7 million, operating expenses were $1,521.8 million, or 53.9 percent of sales for fiscal 2001. Excluding
amortization and write down of intangibles of $24.5 million, restructuring charges of $68.9 million, net
gains on land and facilities of $25.5 million, purchased in-process technology charges of $13.5 million, and
net merger-related credits of $2.3 million, operating expenses were $1,760.1 million, or 40.6 percent of
sales for fiscal 2000.

Sales and Marketing.  Sales and marketing expenses in fiscal 2001 decreased $145.2 million or 15.3 percent
from fiscal 2000. Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of sales increased to 28.4 percent of sales in
fiscal 2001 compared to 22.0 percent of sales in fiscal 2000. The year-over-year decrease in sales and
marketing expenses in absolute dollars was attributable to lower selling expenses resulting from the
decease in sales, the exit of product lines associated with our restructuring activities, reduced headcount,
and other cost-reduction efforts. These decreases were partially offset by increased spending on corporate
advertising and brand recognition programs. The year-over-year increase as a percentage of sales was
affected by the decline in sales greater than the decrease in sales force and related expenses as described
above.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses in fiscal 2001 decreased $62.1 million, or
10.4 percent, compared to fiscal 2000, Research and development expenses as a percentage of sales
increased to 19.0 percent of sales in fiscal 2001 compared to 13.8 percent of sales in fiscal 2000. The
year-over-year decrease in research and development expenses in absolute dollars was primarily due to
headcount reductions and cost reduction efforts, especially in our discontinued and mature product lines.
These cost savings were partially offset by additional investments in technologies such as LAN telephony,
wireless LANs and next generation wireless access infrastructure carrier products. The year-over-year
increase as a percentage of sales was affected by the decline in sales in fiscal 2001, as described above.

General and Administrative.  General and administrative expenses in fiscal 2001 decreased $31.0 million or
14.5 percent from fiscal 2000. As a percentage of sales, general and administrative expenses increased to
6.5 percent of sales in fiscal 2001 compared to 4.9 percent of sales in fiscal 2000. The year-over-year
decrease in general and administrative expenses in absolute dollars was primarily due to decreased
headcount, cost reduction efforts, and lower consulting costs associated with our restructuring activities. In
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addition, provisions for bad debts were significantly lower than fiscal 2000 due to the drop in sales volume.
The year-over-year increase as a percentage of sales was affected by the decline in sales in fiscal 2001, as
described above, partially offset by the decrease in expenses.

Amortization and Write Down of Intangibles. Amortization and write down of intangibles was $69.7 million
in fiscal 2001, which included $42.6 million of amortization and $27.1 million of write downs for
impairments of intangibles. Impairment charges in fiscal 2001 included $18.2 million of developed
technology and associated goodwill related to the Call Technologies acquisition, $5.8 million for remaining
net intangible assets and goodwill related to our acquisition of EuPhonics, Inc., $2.1 million for remaining
net intangible assets and goodwill related to the IWC acquisition, and $1.0 million for a license agreement
related to the LANSouce acquisition. Amortization for fiscal 2000 was $24.5 million. There were no
impairment charges in fiscal 2000.

Restructuring Charges. During fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000, we undertook several initiatives aimed at both
changing business strategy as well as improving operational efficiencies, and recorded restructuring
charges of $163.7 million and $68.9 million in fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively. Restructuring charges
incurred during fiscal 2001 included $81.8 million for net severance and outplacement costs; $69.3 million
for long-term asset write downs, including $24.3 million for the impairment on goodwill and acquisition-
related intangibles; and $18.0 million of other restructuring expenses, including an $11.7 million loss on the
sale of our manufacturing and distribution operations to MSL; offset by credits of $5.2 million for facilities
lease terminations and $0.2 million related to the Palm separation. Restructuring charges in fiscal 2001
related largely to the realignment of our business strategy and reduction in force and cost reduction efforts.
Restructuring charges in fiscal 2000 were $68.9 million, of which $9.9 million related to the separation of
Palm from 3Com and $59.0 million related to implementing our change in strategic focus, including the
exit from the high-end LAN and WAN chassis products.

Losses (Gains) on Land and Facilities, Net. During fiscal 2001, 3Com finalized the sale of a 39-acre parcel
of undeveloped land in San Jose, California to a financial institution as directed by Palm for total net
proceeds of approximately $215.6 million. 3Com recorded a net gain of $174.4 million related to this sale.
In February 2001, 3Com sold a vacated office and manufacturing building in Morton Grove for total net
proceeds of $12.4 million, resulting in a gain of approximately $4.4 million. During fiscal 2000, we sold our
manufacturing facility and related assets in Salt Lake City and recognized an impairment charge for our
remaining Salt Lake City facility held for sale, which together resulted in a net gain of $25.5 million.

Purchased In-Process Technology. During fiscal 2001, we recorded a charge for purchased in-process
technology of approximately $60.2 million associated with the acquisitions of certain assets of Alteon,
Nomadic, and Kerbango. We continued to develop technologies that were in process at Alteon, Nomadic,
and Kerbango as of the dates of the acquisitions. The fair values of the existing products and technology
currently under development were determined using the income approach, which discounts expected
future cash flows to present value. The discount rates used in the present value calculations were typically
derived from a weighted-average cost of capital analysis, adjusted upward to reflect additional risks
inherent in the development life cycle. The costs to be incurred for the projects in process were primarily
labor costs for design, prototype development, and testing. As of the acquisition dates, purchased
in-process technology was approximately 70% complete for Alteon projects and 75% complete for both
Kerbango and Nomadic projects. We continued development of nine projects, and spent approximately
$0.5 million, $4.8 million and $0.6 million on Alteon, Kerbango and Nomadic projects, respectively, as of
June 1, 2001. At the end of fiscal 2001, all purchased in-process technology projects were completed or
terminated.

Merger-Related (Credits) Charges, Net. During fiscal 2001, we recorded net pre-tax merger-related credits
of approximately $0.7 million. This net amount reflects adjustments to previously recorded merger and
restructuring charges.
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Gains (Losses) on Investments, Net

Net losses on investments of $18.6 million were recorded during fiscal 2001, comprised of $135.7 million of
net losses recognized due to fair value adjustments of investments in limited partnership venture capital
funds and write downs for other-than-temporary declines in value of both publicly traded securities and
investments in private companies, offset by $117.1 million of net gains realized on sales of publicly traded
equity securities, During fiscal 2000, gains on investments were $838.8 million, comprised of $792.7 million
of net gains realized on sales of publicly traded equity securities and $46.1 million of net gains recognized
due to fair value adjustments of investments in limited partnership venture capital funds and in private
companies acquired by public companies.

Litigation’ Settlement

We recorded a charge of $250.0 million during fiscal 2001 for the settlement of the Reiver and Adler cases,
as discussed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest and Other Incomé, Net

Interest and other income, net was $144.6 million in fiscal 2001, compared to $104.3 million in fiscal 2000.
The increase of $40.3 million compared to fiscal 2000 was primarily due to higher interest income,
attributable to higher average cash and short-term investment balances, as well as higher interest rates.

Income Tax Provision

Our effective income tax benefit rate was 21.0 percent in fiscal 2001 compared to an effective income tax
expense rate of 35.5 percent in fiscal 2000. The fiscal 2001 benefit rate was comprised of a tax benefit on
the United States federal tax loss, offset by tax provisions in certain foreign countries, a valuation
allowance on deferred taxes, and non-deductible expenses related to acquisitions. The valuation allowance
reduced deferred tax assets to estimated realizable value. The valuation allowance related to a portion of
the credit and net operating loss carryforwards and other temporary differences for which we believed that
realization was uncertain due to various limitations on their use and our operating losses.

Equity Interest in Loss of Unconsolidated Investee

In fiscal 2000, we invested $7.0 million in OmniSky Corporation (OmniSky). This investment was
accounted for using the equity method, resulting in losses of $1.4 million and $5.6 million in fiscal 2001 and
2000, respectively.

Income from Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations includes the results of operations of Palm. Income from
discontinued operations for the fiscal year ended June 1, 2001 was $4.5 million, or $0.01 per share,
compared to $58.7 million, or $0.16 per share for fiscal 2000.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our cash and equivalents and short-term investments at May 31, 2002 were $1,382.0 million, a decrease of
approximately $258.2 million from $1,640.2 million at June 1, 2001.

For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002, net cash used in operating activities was $139.4 million. Cash flows
used in operating activities resulted primarily from the net loss of $596.0 million, partially offset by
non-cash expenses. Accounts receivable at May 31, 2002 decreased $143.8 million from June 1, 2001 due
primarily to the decrease in sales from the prior year. Days sales outstanding in net receivables decreased
to 39 days at May 31, 2002, compared to 56 days at June 1, 2001, due primarily to improved collection
efforts and a higher percentage of sales occurring during the last month of the fiscal year ended June 1,
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2001 compared to sales in the last month of the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. Inventory levels at May 31,
2002 decreased $125.3 million from the prior fiscal year-end due to increasing our outsourced
manufacturing and improved supply chain cycle time. Other assets at May 31, 2002 decreased $69.7 million
from June 1, 2001, primarily due to the collection of non trade receivables and the return of a $16.0 million
long term deposit from the Singapore government related to the sale of our Singapore facility. Net
deferred tax assets at May 31, 2002 decreased $78.4 million from June 1, 2001, primarily due to the write
down of our deferred tax assets. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and other at May 31, 2002
decreased $466.0 million from June 1, 2001, primarily attributable to payments of manufacturing
commitments, decreases in inventory purchases due to the outsourced manufacturing and better inventory
management, reduced payroll and related accruals for the payment of severance and decreased headcount,
and lower deferred revenue balances associated with reduced service maintenance contracts. Income taxes
receivable/payable changed $76.2 million, mainly due to the collection of a $93 million income tax refund.

For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, we made investments totaling $745.6 million and
$644.3 million, respectively, in municipal and corporate bonds and government agency instruments, as well
as investments totaling $12.4 million and $99.3 million, respectively, in equity securities. For the fiscal years
ended May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, proceeds from maturities and sales of municipal and corporate
bonds and government agency instruments were $772.0 million and $1,294.9 million, respectively, and
proceeds from the sales of equity investments totaled $34.6 million and $232.3 million, respectively.

As part of 3Com Ventures, we selectively make strategic investments in privately-held companies and in
limited partnership venture capital funds, which in turn invest in privately-held companies. Frequently, we
also have a strategic commercial or technology relationship, such as a component supply agreement or
technology license arrangement, with these privately-held companies. We believe these investments
complement our business strategies and research and development efforts. Under 3Com Ventures, as of
May 31, 2002 we are committed to make additional capital contributions to certain limited partnership
venture capital funds totaling $42.0 million, of which we expect approximately $16.4 million to be called
over the next twelve months. During fiscal 2002, we made investments through 3Com Ventures of
$7.9 million, which is included in our $12.4 million of investments in equity securities discussed above.

For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002, we made $351.8 million in capital expenditures, of which
$316.7 million related to the purchase of properties that were under operating lease arrangements, and
thereby terminated those leases. The purchase of these properties was partially financed through
borrowings under new financing arrangements, consisting of a $105.0 million term loan and a
$105.0 million revolving line of credit. As of May 31, 2002, $97.5 million was outstanding on the term loan,
$30.0 million of which will be paid in the next 12 months, and $70.0 million in net borrowings had been
made on the revolving line of credit. These financing arrangements are discussed further in Note 10 of the
consolidated financial statements. Additionally, we collected proceeds of $16.2 million for the sale of
property and equipment, of which $10.7 million related to the sale of our Singapore facility and the
remaining $5.5 million related to other fixed asset disposals. :

As of May 31, 2002, capital expenditure commitments were insignificant. Also, as of May 31, 2002, we had
approximately $32.1 million of commitments relating to royalty and patent licenses whose technologies are
incorporated into our products. These commitments extend through May 2005, and $9.5 million of these
commitments is expected to be paid over the next 12 months.

We have several agreements whereby we have sold product to resellers who have, in turn, sold the product
to end users, and we have guaranteed the payments of the end users to our customers. If all end users
under these agreements were to default on their payments, as of May 31, 2002 we would be required to pay
approximately $16.3 million. As deferred revenue associated with such sales approximates the guaranteed
amounts, any payments resulting from end user defaults would not have a material impact on our results of
operations. »
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During the year ended May 31, 2002, we received net cash of $49.4 million from the sale of our common
stock to employees through our employee stock purchase and option plans, and used $3.7 million to
repurchase 1.1 million shares of our own common stock.

There are no assurances that we can reduce losses from operations and negative cash flow or raise capital
as needed to fund the operations of the company. However, based on current plans and business
conditions, but subject to the discussion in the Business Environment and Industry Trends, we believe that
our existing cash and equivalents, short-term investments, revolving line of credit, and cash generated from
operations will be sufficient to satisfy our anticipated cash requirements for at least the next twelve
months.

EFFECTS OF RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1998 and June 1999, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended, which establishes accounting
and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts and for hedging activities. Under SFAS 133, certain contracts that were not formerly
considered derivatives may now meet the definition of a derivative. We adopted SFAS 133 on June 2, 2001.
The adoption of SFAS 133 did not have a material impact on our current financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SEAS 141, “Business Combinations,” which addresses the financial
accounting and reporting for business combinations and supersedes Accounting Principals Board (APB)
Opinion 16, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS 38, “Accounting for Preacquisition Contingencies of
Purchased Enterprises.” SFAS 141 requires that all business combinations be accounted for by the
purchase method, modifies the criteria for recognizing intangible assets, and expands disclosure
requirements. The provisions of SFAS 141 apply to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001.
We adopted SFAS 141 on June 1, 2002. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 141 to have a material
effect on our results of operations or statements of financial position.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which addresses
financial accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible assets and supersedes APB
Opinion 17, “Intangible Assets.” SFAS 142 addresses how intangible assets that are acquired individually
or with a group of other assets should be accounted for in financial statements upon their acquisition and
after they have been initially recognized in the financial statements. SFAS 142 requires that goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives not be amortized but rather tested at least annually for
impairment, and intangible assets that have finite useful lives be amortized over their useful lives, In
addition, SFAS 142 expands the disclosure requirements about goodwill and other intangible assets in the
years subsequent to their acquisition. Impairment losses for goodwill and indefinite-life intangible assets
that arise due to the initial application of SFAS 142 are to be reported as a change in accounting principle.
We adopted SFAS 142 on June 1, 2002 and ceased amortization of net goodwill totaling $66.5 million,
which includes $0.7 million of acquired workforce intangible prev10usly classified as purchased intangible
assets. We are currently assessing the impact that the adoption of SFAS 142 w111 have on our results of
operations and statements of financial position.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accountmg for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets.” SFAS 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of
long-lived assets. We adopted SFAS 144 on June 1, 2002. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 144 to
have a material effect on our results of operations or statements of financial position.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities,” which addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal
activities and supersedes Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
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Restructuring).” SFAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be
recognized when the liability is incurred. Under Issue 94-3, a liability for an exit cost as defined in EITF
94-3 was recognized at the date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan. SFAS 146 also establishes that
the liability should initially be measured and recorded at fair value. We will adopt the provisions of
SFAS 146 for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT AND INDUSTRY TRENDS

Our future business and results of operations are subject to industry trends and specific risks in our
business. Some of the factors that could cause future results to materially differ from past results or those
described in forward-looking statements include those discussed below:

Our business has been adversely impacted by the economic slowdown and related uncertainties affecting
markets in which we operate

Adverse economic conditions worldwide have contributed to a technology industry slowdown and impacted
our business resulting in:

* reduced demand for most of our products;

* increased price competition for our products;

* increased risk of excess and obsolete inventories;

* excess facilities and manufacturing capacity; and

* higher overhead costs, as a percentage of revenues.

Recent political and social turmoil in many parts of the world, including terrorist and military actions, may
continue to put pressure on global economic conditions. These political, social and economic conditions
and uncertainties make it extremely difficult for 3Com, our customers and our vendors to accurately
forecast and plan future business activities. This reduced predictability challenges our ability to operate
profitably or to increase revenues. In particular, it is difficult to develop and implement strategies,
sustainable business models and efficient operations, and effectively manage outsourced relationships for
certain contract manufacturing and information technology services. If the current economic or market
conditions continue or further deteriorate, there could be additional material adverse impact on our
financial position, results of operations and cash flow.

We have recently consolidated two of our businesses—Business Connectivity Company and Business Networks
Company—into-a single business

In fiscal year 2002, we completed a restructuring of our commercial networking operations into three
independent businesses—3Com Business Connectivity Company, 3Com Business Networks Company and
CommWorks Corporation. Each business has a dedicated management team focusing on developing and
executing its own business strategies, assessing and meeting the needs of its customers and implementing
sustainable efficient operations. In addition, each business utilizes certain centrally-provided, shared
corporate services. At the beginning of fiscal 2003, we announced plans to consolidate two of these
businesses—BCC and BNC—into a single business to gain further benefits from leveraging common
resources. Failure to properly manage the consolidation of BCC and BNC into a new, single Business
Networks Company may adversely affect revenues, compromise results of operations or materially impair
our overall financial performance.
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We face operational risks in implementing our strategy to evaluate and implement the outsourcing of certain
Sunctions, which do not differentiate our ability to compete successfully and achieve profitable growth

We are continuing to evaluate the potential for outsourcing certain functions or operations that do not
differentiate 3Com or create a competitive advantage for our company supporting profitable growth. This
outsourcing strategy- has included certain software development for IT applications and outsourcing a
substantial portion of 3Com’s IT infrastructure. Implementation of such outsourcing may not result in
reduction of actual costs associated with such services or function and may increase risk of disruption of
operations upon which we rely on third parties to meet our needs. Moreover, future events are
unpredictable and there may be substantial penalties for terminating agreements early or failing to
maintain minimum service levels.

We face operational risks in consolidating our research and development design centers

As part of our ongoing cost reduction efforts in our CommWorks business, we are consolidating our
research and development activities from seven design centers into three design centers in the U.S,,
Canada and India. These consolidation activities involve significant changes in employment and transfers
of product development efforts among design centers. Failure to properly manage the consolidation
activities may result in disruptions to our product development programs which, in turn, may adversely
impact the cost or timing of introducing new or enhanced products, revenues or overall financial
performance.

Cost containment and expense reductions are critical to achieving positive cash flow from operations and
profitability

We are continuing efforts to reduce our expense structure. We believe strict cost containment and expense
reductions are essential to achieving positive cash flow from operations in future quarters and returning to
profitability, especially since the outlook for future quarters is subject to numerous challenges. Additional
measures to contain costs and reduce expenses may be undertaken if revenues and market conditions do
not improve. A number of factors could preclude us from successfully bringing costs and expenses in line
with our revenues, such as our inability to accurately forecast business activities and further deterioration
of our revenues. If we are not able to effectively reduce our costs and achieve an expense structure
commensurate with our business activities and revenues, we may have inadequate levels of cash for
operations or for capital requirements, which could significantly harm our ability to operate the business.

We face increased competition and our financial performance and future growth depend upon sustaining
market positions in our existing markets and successfully targeting new markets
We face competitive challenges that are likely to arise from a number of factors, including:

* industry volatility resulting from rapid development and maturation of technologies;

* industry consolidation resulting in competitors with greater financial, marketing and technical
resources;

* greater competition for fewer customers as a result of consolidation in the reseller and distribution
channels as well as consolidation in the telecommunications service provider market due to excess
capacity and the financial difficulties being experienced by some service providers;

* increasing price competition in the face of weakening economic conditions, excess inventories and
excess capacity in the telecommunications service provider market; and

» continuing silicon integration of networking products.

We compete in three specific markets that serve enterprise and telecommunications service provider
customers. Our principal competitors in the enterprise networking market include: Avaya, Cisco,
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Enterasys, Extreme, HP, Lucent, and Nortel. In the connectivity segment, our principal competitor is Intel;
other competitors include Accton, Broadcom, D-Link, Linksys and NetGear. Principal competitors in the
telecommunications service provider market include: Cisco, Comverse, Lucent, Nortel, and Sonus. Our
competitors range from large, diversified telecommunications equipment and networking companies to
smaller companies with a more specialized focus. As siliconization continues and networking functions
become more embedded on the motherboard, we are increasingly facing competition from parties who are
also our current suppliers of products. Our failure to compete successfully against current or future
competitors could harm our business, operating results or financial condition. Likewise, integration of
networking, communications, and computer processing functionality on a reduced number of
semiconductor components may adversely affect our future sales growth and operating results.

We are investing a significant proportion of our resources in various emerging product lines. These
emerging product lines include Gigabit Ethernet technology, IP telephony, CDMA wireless networking
products and services, softswitch technologies, wireless LANs, Layer 3+ switching, network security
technology (such as our embedded firewall products) and Network Jack switches. We expect these product
lines to account for a higher percentage of our future sales over time, although the markets for these
products and solutions are still emerging and may not develop to our expectations. Industry standards for
some of these technologies are yet to be widely adopted and the market potential remains unproven. If the
markets for these new technologies or products do not develop or grow as we expect, or if we have not
adopted optimal sales and go-to-market strategies for these new technologies and products, our financial
results could be adversely affected and we might need to change our business strategy.

Also, in the markets in which we compete, products have short life cycles and rapid technology transitions.
Therefore, our success depends on our ability to identify new market and product opportunities, to
develop and introduce new products in a timely manner, to gain market acceptance of new products,
particularly in our targeted emerging markets, and to rapidly and efficiently transition our customers from
older to newer connectivity technologies. Additionally, as we increase our reliance on relationships with
strategic partners, such as ODMs, we may encounter greater difficulties in quickly and effectively
introducing new products with the quality, functionality, costs and features that are optimal for the market.
This increased reliance may also limit our ability to independently identify current product and technology
trends and respond to such trends. Any delay in new product introductions, lower than anticipated demand
for our new products, failure to meet market needs for features or functionality or higher manufacturing
costs could have an adverse affect on our operating results or financial condition, particularly in those
product markets we have identified as emerging high-growth opportunities.

Future cash requirements or restrictions on cash could adversely impact our financial position; and an event
of default under the Credit Facility may impair our ability to conduct business operations

We incurred net losses in fiscal 2002. Our overall cash balance declined and we may continue incurring
negative overall cash flow in the next few quarters. If cash flow deteriorates, our liquidity and ability to
operate our business could be severely adversely impacted. Additionally, our ability to raise financial
capital may be hindered due to our net losses and negative cash flow position, reducing our operating
flexibility.

The following items could require unexpected future cash payments, limit our ability to generate cash or
restrict our use of cash:

* triggering of certain payment obligations, breach of covenants or acceleration of payment
obligations under our new revolving and term loan facilities;

~ * inability to dispose of real estate holdings in a timely manner or at our anticipated price;
* taxes due upon the transfer of cash held in foreign locations; and

* taxes assessed by local authorities where we conduct business.
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During fiscal 2002, we entered into a $210,000,000 revolving and term loan facility with a syndication of
financial institutions led by Bank of America (the “Credit Facility””) and, contemporaneously, we retired all
of our operating lease arrangements we had with respect to certain of our real properties. The Credit
Facility has a term of three years and is secured by priority liens over certain assets (including inventory,
accounts receivable, plant and equipment and certain real properties), but specifically excludes our cash,
cash equivalents, short-term investments, equity investments and intellectual property. As discussed in
Note 10 of the consolidated financial statements, the primary financial covenant under the Credit Facility
obligates us to maintain $400 million of available cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments.
Falling below $400 million would be an event of default and, among other things, (i) Bank of America may
accelerate the payment of the complete facility, (ii) use of cash in certain bank accounts will be severely
restricted, and (iii) significant operational constraints such as limitations on selling assets and funding
certain operations, will automatically take effect. We also have the ability to prepay and terminate the
Credit Facility at any time.

While we plan to adhere to the financial covenants of the Credit Facility and avoid an event of default, in
the event that it appears we are unable to avoid an event of default, it may be necessary or advisable to
retire and terminate the Credit Facility and pay all remaining balances borrowed. Such payment of the
Credit Facility would further limit our available cash and cash equivalents. Furthermore, we may not be
able to retire the Credit Facility if we do not have adequate resources available when necessary to avoid an
event of default or if, because of a rapid decline in revenues and cash and cash equivalents, we do not have
adequate time to retire the Credit Facility. The consequences of an event of default under the Credit
Facility may prevent us from conducting normal business operations.

As we continue our efforts to consolidate our real estate portfolio and liquidate certain real estate holdings
that we occupy or lease to third parties, we may enter into other financial arrangements, such as
sale-leaseback or mortgage arrangements that may subject us to additional financial covenants and
restrictions, thereby further reducing our operating flexibility. Notwithstanding the foregoing, because of
the economic conditions in the U.S. and the fact that much of our real estate holdings are in areas such as
Silicon Valley and Boston’s Route 128 corridor that have been particularly hard hit by the technology
industry slowdown, our ability to consolidate and liquidate our holdings or to use our real estate to support
other financial arrangements to gain additional liquidity is impaired. Additionally, to the extent that we
continue to own excess facilities and are not able to lease the facilities, we will be adversely affected
through continuing to bear the operating costs associated with these properties and the inability to
generate rental income.

We maintain substantial cash deposits in foreign locations, portions of which may be subject to significant
tax or tax withholding upon transfer or withdrawal. Furthermore, we regularly engage in discussions with
tax authorities in various jurisdictions where we operate about our tax positions. While we believe our tax
positions in these various jurisdictions are proper and fully defensible, these tax authorities may
nevertheless assess taxes and render judgments against us if we are unable to convince them of our
position. In such an event, we could be required to make unexpected cash payments in satisfaction of such
assessments or judgments or incur additional expenses to defend our position.

The above cash requirements or restrictions could lead to an inadequate level of cash for operations or for
capital requirements, which could have a material negative impact on our financial position and
significantly harm our ability to operate the business.

Retaining key employees and management are critical to our success

Our success depends upon retaining and recruiting highly qualified employees and management personnel.
This is especially important in our current operating structure involving two independent businesses, since
each management team must possess the skills, experience and talent to run its business on an independent
basis. However, like many companies in the industries in which we operate, we face challenges in attracting
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and retaining highly qualified employees and management personnel. In June 2002, we announced changes
in the executive leadership positions for our CommWorks business segment and our finance organization.
In addition, the significant downturn in our business environment has had a negative impact on our
operations, and as a result, we have restructured our operations to reduce our workforce and implement
other cost reduction activities. Although we believe these various changes and actions will improve our
organizational effectiveness and competitiveness, they could lead, in the short term, to disruptions in our
business, reduced employee morale and productivity, increased attrition and problems with retaining
existing employees and recruiting future employees and increased financial costs.

Recruiting and retaining skilled personnel, including engineers, sales representatives and product
marketing managers, continues to be difficult. At certain locations where we operate the cost of living is
extremely high and it may be difficult to attract and retain key employees and management personnel at a
reasonable cost. If we cannot successfully recruit and retain such persons, our product introduction
schedules, customer relationships, operating results and financial condition may become impaired and our
overall ability to compete may be adversely affected.

A significant portion of our revenues is derived from sales to a small number of customers who may decide
not to purchase our products in the future

We distribute many of our enterprise connectivity and networking products through two-tier distribution
channels that include distributors, systems integrators and value-added resellers. We also sell to PC
OEMs and telecommunications service providers. For enterprise connectivity and networking products, a
significant portion of our sales is concentrated among a few distributors and OEM customers. There has
been a recent trend of decreased demand for connectivity products from OEM customers such as Dell
Computer Corp. (Dell) and HP, due to increased siliconization of networking connections and also to
factors specific to our OEM customers, such as the effort necessary for HP to complete merger integration
following its recent acquisition of Compaq Computer Corporation. Additionally, consolidation in our
distribution channels and among PC OEMs is reducing the number of customers in the domestic and
international markets. In an effort to streamline our operations, we may increase the focus of our
distribution sales resources on selected distribution channel customers.

For CommWorks products, a significant portion of our sales is concentrated with the major
telecommunications service providers. We cannot be certain that these customers will continue to purchase
our products at current levels, particularly in light of the serious challenges confronting the worldwide
telecommunications industry. Such challenges are causing telecommunications service providers to
experience serious credit problems and other financial difficulties and may result in far fewer companies
surviving, thereby reducing competition and negatively impacting the amount and timing of purchases of
telecommunications infrastructure equipment from suppliers such as us.

Our results of operations, financial condition, or market share could be adversely affected if our
customers:

* stop purchasing our products or focus more on buying or reselling our competitors’ products;

* reduce, delay, or cancel their orders or defer implementation of new emerging technologies and
products; or

* experience competitive, operational, or financial difficulties, impairing our ability to collect
payments from them.
We depend on distributors who could negatively affect our operations by reducing the level of our products in

their inventory . :

Our distributors maintain inventories of our products. We work closely with our distributors to monitor
channel inventory levels and ensure that appropriate levels of products are available to resellers and end
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users. Notwithstanding such efforts, if our channel partners reduce their levels of inventory of our products
or if they do not maintain sufficient levels of inventory of our products to meet customer demand, our sales
could be negatively impacted.

Changes in sales channel mix to PC OEMs and product mix to lower margin connectivity products may
negatively impact our revenues and margins

We sell our connectivity products to PC OEMs, PC ODMs who sell to PC OEMs, and to distributors who,
in turn, sell to commercial enterprises. Sales to distributors typically generate higher ASPs and gross
margins than sales to PC OEMs. The trend in sales for our enterprise connectivity products over the past
several years has been a shift from two-tier distribution to PC OEMs and ODMs, with the result that our
revenue from distribution sales has decreased as a percentage of our total revenues. This mix shift towards
PC OEMs and ODMs has lowered the ASPs for our products. If this trend continues and we cannot lower
our costs of the products or transition customers to products with higher ASPs, then our margins will be
reduced and our financial results will be adversely impacted.

We derive a significant portion of our sales of connectivity products from PC OEMs such as Dell,
Gateway, Inc., HP and IBM, all of which companies are manufacturers that incorporate our NICs, PC
cards, Mini-PCI, and ASIC products into their products. These companies also have begun utilizing chip
sets that contain integrated Ethernet LAN connectivity solutions into their products. As Ethernet
connectivity technology continues to mature, we have seen the incorporation of NIC, PC Card, and
Mini-PCI product features into lower-priced form factors such as LOM and integrated into the chip sets on
the motherboard. Certain competitors that have a significant share of the PC chip set market may be
bundling such PC chip sets with integrated LAN connectivity at little or no price premium to PC chip sets
without LAN connectivity. This bundling of PC chip sets and LAN connectivity will have an adverse impact
on competition in the LAN connectivity market, including a significant negative impact on our ability to
sell LAN connectivity solutions to our existing PC OEM or ODM customers. We expect that PC
OEMs and ODMs increasingly will purchase the lower-priced form factors of connectivity products. If we
cannot lower our costs of the products or transition customers to products with higher ASPs, then our
margins will be reduced and our financial results will be adversely impacted. .

Continued slowdown of capital expenditures in the telecommunications industry may negatively impact
CommWorks revenues

CommWorks’ customers in the telecommunications service provider market include ILECs, IXCs, PTTs,
CLECs, wireless service operators, Internet service providers (ISPs) and other alternative service
providers.  The deteriorating economic conditions prevailing in the telecommunications industry over
the past several quarters—including lower revenue growth, lower prices and excess capacity—have
combined to exert downward pressure on service provider margins and profitability and have resulted in
decreased levels of capital expenditures for new equipment and services. Moreover, the challenges
presented by the current industry environment are causing many telecommunications service providers to
experience serious credit problems and other financial difficulties and could result in additional
bankruptcies and consolidations. A continuation or worsening of the current depressed economic
conditions in the telecommunications industry could have a material adverse effect on our revenues and
overall financial performance.

Revenues from sales of our CommWorks products are subject to substantial fluctuations from period to
period. Such fluctuations are the result of several factors characteristic of the: CommWorks business,
including the relatively small number of key customers, the relatively high dollar amount of each sale
transaction, the relatively high percentage that each sale transaction represents in relation to CommWorks’
total revenues and the uncertainty related to the timing of individual sales transactions. In addition to
contributing to fluctuations in CommWorks’ reported revenues from period to period, these factors have
made it difficult to forecast CommWorks’ future revenues. Also, CommWorks’ sales arrangements
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frequently contain product acceptance requirements that can impact the timing of the recognition of the
sale. For these reasons, revenues in any particular quarter from sales of our CommWorks products may be
more prone to and adversely affected by operational decisions of individual customers.

Our increased reliance on contract manufacturing and our excess manufacturing capacity may adversely
impact our financial results and operations.

We have changed our manufacturing strategy so that more of our products will be sourced from contract
manufacturers. We have sold or are in the process of selling manufacturing operations and facilities
associated with those products now sourced from contract manufacturers. Therefore, our ability to resume
internal manufacturing operations for those products is severely limited. The cost, quality, performance
and availability of contract manufacturing operations are and will be essential to the successful production
and sale of many of our products. The inability of any contract manufacturer to meet our cost, quality,
performance and availability standards could adversely impact our financial condition or results of
operations. We may not be able to provide contract manufacturers with product volumes that are high
enough to achieve sufficient cost savings. If shipments fall below forecasted levels, we may incur increased
costs or be required to take ownership of the inventory. Also, our ability to control the quality of products
produced by contract manufacturers may be limited and quality issues may not be resolved in a timely
manner, which could adversely impact our financial condition or results of operations. The smooth
transition from internal manufacturing to contract manufacturing by a third party is critical to our success.
Failure to implement and manage a successful transition may cause severe disruptions in our supply chain
that will affect the cost, quality and availability of products.

In July 2002, our primary contract manufacturer for CommWorks products, MSL, announced its intentions
to cease manufacturing operations at the Mount Prospect facility. As a result of this announcement, we are
evaluating our options with respect to manufacturing of CommWorks products in the future, including
possible transfer of our manufacturing requirements to MSL’s facility in Arden Hills, Minnesota and
entering into new contract manufacturing arrangements with alternative suppliers. Failure to implement
and manage a successful transition could disrupt CommWorks’ supply chain and adversely affect its
revenues, the availability, cost and quality of its products, and its overall financial performance.

We are implementing a direct ship program in a phased manner with our manufacturing partners. Through
this program, we will be relying on such partners for fulfillment of customer demand. This program may
not yield the efficiencies that we expect, which would negatively impact our financial performance. Any
disruptions to on-time delivery to customers would adversely impact our business and revenues.

Furthermore, because we have outsourced significant manufacturing operations to contract manufacturers
and have exited a number of businesses, we now have excess manufacturing capacity in existing facilities.
We are currently restructuring our operations and implementing cost reduction activities to eliminate this
excess capacity, including the consolidation of our real estate portfolio and facilities associated with our
former manufacturing operations in Marlborough and Santa Clara. We sold our Singapore manufacturing
facility and have leased back space for our Asia Pacific region distribution center and office location for
sales management, information technology, training and customer service and support operations in fiscal
2002, and we sold our manufacturing facility in Mount Prospect in July 2002. Our ability to reduce our
excess manufacturing capacity and to consolidate facilities may be made more difficult by further
weakening of the networking industry and worsening of general economic conditions in the United States
and globally. If we are unable to reduce our excess manufacturing capacity and facilities, this may
negatively impact our operations, cost structure and financial performance.
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Demand forecasting, increased contract manufacturing, delivery and logistics disruptions and historical
component shortages continue to pose major supply chain risks

Current business conditions and operational challenges in managing our supply chain affect our business in
a number of ways:

* certain key components, in the recent past, have had limited availability;

* there are a smaller number of suppliers and we have narrowed our supplier base, including in some
cases the sole sourcing of certain components from a single supplier;

* as siliconization of networking features continues, we are increasingly facing competition from
parties who have traditionally been and are currently our suppliers;

* our ability to accurately forecast demand is diminished, especially in light of general economic
weakness and uncertainty following the terrorist events in the last year and continually deteriorating
conditions in the telecommunications industry;

* our significantly increased reliance on and long-term arrangements with third-party manufacturers
places much of the supply chain process out of our direct control and heightens the need for
accurate forecasting and reduces our ability to transition quickly to alternative supply chain
strategies; and

* our present manufacturing capacities exceed our current needs.

Some key components of our products and some services that we rely on are currently available only from
single or limited sources. In addition, some of our suppliers are also our competitors. We cannot be certain
that in the future our suppliers, particularly those who are also in active competition with us, will be able or
willing to meet our demand for components in a timely and cost-effective manner.

Increasingly, we have been sourcing a greater number of components from a smaller number of vendors.
Also, there has recently been a trend toward consolidation of vendors of electronic components. This
greater reliance on a smaller number of suppliers and the inability to quickly switch vendors increase the
risk of logistics disruptions, unfavorable price fluctuations or disruptions in supply, particularly in a supply-
constrained environment. '

Operation of the supply chain requires accurate forecasting of demand, which has become more
challenging due to weak industry conditions, emerging technologies, logistics disruptions and developing
markets. If overall demand for our products, product mix and growth of these markets is significantly
different from our forecasting and planning, we may face inadequate, or excess, component supply. This
would result in orders for products that could not be manufactured in a timely manner, or a buildup of
inventory that could not easily be sold. Either of these situations could adversely affect our revenues,
financial results or market share. If our demand forecasts are too high or our forecasts of product mix are
inaccurate, we may experience excess and obsolete inventories and excess manufacturing capacity, which
could adversely affect our financial results. '

Our current and future decisions to exit certain product lines may have unforeseen negative impacts to our
business

In fiscal 2001 and early fiscal 2002, we exited certain business and product lines, including the cable
modem business. In certain cases, we continue to be responsible pursuant to the original warranty
obligations for these products. Qur exiting of these business and product lines may have adversely
impacted our relationships with channel partners and end customers since many of these channel partners
and customers perceived our remaining products as not being part of a larger integrated or complementary
solution or questioned our commitment to their markets and therefore shifted to products from alternative
vendors. We may consider exiting other businesses that do not meet our goal of delivering appropriate
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financial returns in a reasonable amount of time. Our decision to exit future businesses could result in
deterioration of our channel partner and customer relationships, increased employee costs (such as
severance, outplacement and other benefits), contract termination costs and asset impairments. We may
also experience delays in the execution of our plan to exit a business that may create disruptions in our
transactions with suppliers and customers.

The reduced role of acquisitions in our current business strategy may negatively impact our growth and
increase our reliance on strategic relationships

We expect that the number of acquisitions of businesses or product lines will decrease in comparison to
historical levels. The networking business is highly competitive and our failure to pursue future
acquisitions could hamper our ability to enhance existing products and introduce new products on a timely
basis. Future consolidations in the networking industry may result in new companies with greater resources
and stronger competitive positions and products than us. Furthermore, companies may be created that are
able to respond more rapidly to market opportunities. Continued consolidation in our industry may
adversely affect our operating results or financial condition.

We will continue to pursue strategic relationships to complement internal development of new
technologies and enhancement of existing products and to exploit market potentials. These strategic
relationships can present additional problems since, in most cases, we must compete in some business
areas with companies with which we have strategic alliances and, at the same time, cooperate with the
same companies in other business areas. If these companies fail to perform, or if these relationships fail to
materialize as expected, we could suffer delays in product or market development or other operational
difficulties. Furthermore, our results of operations or financial condition could be adversely impacted if we
experience difficulties managing relationships with our partners or if projects with partners are
unsuccessful. In addition, if our strategic partners are acquired by third parties or if our competitors enter
into successful strategic relationships, we may face increased competition.

Certain of our international markets are risky and may negatively impact our operating results

We operate internationally and expect that international markets will continue to account for a significant
percentage of our sales. The recent global economic slowdown has already had and is likely to continue to
have a negative effect on various international markets in which we operate. This may cause us to simplify
our international legal entity structure and reduce our presence in certain countries, which may negatively
affect the overall level of business in such countries. Recent political and social turmoil may likely further
exacerbate existing economic and political instability and currency fluctuations in certain international
markets in which we participate, and such conditions can adversely affect our operating results or financial
condition. Unforeseen conditions and events will positively or negatively impact the level of international
sales or our international operations in different regions. For example, the strengthening of the U.S. dollar
relative to other countries’ currencies could make our products more expensive than locally manufactured
products, thereby negatively impacting demand for our products. Also, our contract manufacturers
manufacture many of our products overseas, sometimes in politically or economically unstable countries.
Should international regions experience economic or political instability, our results of operations may be
adversely affected, our ability to forecast demand for our products may also be impacted and our supply of
products may be interrupted.
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Our reliance on industry standards, a favorable regulatory environment, technological change in the
marketplace and new product initiatives may cause our revenues to fluctuate or decline

The networking industry in which we compete is characterized by rapid changes in technology and
customer requirements, evolving industry standards and complex government regulation. As a result, our
success depends on:

* the emergence of new technology or the convergence of technologies such as voice and data
networking or IP telephony;

* our ability to develop new products to address changes in technologies and related customer
requirements on a timely basis;

e the timely adoption and market acceptance of industry standards, and timely resolution of
conflicting U.S. and international industry standards;

* our ability to influence the development of emerging industry standards and to introduce new and
enhanced products that are compatible with such standards; and

* a favorable regulatory environment.

Slow market acceptance of new technologies, products or industry standards could adversely affect our
revenues or overall financial performance. In addition, if our technology is not included in an industry
standard on a timely basis or if we fail to achieve timely certification of compliance to industry standards
for our products, our revenues from sales of such products or our overall financial performance could be
adversely affected.

The telecommunications industry, in particular, is subject to complex government regulation, including
regulations defined by the U.S. federal government, its agencies such as the Federal Communications
Commission, state public service commissions and various governmental authorities in foreign countries.
Failure to obtain all necessary regulatory approvals for our products or to comply with all applicable
government regulations could adversely impact our revenues or overall financial performance or expose us
to fines or other penalties. In addition, new or revised government regulations could adversely affect the
basic business economics for new technologies or their rates of acceptance or adoption by potential
customers; in turn, this could adversely impact our revenues or overall financial performance.

Our customer order fulfillment capabilities fluctuate and may negatively impact our operating results

The timing and amount of our sales depend on a number of factors that make estimating operating results
uncertain. Throughout our business, we do not typically maintain a significant backlog and sales are
partially dependent on our ability to appropriately forecast product demand. In addition, our customers
historically request fulfillment of orders in a short period, resulting in limited visibility to sales trends and
potential pricing pressures. Consequently, our operating results depend on the volume and timing of
orders and our ability to fulfill orders in a timely manner. Historically, sales in the third month of the
quarter have been higher than sales in each of the first two months of the quarter. Non-linear sales
patterns make business planning difficult, and increase the risk that our quarterly results will fluctuate due
to disruptions in functions such as manufacturing, order management, information systems, and shipping.

We may not always be able to adequately protect or maintain our intellectual property rights

Many of our competitors, such as telecommunications, networking and computer equipment
manufacturers, have large intellectual property portfolios, including patents that may cover technologies
that are relevant to our business. In addition, many smaller companies, universities, and individual
inventors have obtained or applied for patents in areas of technology that may relate to our business. The
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industry is moving towards aggressive assertion, licensing, and litigation of patents and other intellectual
property rights.

In the course of our business, we frequently receive claims of infringement or otherwise become aware of
potentially relevant patents or other intellectual property rights held by other parties. We evaluate the
validity and applicability of these intellectual property rights, and determine in each case whether we must
negotiate licenses or cross-licenses to incorporate or use the proprietary technologies, protocols, or
specifications in our products. If we are unable to obtain and maintain licenses on favorable terms for
intellectual property rights required for the manufacture, sale, and use of our products, particularly those
that must comply with industry standard protocols and specifications to be commercially viable, our results
of operations or financial condition could be adversely impacted.

In addition to disputes relating to the validity or alleged infringement of other parties’ rights, we may
become involved in disputes relating to our assertion of our intellectual property rights. Whether we are
defending the assertion of intellectual property rights against us or asserting our intellectual property
rights against others, intellectual property litigation can be complex, costly, protracted, and highly
disruptive to business operations by diverting the attention and energies of management and key technical
personnel. Further, plaintiffs in intellectual property cases often seek injunctive relief and the measures of
damages in intellectual property litigation are complex and often subjective or uncertain. Thus, the
existence of or any adverse determinations in this litigation could subject us to significant liabilities and
costs. In addition, if we are the alleged infringer, we could be required to seek licenses from others or be
prevented from manufacturing or selling our products, which could cause disruptions to our operations or
the markets in which we compete. If we are asserting our intellectual property rights, we could be
prevented from stopping others from manufacturing or selling competitive products. Any one of these
factors could adversely affect our product margins, results of operations or financial condition.

Our future quarterly operating results are subject to factors that can cause fluctuations in our stock price

Our quarterly operating results are difficult to predict and may fluctuate significantly. In addition to factors
discussed above, activities relating to the restructuring of our BCC and BNC businesses and the change in
leadership for our CommWorks business could contribute significantly to fluctuations in our quarterly
operating results for the next several quarters.

Historically, our stock price has experienced substantial price volatility. We expect that our stock price may
continue to experience volatility in the future, due to a variety of potential factors such as fluctuations in
our quarterly operating results, depletion of our cash balances, variations between our actual financial
results and the published analysts’ expectations and announcements by our competitors. In addition, over
the past several quarters, the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that
have affected the stock prices of many technology companies. These factors, as well as general economic
and political conditions or investors’ concerns regarding the credibility of corporate financial statements
and the accounting profession, may have a material adverse affect on the market price of our stock in the
future.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market Risk Disclosures. The following discussion about our market risk disclosures involves forward-
looking statements. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking
statements. We are exposed to market risk related to changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, and equity security price risk. We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or
trading purposes.

Interest Rate Sensitivity. 'We maintain a short-term investment portfolio consisting mainly of fixed-income
securities with a weighted average maturity of less than one year. These available-for-sale securities are
subject to interest rate risk and will fall in value if market interest rates increase. If market interest rates
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were to increase immediately and uniformly by 10 percent from levels at May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001,
the fair value of the portfolio would decline by an immaterial amount. We currently have the ability and
intention to hold our fixed income investments until maturity, and therefore we would not expect our
operating results or cash flows to be affected to any significant degree by a sudden change in market
interest rates. If necessary, we may sell short-term investments prior to maturity to meet the liquidity needs
of the company.

We had a portfolio of fixed and floating rate debt of approximately $169.8 million as of May 31, 2002 and
$2.7 million as of June 1, 2001. A hypothetical 10 percent change in interest rates would not have a
material impact on the fair market value or cash flows associated with this debt. We do not hedge any
interest rate exposures.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. We enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge certain
balance sheet exposures and intercompany balances against future movements in foreign exchange rates.
Gains and losses on the forward contracts are largely offset by gains and losses on the underlying exposure.
A hypothetical 10 percent appreciation of the U.S. Dollar from May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001 market
rates would increase the unrealized value of our forward contracts by $1.6 million and $1.8 million,
respectively. Conversely, a hypothetical 10 percent depreciation of the U.S. Dollar from May 31, 2002 and
June 1, 2001 market rates would decrease the unrealized value of our forward contracts by $1.6 million and
$1.8 million, respectively. The gains or losses on the forward contracts are largely offset by the gains or
losses on the underlying transactions and consequently a sudden or significant change in foreign exchange
rates would not have a material impact on future net income or cash flows.

Equity Security Price Risk. We hold publicly traded equity securities that are subject to market price
volatility. Equity security price fluctuations of plus or minus 50 percent would have had an immaterial
impact on the value of these securities held at May 31, 2002. Equity security price fluctuations of plus or
minus 50 percent would have had a $12.2 million impact on the value of these securities held at June 1,
2001.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 3Com Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of 3Com Corporation and subsidiaries
(3Com) as of May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended May 31, 2002. Our
audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 8. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of 3Com’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedule based
on our audits. '

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion. '

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of 3Com Corporation and subsidiaries at May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
May 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule referred to above, when considered in relation to
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Jose, California
June 24, 2002
(July 16, 2002 as to Note 21)
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Gross Margin. . . .. vin ettt e e e

Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing .. ...... ... .. i i it
Research and development .. .............. ... . ......
General and administrative . . ......... ... ..o oo L
Amortization and-write down of intangibles . ... ..........

~ Restructuring charges . .. .......... o
Losses (gains) on land and facilities, net . ...............
Purchased in-process technology ......................
Merger-related credits,net . .......... ... ... ... ...

Total operating eXpenses . . . ...... ..o,

Operating income (10sS) . . .. ..o oo et

Gains (losses) on investments, net . ...t
Litigation settlement . ............ccoviiiiiiienin
Interest and other income, net . ........... v,

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes
and equity INterests . ... ..t e e
Income tax provision (benefit) ............. ... ... .. ...
Other interests in loss of consolidated joint venture . .. .......
Equity interest in loss of unconsolidated investee . . .. ... ... ..

Income (loss) from continuing operations . .. ..............

Income from discontinued operations . ...................

Netincome (loss) ........ ..o,

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic:
Continuing operations . . . . ...t
Discontinued operations . .................. PP

Diluted:
Continuing operations . . . ... .. c.vvi i
Discontinued operations . .............c.coieiio..

Shares used in computing per share amounts:
Basic . .. e
Diluted . ...... ... e

Years ended

May 31, June 1, June 2,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share data)

$1,477,932 $2,820,881 $4,333,942
999,731 2,287,250 2,475,934
478,201 533,631 1,858,008
330,683 803,994 049,228
285,584 535,718 597,816
130,552 182,090 213,085
116,679 69,707 . 24,535
167,462 163,657 68,867
1375  (178,844)  (25,483)
— 60,221 13,456

— (728) (2,297)
1,032,335 1,635,815 1,839,207

(554,134) (1,102,184) 18,801

(17,888)  (18,614) 838,795

— (250,000) —
67,371 144,596 104,258
(504,651) (1,226,202) 961,854
91,299  (257,641) 341,672
— — (1,028)

— 1,352 5,647
(595,950)  (969.913) 615,563
— 4,537 58,740

$ (595,950) $ (965,376) $ 674,303
$ (171 $  (281) $ 177
$ — $ 0.01 $ 0.17
$  (171) $ (280) $ 194
$ (17D s (8) $ 17
$ — 3 001 $ 0.16
$ (L71) $§ (280) § 188
349,489 345,027 348,314
349,489 345,027 357,883

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

May 31,
2002

June 1,
2001

(In thousands,
except par value)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents . . . ... ... .. it $ 679,055 $ 897,797
Short-term INVEStMENES . . . . vttt ittt it it et e e 702,993 742,414
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts ($33,875 and
$47,309 in 2002 and 2001, respectively) .. ........... .. .. ....... 147,113 290,883
Inventories . ............ ... ... ... ...... J 61,777 200,146
Other current assets . ... ..ottt ittt e e 72,106 207,652
Total current assets . . ... ..ttt e e e 1,603,044 2,338,892
Property and equipment, net . .. ...... ... . . i e 676,154 609,679
Deferred inCome taxes . .. ... i i ittt i e e e e 6,192 163,349
Goodwill, intangibles, deposits, and other assets . . ................... 181,402 344,952
TOtAl @SSEES . . o o e vt ettt e e e e e e e $2,526,792  $3,456,872
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities: ,
Accounts payable . .. ... $ 125903 § 279,181
Accrued liabilities and other . ........ ... ... ... .. .. . .. 275,965 580,921
Deferred income taxes . . .. o ittt e e e e —_ 80,485
Current portion of long~termdebt . ......... .. ... ... ... ... ... 101,354 328
Total current liabilities .. ... ... ... . e 503,222 940,915
Long-termdebt ...... ... ... . . 68,404 2,385
Other long-term obligations. . . ... ... ... .. i 4,961 8,151
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
Stockholders’ equity: '
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000 shares authorized; none
oUtstanding . . . . ... — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 990,000 shares authorized; shares
outstanding: 2002—365,449; 2001—365,711 .. ... .. .. ... 2,126,583 2,127,803
Treasury stock, at cost: 2002—7,743 shares; 2001—21,412 shares . ... ... (182,341) (373,661)
Note receivable from sale of warrants. . . .. ......... ... ... ... ... (21,052) (21,052)
Unamortized stock-based compensation ......................... (5,030) (9,820)
Retained earnings ... ... ..ottt e 35,814 771,639
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . . ................. (3,769) 10,512
Total stockholders’ equity . ....... ... i 1,950,205 2,505,421
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . .......................... $2,526,792  $3,456,872

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balances, May 28,1999 . ... ....
Components of comprehensive
income:
Netincome . ... ..........
Change in unrealized gain on
available-for-sale securities, net
of tax expense of $173,702 . . . .
Accumulated translation
adjustments. . . . ...... ...

Total comprehensive income . . .
Repurchase of common stock . . . . .
Common stock issued under stock

plans, net of cancellations . . . . . .
Tax benefit from employee stock
transactions . . .. ... ... ...
Amortization of stock-based
compensation . . . ... .......
Stock options assumed in connection
with acquisitions . ... ... . ...

Balances, June 2, 2000 . . . . ... ..
Components of comprehensive
income:
Netloss .. ..............
Change in unrealized gain on
available-for-sale securities, net
of tax benefit of $170,084. . . . .
Accumulated translation
adjustments. .. . ... ... ...

Total comprehensive income . . .
Repurchase of common stock . . . . .
Common stock issued under stock

plans, net of cancellations . . . . . .
Amortization of stock-based
compensation . . . ... .......
Put option settlements . . . ... ...
Effect of distribution of Palm, Inc.
shares . . ... ... ... ... ...
Issuance of warrant for note
receivable . .. ... ... L.
Stock and stock options assumed in
connection with acquisitions

Balances, June 1,2001 . . . .. .. ..
Components of comprehensive
income:
Netloss . ............ ...
Change in unrealized gain on
available-for-sale securities, net
of tax benefit of $1,715 . . . . . .
Accumulated translation
adjustments. . . ... .......

Total comprehensive income . . .
Repurchase of common stock . . . . .
Common stock issued under stock

plans, net of cancellations . . . . . .
Amortization of stock-based
compensation . . ... ... ...

Balances, May 31,2002 ... ... ..

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock

Unamortized

Treasury Stock Note Stock-based  Retained

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Shares Amount Shares Amount Receivable Compensation Earnings Income (Loss) Total
(In thousands)
365,805 $1,954,204 (8,190) $(197,064) — $ (5,303)  $1,403,709 $ 40909 $3,196,455
674,303 674,303
239,053 239,053
(1,341) (1,341)
912,015
(20,515) (540,780) (540,780)
20 4,398 16,334 425,416 (3,526) (95,933) 330,355
133,990 133,990
2,379 2,379
8,650 8,650
365,825 2,101,242 (12,371) (312,428) — (6,450) 1,982,079 278,621 4,043,064
(965,376) (965,376)
(268,041) (268,041)
(68) (68)
(1,233,485)
(39,455) (577,759) (577,759)
(114) (3,421) 28,926 494,657 139 (244,222) 247,153
23,583 23,583
(140,700} (140,700)
141,478 141,478
21,052 (21,052) —_
8,152 1,488 21,869 (27,092) (842) 2,087
365,711 2,127,803 (21,412) (373,661) (21,052) (9,820) 771,639 10,512 2,505,421
(595,950) (595,950)
(14,454) (14,454)
173 173
(610,231)
(1,050)  (3,660) (3,660)
(262) (1,220) 14,719 194,980 (1,914) (139,875) 51,971
6,704 6,704
365,449 $2,126,583 (7,743) $(182,341) $(21,052) $(5,030) $ 35814 $ (3,769) $1,950,205

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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~ Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended

May 31,
2002

June 1, June 2,
2001 2000

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income (loss) from continuing operations .. .................... $(595,950)
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from continuing operations to net
. cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . ............. ... .. . .., 266,820
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment .............. 74,442
Write-down of intangibles. . . .. ... ... ... .. 70,093
(Gains) losses on investments, net . . . . ... ... 17,888
Deferred inCome taXes . . . . . v vt i it ittt e e 78,396

Purchased in-process technology . .. ........................ —
Merger-related credits, net . .. ... ... oL i —
Other interests in loss of consolidated joint venture . .. ........... —
Equity interest in loss of unconsolidated investee . . . .. ........... —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:

(In thousands)

$ (969,913) $ 615,563

277415 304,415

(121,159) 37,149
59,738 —
18,614  (838,795)

(284,585) 202,319

60,221 13,456
(728) (2,297)
— (1,028)
1,352 5,647

93,052 466,414
38,431 43,389
(79,503) (43,187
(42,497) 51,860
(86,190)  (11,726)
42,657  (16472)

(993,095) 826,707

Accounts receivable . ... . e 143,770
Inventories 125,311
Other AS58ES & v v v v i e it e e e e 69,698
Accounts payable . . ... ... L. (152,212)
Accrued liabilities and other . ... ..... ... ... . ... ... . ... (313,794
Income taxes receivable/payable . . .. ... .. ... . oL 76,176
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . . ............... (139,362)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments .. .......... ... .0t (757,979)
Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments . ............... 806,615
Purchase of property and equipment. . . . ....... ... ... (351,813)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment . . . ................ 16,213

Businesses acquired in purchase transactions, net of cash acquired ... .. —
Other, BEt . . o oo o e e e e e e —

(743,655) (1,201,169)
1,527,249 1.247.537
(191,101)  (274,568)

258,930 93,169
(197,712)  (92,432)
4,304 (300)

658,015  (227,763)

247153 464,345
(577,759)  (540,780)

(2,109) (2,357)
(24349)  (12,000)

— 2,499
(140,700) —
(70) (3,508)

(497,834)  (91,801)

30,291 241,506
(802,623) 748,649
1,700,420 951,771

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . ................. (286,964)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common StOck . . . . . . o vttt e 49,439
Repurchase of common stock. . . ... ... ... . L i, (3,660}
Repayments of short-term debt, notes payable, and capital lease
obligations . . .. ... ... (766)
Repayments of long-term borrowings . ........................ (7,500)
Net borrowings from line of credit ... ........ ... .. ... ... ... .... 70,000
Net proceeds from issuance of debt .. ........................ 105,000
Net cash settlement of putoptions . . . ........ ... ... .. ..., —
Other, Mt . . . e e e e (4,929)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . ... .............. 207,584
Net cash provided by discontinued operations . . . .................. —
Increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents . . . .................... (218,742)
Cash and equivalents, beginning of period . ...................... 897,797
Cash and equivalents, end of period. . . ... ... i $ 679,055

$ 897,797  $1,700,420

Other cash flow information:

Interest paid . . . ... o e $ 2,605
Income taxes paid (refunds received), met .. ........... ... ...... (74,464)
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments, net . ................... (14,454)
Fair value of stock issued and options assumed in business
combinations . . . . . .. —

Issuance of warrants for note receivable . . . ................... —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Description of Business

Description of business. 3Com Corporation (3Com) was founded on June 4, 1979. A pioneer in the
computer networking industry, 3Com evolved from a supplier of discrete products to a leading provider of
networking products and solutions. 3Com specializes in products and services that provide straightforward
solutions to complex networking challenges. Its network offerings focus on targeted sectors of the
commercial enterprise market, connecting businesses to their employees, customers, and suppliers, and
service provider market, particularly in the areas of Internet protocol (IP) service platforms and access
infrastructure. Headquartered in Santa Clara, California, 3Com has worldwide research and development,
manufacturing, marketing, sales, and support capabilities.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal year.  3Com uses a 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the Friday nearest to May 31. Fiscal year 2000
contained 53 weeks, whereas fiscal years 2002 and 2001 contained 52 weeks. For fiscal year 2000, the first
three quarters contained 13 weeks, whereas the fourth quarter contained 14 weeks.

Use of estimates in the preparation of consolidated financial statements. The preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires 3Com to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of sales and expenses during the reporting
periods. Such management estimates include allowances for doubtful accounts receivable, product returns,
and price protection; provisions for inventory to reflect net realizable value; estimates of fair value for
investments in privately held companies, goodwill and intangible assets, and held for sale properties;
valuation allowances against deferred income tax assets; and accruals for severance costs, product
warranty, and other liabilities. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of presentation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 3Com and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Certain prior year amounts in the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto have been
reclassified to conform to the 2002 presentation.

Discontinued operations. The financial data related to Palm, Inc. (Palm) is accounted for as a
discontinued operation for all periods presented. See Note 3.

Cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid debt investments acquired with a remaining
maturity of three months or less.

Short-term investments. Short-term investments consist of investments acquired with maturities exceeding
three months but less than three years. While 3Com’s intent is to hold debt securities to maturity,
consistent with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” 3Com has classified all debt securities and all investments in
equity securities that have readily determinable fair values as available-for-sale, as the sale of such
securities may be required prior to maturity to implement management strategies. Such securities are
reported at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses excluded from earnings and included in other
comprehensive income (loss), net of applicable taxes. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific
identification method.

Concentration of credit risk. Financial instruments which potentially subject 3Com to concentrations of
credit risk consist principally of cash and equivalents, short-term investments and accounts receivable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 2; Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3Com maintains a minimum average short-term investment portfolio credit quality of AA and invests in
instruments with an investment credit rating of A- and better. 3Com places its investments for safekeeping
with high-credit-quality financial institutions, and by policy, limits the amount of credit exposure from any
one institution or issuer.

For the three years in the period ended May 31, 2002 and as of May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, 3Com had
two significant customers. One customer accounted for 15 percent of total sales in each year for fiscal years
2002, 2001, and 2000, and 25 percent and 15 percent of total accounts receivable as of May 31, 2002 and
June 1, 2001, respectively. The second customer accounted for 13 percent of total sales in fiscal 2000, and
11 percent of total accounts receivable as of both May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost (which approximates first-in, first-out
cost) ar net realizable value.

Property and equipment. Property and equipment is stated at cost, with the exception of assets classified as
held for sale, which are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Equipment under capital leases is
stated at the lower of fair market value or the present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease.

Long-lived assets.  The carrying value of long-lived assets, including goodwill, is evaluated whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the asset may be impaired. An impairment
loss is recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the
asset, including disposition, is less than the carrying value of the asset. An impairment is measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value. Impairments of long-lived assets are
discussed in the related notes included herein.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are computed over the shorter of the
estimated useful lives, lease, or license terms on a straight-line basis—generally 2-15 years, except for
buildings, which are depreciated over 25-40 years. Purchased technology, other intangibles, and goodwill
are included in other assets, and were being amortized over estimated useful lives, generally two to seven
years. As discussed below, effective June 1, 2002 3Com adopted SFAS 142, and stopped amortization of
indefinite-lived assets, which include primarily goodwill. Finite-lived intangible assets continue to be
amortized over their estimated useful lives, generally two to seven years.

Revenue recognition. 3Com generally recognizes a sale when the product has been delivered and risk of
loss has passed to the customer, collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured, persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, and the fee is fixed or determinable. 3Com accrues related allowances
for product returns, warranty, other post-contract support obligations, and royalty expenses in the period
of sale. A limited warranty is provided on 3Com products for periods ranging from 90 days to the lifetime
of the product, depending upon the product. Service and maintenance sales are recognized over the
contract term. 3Com provides limited product return and price protection rights to certain distributors and
resellers. Product return rights are generally limited to a percentage of sales over a one to three month
period.

Advertising. Cooperative advertising obligations are expensed at the time the related sales are recognized.
All other advertising costs are expensed as incurred. ‘

Foreign currency translation. The majority of 3Com’s sales are denominated in U.S. Dollars. For foreign
operations with the local currency as the functional currency, assets and liabilities are translated at
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year-end exchange rates, and statements of operations are translated at the average exchange rates during
the year. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency translation are included as a component of other
comprehensive income (loss).

For 3Com entities with the U.S. Dollar as the functional currency, foreign currency denominated assets
and liabilities are translated at the year-end exchange rates except for inventories, prepaid expenses, and
property and equipment, which are translated at historical exchange rates. Statements of income are
translated at the average exchange rates during the year except for those expenses related to balance sheet
amounts that are translated using historical exchange rates. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency
translation are included in interest and other income, net, in the consolidated statements of operations.
Foreign currency gains (losses) were $0.2 million, $(0.8) million, and $1.2 million for the years ended
May 31, 2002, June 1, 2001, and June 2, 2000, respectively.

Where available, 3Com enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge certain balance sheet
exposures and intercompany balances against future movements in foreign exchange rates. In accordance
with SFAS 133, forward contracts are marked to market, and market value changes are expensed in the
current period in interest and other income, net.

Stock-based compensation. Employee stock plans are accounted for using the intrinsic value method
prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.”

Net income (loss) per share. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number
of common shares and potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the period. Potentially
dilutive common shares consist of employee stock options, warrants, and restricted stock, and are excluded
from the diluted earnings per share computation in loss periods.

Effects of recent accounting pronouncements. In June 1998 and June 1999, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging activities. Under
SFAS 133, certain contracts that were not formerly considered derivatives may now meet the definition of a
derivative. 3Com adopted SFAS 133 on June 2, 2001. The adoption of SFAS 133 did not have material
impact on the current financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of the Company.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 141, “Business Combinations,” which addresses the financial
accounting and reporting for business combinations and supersedes APB Opinion 16, “Business
Combinations,” and SFAS 38, “Accounting for Preacquisition Contingencies of Purchased Enterprises.”
SFAS 141 requires that all business combinations be accounted for by the purchase method, modifies the
criteria for recognizing intangible assets, and expands disclosure requirements. The provisions of SFAS 141
apply to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. 3Com adopted SFAS 141 on June 1, 2002.
3Com does not expect the adoption of SFAS 141 to have a material effect on its results of operations or
statements of financial position.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which addresses
financial accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible assets and supersedes APB
Opinion 17, “Intangible Assets.” SFAS 142 addresses how intangible assets that are acquired individually
or with a group of other assets should be accounted for in financial statements upon their acquisition and
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after they have been initially recognized in the financial statements. SFAS 142 requires that goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives not be amortized but rather tested at least annually for
impairment, and intangible assets that have finite useful lives be amortized over their useful lives. In
addition, SFAS 142 expands the disclosure requirements about goodwill and other intangible assets in the
years subsequent to their acquisition. Impairment losses for goodwill and indefinite-life intangible assets
that arise due to the initial application of SFAS 142 are to be reported as a change in accounting principle.
The Company adopted SFAS 142 on June 1, 2002 and ceased amortization of net goodwill totaling
$66.5 million, which includes $0.7 million of acquired workforce intangible previously classified as
purchased intangible assets; amortization continues on $27.7 million of net finite-lived intangible assets,
with remaining useful lives of generally two to four years as of May 31, 2002.-3Com is currently assessing
the impact that the adoption of SFAS 142 will have on its results of operations and statements of financial
position.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets.” SFAS 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of
long-lived assets. The Company adopted SFAS 144 on June 1, 2002. 3Com does not expect the adoption of
SFAS 144 to have a material effect on its results of operations or statements of financial position.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities,” which addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal
activities and supersedes Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).” SFAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be
recognized when the liability is incurred. Under Issue 94-3, a liability for an exit cost as defined in EITF
94-3 was recognized at the date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan. SFAS 146 also establishes that
the liability should initially be measured and recorded at fair value. 3Com will adopt the provisions of
SFAS 146 for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002.

Note 3: Discontinued Operations

On September 13, 1999, 3Com announced a plan to conduct an initial public offering (IPO) of its Palm
subsidiary. On March 2, 2000, 3Com sold 4.7% of Palm’s stock to the public and 1.0% of Palm’s stock in
private placements. On July 27, 2000, 3Com distributed its remaining Palm common stock to 3Com
shareholders. The distribution ratio was 1.4832 shares of Palm for each outstanding share of 3Com
common stock. No gain was recorded as a result of these transactions. The decrease in the intrinsic value
of 3Com’s employee stock plans attributable to the distribution of Palm was restored in accordance with
the methodology set forth in FASB Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 90-9, “Changes to Fixed Employee
Stock Option Plans as a Result of Equity Restructuring.” Prior to the Palm distribution, there were
approximately 35 million employee stock options outstanding. As a result of the Palm distribution, these
converted to approximately 169 million employee stock options outstanding as of July 27, 2000.

The historical consolidated financial statements of 3Com present Palm as a discontinued operation for all
periods presented. The financial data of Palm reflects the historical results of operations and cash flows of
the businesses that comprised the handheld computing business segment of 3Com during each respective
period; they do not reflect many significant changes that have occurred in the operations and funding of
Palm as a result of the separation from 3Com and the IPO. The Palm financial data presented as a
discontinued operation reflects the assets and liabilities transferred to Palm in accordance with the terms
of a master separation agreement to which Palm and 3Com are parties. Under the transitional services
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agreement, 3Com provided corporate and other infrastructure services to Palm, with specific service
functions ending at various dates during fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2002. From the date of the distribution, the
amounts charged to Palm for such services in fiscal 2002 and 2001 were not material to 3Com’s statement
of operations.

Discontinued operations include Palm net sales, which totaled $188.9 million and $1,057.6 million for fiscal
years 2001 and 2000, respectively. Income from Palm discontinued operations was reported net of income
tax expense of $2.7 million and $44.8 million for the fiscal years 2001 and 2000, respectively. Allocated
corporate expenses that ceased after the Palm spin-off are included in income from discontinued
operations.

Note 4: Restructuring Charges

Beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, 3Com undertook several initiatives aimed at both changing
business strategy as well as improving operational efficiencies. 3Com recorded restructuring charges of
$167.5 million, $163.7 million, and $68.9 million in the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002, June 1, 2001, and
June 2, 2000, respectively.

Actions Related to Reduction in Force and Cost Reduction Efforts

Beginning in the third quarter of fiscal 2001 and continuing through fiscal 2002, 3Com restructured its
operations to enhance its focus and cost effectiveness in serving its markets. Three independent
businesses—Business Connectivity Company (BCC), Business Networks Company (BNC), and
CommWorks Corporation (CommWorks)—were formed through this restructuring effort, with each
business utilizing central shared corporate services. As part of this restructuring effort, 3Com implemented
a reduction in force and cost reduction actions aimed at expense and asset reduction; exited its consumer
Internet Appliance, cable modem, and digital subscriber line (DSL) modem product lines; and increased
its outsourcing of the manufacturing of high volume server, desktop and mobile connectivity products in a
contract manufacturing arrangement. Concurrent with such outsourcing, 3Com is consolidating its real
estate portfolio and plans to sell certain facilities. For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001,
3Com recorded charges of approximately $167.6 million and $150.7 million, respectively, related to these
restructuring activities. Charges recorded in fiscal 2002 were net of $6.3 million of credits for revisions of
previous estimates, primarily relating to severance accruals.

Subsequent to May 31, 2002, 3Com announced it will merge BCC into BNC to achieve cost efficiencies
from leveraging common infrastructure and services. As this announcement was made during fiscal 2003,
no charges are reflected in the table below for the merging of these two businesses. Components of
accrued restructuring charges, which are included in accrued liabilities and other in the accompanying
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balance sheet, and changes in accrued amounts related to this restructuring program as of May 31, 2002
and June 1, 2001 were as follows (in thousands):

" Severance Long-term Facilities- Other
and Asset related Restructuring
. ~ Outplacement  Write downs Charges Costs Total
Balance at June 2,2000 ............ $ — $ - 8 _ $ — $ —_—
Charges........... ... .. 86,439 59,601 944 3,761 150,745
Deductions . ....... e e e e (46,537) (59,601) (944) (1,979) (109,061)
Balance at June 1, 2001 ............ 39,902 —_ —_ 1,782 41,684
Charges.......... ..., 52,987 13,636 93,897 7,101 167,621
Deductions ..................... (87,936) (13,636)  (88,543) (5,436) (195,551)
Balance at May 31,2002 ........... $ 4,953 $ — $ 5354 $ 3,447 $ 13;754
Estimated remaining cash expenditures .  $ 4,953 $ — § 4820 $ 3,447 $ 13,220

Employee separation expenses are comprised of severance pay, outplacement services, medical and other
related benefits. Affected employee groups include corporate services, manufacturing and logistics,
product organizations, sales, customer support and administrative positions. As of June 1, 2001,
approximately 2,600 employees had been separated or were currently in the separation process, resulting in
approximately $46.5 million of employee separation payments. Included in fiscal 2001 severance and
outplacement charges and deductions is approximately $15.5 million of accelerated amortization of
deferred stock compensation for qualified employees of Kerbango, Inc. (Kerbango). The total reduction in
force since the inception of the restructuring through May 31, 2002 includes approximately 5,400
employees who have been separated or were currently in the separation process. There are an additional
50 employees who have been notified but have not yet worked their last day. As of May 31, 2002, 3Com
had communicated to all impacted employees regarding employee separation benefits and the timing of
separation. Fiscal 2002 employee separation payments were approximately $87.9 million, resulting in
payments of $134.5 million since the inception of this restructuring initiative.

Long term asset write downs include those assets identified that will not support continuing operations for
3Com. For fiscal 2001, 3Com recorded a provision of $59.6 million for the write down of long-term assets.
Fiscal 2001 charges included $30.1 million for discontinued software applications, $24.3 million for the
write downs of net goodwill and intangibles associated with certain acquisitions relating to product lines
3Com is exiting, and $5.2 million for write downs of other assets related to exited product lines or
separated employees. Fiscal 2002 charges were $13.6 million, primarily for manufacturing and engineering
equipment, resulting in a total of $73.2 million of long-term asset write downs since the inception of this
restructuring initiative.

Facilities-related charges include accelerated depreciation of buildings, write downs of land and buildings
held for sale, losses on sales of facilities, and lease terminations. 3Com incurred and paid approximately
$0.9 million in fiscal 2001 for facilities lease terminations. In fiscal 2002, 3Com recorded $93.9 million in
facilities-related charges, for a total of $94.8 million of facility-related charges since the inception of this
restructuring initiative. Fiscal 2002 charges were comprised of $41.4 million of accelerated depreciation on
its Mount Prospect, Illinois facility, $24.4 million for write downs of land and buildings held for sale in
Santa Clara and Mount Prospect, a $14.3 million loss on the sale of its Singapore manufacturing facility,
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and approximately $13.8 million for other facilities-related charges. Depreciation has been stopped for the
assets classified as held for sale.

Other restructuring costs include payments to suppliers and contract breakage fees. In fiscal 2001, 3Com
recorded a provision of approximately $3.8 million related to other restructuring costs, and $2.0 million
was charged against this provision, relating primarily to royalty payments for discontinued products and
contract breakage fees. In fiscal 2002, 3Com recorded a provision of approximately $7.1 million related to
other restructuring costs, and $5.4 million was charged against this provision, relating primarily to
payments of contract breakage fees, resulting in payments of $7.4 million since the inception of this
restructuring initiative.

3Com expects to substantially complete its restructuring activities related to the reduction in force and cost
reduction measures described above during fiscal 2003. As the restructuring activities continue and
definitive plans are established, 3Com expects to incur further expenses during fiscal year 2003.

Exit of Analog-Only Modem and High-End LAN/WAN Chassis Product Lines and Separation of Palm

3Com realigned its strategy in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000 to focus on high-growth markets,
technologies, and products. Operations were restructured around two distinct business models:
1) Commercial and Consumer Networks Business and 2) CommWorks. In support of this strategy, 3Com
exited its analog-only modem and high-end Local Area Network (LAN) and Wide Area Network (WAN)
chassis product lines and completed the separation of Palm. 3Com recorded a restructuring credit of
approximately $0.2 million in fiscal 2002 and restructuring charges of $13.2 million in fiscal 2001 relating to
these activities. For the fiscal year ended June 2, 2000, 3Com recorded net restructuring charges of
$59.0 million, consisting of restructuring charges of approximately $125.4 million, partially offset by a gain
recognized upon receipt of a warrant to purchase common stock in Extreme Networks, Inc., valued at
$66.4 million. 3Com also recorded a credit of $0.2 million and charges of $9.9 million for the fiscal years
ended June 1, 2001 and June 2, 2000, respectively, related to the separation of Palm. 3Com completed its
restructuring activities associated with the exit of the analog-only modem and high-end LAN and WAN
chassis product lines during fiscal 2001. The net restructuring benefits relate to revisions of previous
estimates of restructuring costs. Components of accrued restructuring charges and changes in accrued
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amounts related to this restructuring program for the fiscal years ended and as of May 31, 2002, June 1,
2001, and June 2, 2000 were as follows (in thousands):

Severance Long-term Facilities Other
and Asset Lease Restructuring
Outplacement  Write-downs  Terminations Costs Total
Balance at May 28,1999 ........... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Charges (benefits) ................ 59,890 20,187 8,932 36,404 125,413
Deductions ..................... (25,678) (20,187) (632) (30,731) (77,228)
Balance at June 2,2000 . ........... 34,212 — 8,300 5,673 48,185
Charges (benefits) .. .............. (4,637) 9,761 (6,149) 14,270 13,245
Deductions ..................... (29,214) (9,761) (2,151) (19,943) (61,069)
Balance at June 1, 2001 . ... ........ 361 — — — 361
Benefits .................... ... (159) — — — (159)
Deductions . .................... (202) — — — (202)
Balance at May 31,2002 ........... $ - $ — $ — $ — $ —

Severance and outplacement costs related to the termination of approximately 2,700 employees. Employee
separation costs included severance, medical, and other benefits. Employee groups impacted by the
restructuring include personnel involved in corporate services, manufacturing and logistics, product
organizations, sales, and customer support. As of June 2, 2000, approximately 900 employees had begun
the separation process, resulting in payments of $25.7 million. As of the first quarter of fiscal 2002, all
affected employees had been notified of termination and employee separations associated with
announcements made in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000 had been completed, resulting in separation
payments of $29.2 million for the fiscal year 2001, $0.2 million for the fiscal year 2002, and $55.1 million
since the inception of this restructuring initiative. During the first quarter of fiscal 2002, 3Com recorded a
net restructuring benefit of approximately $0.2 million relating to revisions of previous estimates of
restructuring costs.

In fiscal 2000, 3Com wrote off $20.2 million for sales-related hardware and software applications that were
no longer needed. During fiscal year 2001, $9.8 million of capital assets were written off, for a total of
$29.9 million in capital asset write-offs since the inception of the restructuring. All restructuring activities
related to the disposal of long-term assets had been completed as of June 1, 2001.

In fiscal 2000, $8.9 million was accrued for costs associated with the closure of approximately 300,000
square feet of office space through lease terminations. Space reductions included approximately 120,000
square feet in the Americas, 170,000 square feet in Europe, and 10,000 square feet in Asia Pacific. As of
June 2, 2000, $0.6 million of expenses had been paid related to lease terminations. During fiscal year 2001,
a benefit of $6.1 million was recorded representing a revision in the estimate of costs associated with
facilities lease terminations due to subsequent decisions not to dispose of space in the U.S., Europe and
Latin America. Additionally, a thriving global real estate market resulted in lower actual disposal costs as
landlords could easily replace tenants at a higher rent level. $2.2 million of expenses had been paid related
to facilities closures as of June 1, 2001, for a total of $2.8 million in facilities lease termination costs since
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the inception of this restructuring initiative. All restructuring activities associated with the closure of
facilities through lease terminations had been completed as of June 1, 2001.

In fiscal 2000, $36.4 million was accrued for other restructuring costs, consisting of approximately
$27.2 million related to payments to suppliers and vendors to terminate agreements and $9.2 million for
professional fees and other direct costs. As of June 2, 2000, $25.0 million of this expense had been paid for
contract breakage costs and $5.7 million had been paid for professional fees and other direct costs. During
fiscal year 2001, $14.3 million was accrued to cover remaining restructuring costs and included the
$11.7 million loss on the sale of 3Com’s manufacturing and distribution operations during the second
quarter of fiscal 2001. As of June 2, 2001, $19.9 million had been paid related to contract breakage costs,
professional fees, costs associated with the sale of 3Com’s manufacturing and distribution operations and
other direct costs, for a total of $50.6 million since the inception of this restructuring initiative. All other
restructuring activities had been completed as of June 1, 2001.

During fiscal 2000, as part of the restructuring initiative, 3Com formed a strategic alliance with Extreme
Networks, Inc. to provide a migration path for customers of 3Com’s high-end LAN products. As part of
the agreement, 3Com received a vested warrant to purchase 1.5 million shares of Extreme Networks, Inc.
common stock at an exercise price of $79 per share. The term of the warrant was two years, expiring on
April 3, 2002. This warrant had a fair value of $66.4 million at the time of receipt. The gain recognized on
receipt of this warrant partially offset the business realignment charges for the year ended June 2, 2000.
During fiscal 2001, 3Com entered into a collar against the warrant to hedge changes in the fair value of the
warrant. This collar was settled during fiscal 2001 for a gain of approximately $56.6 million. This gain was
recorded as an adjustment of the cost basis in the warrant. The warrant was sold during fiscal 2001 for
proceeds of $20.1 million, resuiting in a gain of $8.7 million.

3Com completed its restructuring activities associated with the exit of the analog-only modem and
high-end LAN and WAN chassis product lines and the separation of Palm during the first quarter of fiscal
2002. '

Note 5: Business Combinations and Joint Ventures

For acquisitions accounted for as purchases, 3Com’s consolidated statements of operations include the
operating results of the acquired companies from their acquisition dates. Acquired assets and liabilities
were recorded at their estimated fair values at the dates of acquisition, and the aggregate purchase price
plus costs directly attributable to the completion of the acquisitions have been allocated to the assets and
liabilities acquired. No significant adjustments were required to conform the accounting policies of the
acquired companies to the accounting policies of 3Com. Proforma results of operations have not been
presented for any of these acquisitions as the effects of these acquisitions were not material to the
Company either individually or on an aggregate basis.

3Com completed the following transactions during the fiscal year ended June 1, 2001:

* During the third quarter of fiscal 2001, 3Com acquired the Gigabit Ethernet network interface card
(NIC) business of Alteon WebSystems (Alteon), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nortel Networks
Corporation (Nortel) for an aggregate purchase price of $123.0 million, consisting of cash paid to
Nortel of $122.0 million and $1.0 million of costs directly attributable to the completion of the
acquisition. 3Com purchased the Alteon NIC business and is licensing certain Gigabit Ethernet-
related technology and intellectual property from Alteon.

Approximately $22.5 million of the aggregate purchase price represented purchased in-process
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technology that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use, and
was charged to operations in the third quarter of fiscal 2001. A risk adjusted after-tax discount rate
of 25 percent was applied to the in-process project’s cash flows. This purchase resulted in
$86.0 million of goodwill and other intangible assets that were being amortized over an estimated
useful life of four years.

In fiscal 2002, 3Com determined that lower than anticipated revenue growth resulted in an
impairment of the goodwill and developed product technology that arose from the acquisition of
Alteon. These intangible assets were written down $50.9 million to fair value, which was estimated
using discounted future cash flows. The impairment charge was included in amortization and write
down of intangibles, and is a component of contribution margin for BCC as reported in Note 18. As
a result of the analysis, 3Com wrote down all of the Alteon-related goodwill and a portion of the
Alteon developed product technology. Remaining net intangible assets continue to be amortized
over their original useful lives.

* During the second quarter of fiscal 2001, 3Com acquired Nomadic Technologies, Inc. (Nomadic), a
developer of wireless networking products that 3Com has incorporated into solutions for both small
business and enterprise customers, for an aggregate purchase price of $31.8 million, consisting of
cash paid to Nomadic of $23.5 million, issuance of restricted stock with a fair value of $3.8 million,
stock options assumed with a fair value of $4.3 million, and $0.2 million of costs directly attributable
to the completion of the acquisition.

For financial reporting purposes, the aggregate purchase price was reduced by the intrinsic value of
unvested stock options and restricted stock totaling $6.9 million, which was recorded as deferred
stock-based compensation and is being amortized over the respective vesting periods.
Approximately $8.3 million of the aggregate purchase price represented purchased in-process
technology that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use, and
was charged to operations in the second quarter of fiscal 2001. A risk adjusted after-tax discount
rate of 30 percent was applied to the in-process projects’ cash flows. This purchase resulted in
$18.6 million of goodwill and other intangible assets that are being amortized over estimated useful
lives of three to five years. Finite-lived intangible assets continue to be amortized over their original
useful lives, whereas remaining indefinite-lived intangible assets will no longer be amortized, but
reviewed for impairment at least annually in accordance with 3Com’s adoption of SFAS 142,
effective June 1, 2002.

¢ During the first quarter of fiscal 2001, 3Com acquired Kerbango, developer of the Kerbango™
Internet radio, radio tuning system, and radio web site, for an aggregate purchase price of
$73.5 million, consisting of cash paid to Kerbango of $52.2 million, issuance of restricted stock with
a fair value of $17.2 million, stock options assumed with a fair value of $3.8 million, and $0.3 million
of costs directly attributable to the completion of the acquisition. In addition, deferred cash
payments to founders and certain former employees totaling $7.7 million were contingent upon
certain events through July 2002.

For financial reporting purposes, the aggregate purchase price, excluding deferred cash payments,
was reduced by the intrinsic value of unvested stock options and restricted stock totaling
$20.2 million, which was recorded as deferred stock-based compensation and was being amortized
over the respective vesting periods. Approximately $29.4 million of the aggregate purchase price
represented purchased in-process technology that had not yet reached technological feasibility and
had no alternative future use, and was charged to operations in the first quarter of fiscal 2001. A
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risk adjusted after-tax discount rate of 35 percent was applied to the in-process project’s cash flows.
This purchase resulted in $33.7 million of goodwill and other intangible assets were being amortized
over estimated useful lives of three to five years.

As part of 3Com’s efforts to improve profitability, the Company announced that it would exit the
Internet Appliance product line during fiscal year 2001. As a result, 3Com determined that the net
unamortized assets had no remaining future value and consequently wrote off the net remaining
amounts of deferred stock-based compensation, goodwill, and intangible assets. This included
$15.5 million of accelerated amortization of deferred stock-based compensation for qualified
terminated Kerbango employees and $21.1 million of net goodwill and intangible assets related to
the Kerbango acquisition. These charges were included as part of restructuring charges in fiscal
2001.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2001, 3Com completed the transfer of its analog-only modem
product lines to U.S. Robotics Corporation (New USR), the new joint venture formed with Accton
Technology and NatSteel Electronics. 3Com contributed $3.1 million of assets to New USR for an
18.7% investment in the joint venture. New USR assumed the analog-only modem product line,
including U.S. Robotics and U.S. Robotics Courier branded modems.

During fiscal 2001, 3Com wrote off its $3.1 million investment in New USR as the value of this
investment was determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired. The amount was charged to
gains (losses) on investments, net.

3Com completed the following transactions during the fiscal year ended June 2, 2000:

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, 3Com acquired Call Technologies, Inc. (Call Technologies),
a developer of Unified Messaging (UM) and carrier-class Operational Systems and Support (OSS)
software solutions for service providers, for an aggregate purchase price of $86.0 million, consisting
of cash of approximately $73.4 million, assumption of stock options with a fair value of
approximately $8.6 million, the assumption of $1.4 million in debt, and $2.6 million of costs directly
attributable to the completion of the acquisition. Approximately $10.6 million of the total purchase
price represented purchased in-process technology that had not yet reached technological
feasibility, had no alternative future use, and was charged to operations in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2000. This purchase resulted in approximately $86.7 million of goodwill and other intangible
assets that were being amortized over estimated useful lives of three to seven years.

The weakened telecommunications industry conditions in fiscal 2002 and 2001 resulted in the
impairments of the goodwill and related intangible assets that arose from the Call Technologies
acquisition. These assets were written down $15.3 million and $18.2 million in fiscal 2002 and 2001,
respectively, to fair value, which was estimated using discounted future cash flows. The write down
in fiscal 2002 related to goodwill and acquired customer relationships. The fiscal 2001 write down
included a portion of the developed technology and associated goodwill. These impairment charges
were included in amortization and write down of intangibles, and are components of contribution
margin for CommWorks as reported in Note 18. Remaining net finite-lived intangible assets
continue to be amortized over their original useful lives, whereas remaining indefinite-lived
intangible assets will no longer be amortized, but reviewed for impairment at least annually in
accordance with 3Com’s adoption of SFAS 142, effective June 1, 2002.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2000, 3Com acquired LANSource Technologies, Inc.
(LANSource), a developer of Internet and LAN fax software and modem sharing software, for an
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aggregate purchase price of $15.8 million in cash, including $0.2 million of costs directly attributable
to the completion of the acquisition. Approximately $2.9 million of the total purchase price
represented purchased in-process technology that had not yet reached technological feasibility, had
no alternative future use, and was charged to operations in the third quarter of fiscal 2000. This
purchase resulted in approximately $13.3 million of goodwill and other intangible assets that were
being amortized over estimated useful lives of two to five years.

As part of 3Com’s efforts to improve profitability in fiscal 2001, the Company decided that it would
exit certain LANSource product lines and license the technology to a former competitor in that
market. As a result of this decision, 3Com determined that an impairment of developed technology
and related goodwill that arose from the LANSource acquisition had occurred. These assets were
written down $1.1 million to their estimated realizable fair value. This amount was included in
restructuring charges in fiscal 2001. Also in fiscal 2001, 3Com determined that a customer’s product
line discontinuation resulted in an impairment of a license agreement and related goodwill that
arose from the LANSource acquisition. Those assets were determined to have no future value, and
accordingly $1.0 million was written off.

In fiscal 2002, weakened telecommunications industry conditions indicated further impairment of
LANSource goodwill and intangible assets, primarily for core technology and related goodwill.
These assets were written down approximately $3.9 million to fair value, which was estimated using
discounted future cash flows. The $3.9 million and $1.0 million impairment charges recorded in
fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively, were included in amortization and write down of intangibles, and
are components of contribution margin for CommWorks as reported in Note 18. Remaining net
finite-lived intangible assets continue to be amortized over their original useful lives, whereas
remaining indefinite-lived intangible assets will no longer be amortized, but reviewed for
impairment at least annually in accordance with 3Com’s adoption of SFAS 142, effective June 1,
2002.

* During the third quarter of fiscal 2000, 3Com acquired Interactive Web Concepts, Inc. (IWC), an
Internet business consulting, creative design, and software engineering firm, for an aggregate
purchase price of $3.5 million in cash, including $0.1 million of costs directly attributable to the
completion of the acquisition. This purchase resulted in approximately $4.1 million of goodwill and
other intangible assets that were being amortized over estimated useful lives of three years.

As part of 3Com’s efforts to improve profitability, the Company decided that it would discontinue
providing IWC services during fiscal year 2001. As a result, 3Com determined that the net
unamortized assets had no remaining future value and consequently wrote off $2.1 million, which
was the net remaining amount of goodwill and intangible assets. This amount was included in
restructuring charges in fiscal 2001.
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Note 6: Investments

Available-for-sale securities consist of:

May 31, 2002
Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(In thousands)
State and municipal securities . ... ................. $ 7038 §$ 97 $ — $ 7,135
U.S. Government and agency securities . ............. 171,860 508 (115) 172,253
Corporate debt securities . ....................... 522,915 1,096 (406) 523,605
Short-term investments . .. ........ ... ... ... .. ... 701,813 1,701 (521) 702,993
Publicly traded corporate equity securities ............ 729 — (222) 507
Total ... e $702,542  $1,701 $(743)  $703,500

June 1, 2001

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(In thousands)
State and municipal securities ... ...... ... ... L $125,854 $ 1,133 $ —  $126987
U.S. Government and agency securities . ............. 209,522 5,820 — 215,342
Corporate debt securities ............... ......... 394,247 5,998 (160) 400,085
Short-term investments . . . . .. e e e 729,623 12,951 (160) 742,414
Publicly traded corporate equity securities . ........... 20,025 4,570 (220) 24,375
Total .. ................ e $749,648 $17,521 $(380) $766,789

Publicly traded corporate equity securities are included in other current assets.

During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002, publicly traded corporate equity securities were sold for
proceeds of $32.2 million. Net realized losses on investments of $17.9 million were recorded during fiscal
2002, comprised of $30.5 million of net losses recognized due to fair value adjustments of investments in
limited partnership venture capital funds and impairments of investments in private companies whose
declines in value have been determined to be other than temporary. The losses were partially offset by
$12.6 million of net gains realized on sales of publicly traded equity securities. During the fiscal year ended
June 1, 2001, publicly traded corporate equity securities were sold for proceeds of $224.0 million. Net
realized losses on investments of $18.6 million were recorded during fiscal 2001, comprised of
$135.7 million of net losses recognized due to fair value adjustments of investments in limited partnership
venture capital funds and impairments of investments in private companies and publicly traded securities
whose declines in value have been determined to be other than temporary. The losses were partially offset
by $117.1 million of net gains realized on sales of publicly traded equity securities. During the fiscal year
ended June 2, 2000, publicly traded corporate equity securities were sold for proceeds of $818.0 million.
Net realized gains on investments of $838.8 million were recorded during fiscal 2000, comprised of
$792.7 million of net gains realized on sales of publicly traded equity securities and $46.1 million of net
gains recognized due to fair value adjustments of investments in limited partnership venture capital funds
and in private companies acquired by public companies.
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The contractual maturities of available-for-sale debt securities at May 31, 2002 are as follows: - .

Cost Fair Value'

(In thousands)
WIthin ONE YEar ... v vttt it - $527,616 $528,703
Between one year and twoyears . ........... ... . ... ... 174,197 174,290
Short-term iNvestments .. ... ... rnnnn... .. $701,813 $702,993

Note 7: Inventories
Inventories consist of:

May 31, June 1,

2002 2001
(In thousands)
Finishedgoods . . ...... ... ... . . . $29,730 $ 46,091
WOTK-in-Process . ..o o v vt i it e 15,458 64,319
Rawmaterials . ......... . . i i 16,589 89,736
Total . ... $61,777  $200,146
Note 8: Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, net, consists of:
May 31, June 1,
2002 2001
(In thousands)
Land.............. e e $ 114373 § 44,635
Land, property, and equipment held for sale, net. . ... ... 71,555 11,681
Buildings and improvements . . . .................. .. 367,781 297,335
Machinery and equipment .............. .. ... ... .. 467,248 754,073
SOftware .. ... e 148,103 163,592
Furniture and fixtures. .. . .......... ... ... ....... 75,091 96,988
Leasehold improvements . .................u.uu... 52,300 70,175
Construction in Progress . . . v oo v e v i e e e een e 7,051 42,637
Total . ... e 1,303,502 1,481,116
Accumulated depreciation and amortization. .. ......... (627,348) (871,437
Property and equipment, net. .. .................... $ 676,154 $ 609,679
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Note 8: Property and Equipment (Continued)
Significant property and equipment transactions

For the Year Ended May 31, 2002. In the second quarter of fiscal 200, 3Com paid $316.7 million for land
and buildings on its Santa Clara headquarters site and Marlborough, Massachusetts office complex that
were previously under operating lease arrangements.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2002, 3Com sold its Singapore manufacturing and distribution facility for net
proceeds of approximately $10.7 million. As a result of this transaction, 3Com recorded a loss of
$14.3 million, which is included in restructuring charges. Also included in restructuring charges are
$41.4 million of accelerated depreciation on its Mount Prospect facility and $24.4 million for impairments
of held for sale properties located in Santa Clara and Mount Prospect. Restructuring charges are discussed
further in Note 4. Held for sale assets as of May 31, 2002 consist primarily of facilities located in Santa
Clara, Mount Prospect, and Salt Lake City, Utah. As discussed in Note 21, in July 2002 3Com sold its
Mount Prospect facility that was classified as held for sale as of May 31, 2002.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2002, 3Com recorded an additional impairment charge of $1.4 million for its
held for sale facility in Salt Lake City, which was recorded in losses (gains) on land and facilities, net.

For the Year Ended June 1, 2001. In the second quarter of fiscal 2001, 3Com sold a 39-acre parcel of
undeveloped land in San Jose, California to Palm for total net proceeds of approximately $215.6 million.
3Com recorded a net gain of $174.4 million related to this sale. In the third quarter of fiscal 2001, 3Com
sold a vacated office and manufacturing building in Morton Grove, Illinois for total net sales proceeds of
$12.4 million, resulting in a gain of approximately $4.4 million. A combined net gain of $178.8 million was
recognized related to these transactions, and was recorded in losses (gains) on land and facilities, net.

For the Year Ended June 2, 2000. 3Com sold two facilities in the Chicago and Salt Lake City areas and
equipment in the Chicago area for total net proceeds of $93.2 million. In addition, an impairment charge
of approximately $4.0 million was recognized related to the write down to fair value of the remaining
facility held for sale in Salt Lake City. A combined net gain of $25.5 million was recognized related to these
transactions, and was recorded in losses (gains) on land and facilities, net.

Note 9: Accrued Liabilities and Other

Other accrued liabilities consist of:

May 31,  June 1;
2002 2001
(In thousands)
Accrued payroll and related expenses . . . ................ $ 56,831 $123,092
Accrued product warranty .. ........ ... ..o 53,289 53,571
Deferred revenue . ... ... .t ii eea 48,429 76,496
Accrued purchase commitments . ................... L 9,142 178,942
Other............ ... .. ... ... .. e ~... 108274 148820
Accrued liabilities and other .. ....... ... .. ... . ... . ... $275,965 $580,921

Note 10: Borrowing Arrangements and Commitments

In the second quarter of fiscal 2002, 3Com entered into new financing arrangements whereby the Company
borrowed $105.0 million under a term loan and $102.2 million under a $105.0 million revolving line of
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Note 10: Borrowing Arrangements and Commitments (Continued)

credit. 3Com applied the proceeds from these borrowings towards the purchase of land and buildings on its
Santa Clara headquarters site and Marlborough office complex that were previously subject to operating
lease arrangements. In accordance with the lease terms, 3Com paid $316.7 million for the properties and
terminated such leases.

Under the term loan, quarterly principal payments of $7.5 million are due from March 2002 through
September 2004, with the balance due in November 2004. The revolving line of credit also expires in
November 2004, at which time all outstanding amounts are due. Interest on each of the term and revolving
facilities is due monthly, and bears interest, at 3Com’s election, at either the lender’s base rate or LIBOR
rate, plus an applicable margin. As of May 31, 2002, $97.5 million was outstanding on the term loan, and
$70.0 million was outstanding on the revolving line of credit. The interest rate at May 31, 2002 on the term
loan was 4.9 percent, and the interest rate on the revolving line of credit was 5.8 percent. Total interest
expense for these instruments for fiscal 2002 was $3.4 million.

The financing arrangements are secured by certain real properties and other assets of 3Com, including
accounts receivable, inventory, and plant and equipment. The credit agreement places limitations upon,
among other things, certain types of mergers and asset dispositions. 3Com is also required to maintain
minimum balances in specified accounts of $210 million, reduced by the amount of any term loan principal
repayments, which were $7.5 million in fiscal 2002. If 3Com’s liquidity, consisting of its cash (inclusive of
amounts held in specified accounts), cash equivalents, short term investments, and available borrowings
under the revolving line of credit, falls below $650 million, the Company will be required to immediately
pay the outstanding balance of the term loan. Under the terms of the agreement, 3Com must maintain
total liquidity of $400 million. In an event of default, 3Com will be subject to additional restrictive
covenants.

Additionally, 3Com had borrowings of $2.3 million related to equipment financing transactions and
$1.0 million in unused bank-issued standby letters of credit and bank guarantees as of May 31, 2002.

As of May 31, 2002, the weighted average interest rate on outstanding debt was approximately five percent.

During July 1994, 3Com arranged a private placement of $60 million in 7.52% Unsecured Senior Notes
with three insurance companies. The notes were payable in five equal installments beginning in June 1997.
During the first quarter of fiscal 2001, 3Com repaid the remaining debt balance of $24 million under this
agreement.

3Com leases certain of its facilities under operating leases. Leases expire at various dates from 2002 to
2025, and certain facility leases have renewal options with rentals based upon changes in the Consumer
Price Index or the fair market rental value of the property. 3Com also rents certain of its leased and owned
facilities to third party tenants. The rental agreements expire at various dates from 2002 to 2008.
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Future operating lease commitments and future rental income are as follows:

Future Future

Fiscal year Lease Payments  Rental Income

(in thousands) (in thousands)
2003 L e $19,359 $26,347
2004 ... e 13,300 8,307
2005 L. e e e 11,458 7,702
2006 ... e 10,946 7,871
2007 e 7,439 4,519
Thereafter . .. ... . i i e e 7,178 665
Total . ... o $69,680 $55,411

Rent expense was $38.1 million, $58.0 million, and $51.5 million for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002,
June 1, 2001, and June 2, 2000, respectively. Rental income, which includes rents received for both owned
and leased property, was $41.9 million, $32.6 million, and $8.6 million for the fiscal years ended May 31,
2002, June 1, 2001, and June 2, 2000, respectively, and is recorded as an offset to operating expenses.
Included in rental income was rental income from Palm of $25.1 million, $16.7 million and $2.6 million for
the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002, June 1, 2001 and June 2, 2000, respectively.

In conjunction with the sale of the Company’s manufacturing and distribution operations to
Manufacturers’ Services Limited (MSL) on September 30, 2000, 3Com committed to purchase a minimum
manufacturing volume, excluding the cost of materials, of $31 million per quarter during the first year of
the agreement, and $30 million per quarter during the second year of the agreement. Due to 3Com’s
announcement that it would exit its consumer product lines and the slowdown in the telecommunications
industry in 2001, the Company did not expect to reach the minimum purchase commitments in the future.
Based on management’s best estimates, a charge was recorded to cost of goods sold in the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2001 to accrue for estimated future purchase commitment shortfalls and expected contract
termination costs. 3Com recorded an additional charge to cost of goods sold in the first quarter of fiscal
2002 as a result of the Company’s renegotiation of the contract that was completed in the second quarter
of fiscal 2002. The renegotiated contract eliminated the minimum volume commitments.

Note 11: Warrants to Purchase Broadcom Common Stock and Purchase Agreement

In fiscal 2001, 3Com entered into a Purchase and Warrant Agreement (purchase agreement) with Altima
Communications, Inc. (Altima) to purchase certain components through December 2002. The purchase
agreement provided for cash penalties to Altima in the event that minimum purchases were not met on a
calendar quarter basis. The agreement included a performance warrant issued to 3Com to purchase
common stock of Altima, which vested as product purchases were made. Since Altima was subsequently
acquired by Broadcom Corporation (Broadcom), the warrant to purchase shares of common stock of
Altima was replaced by a warrant to purchase 992,000 shares of common stock of Broadcom (warrant
shares). The fair value of the warrant was fixed at approximately $244 million, since the agreement
contained significant disincentives for nonperformance. The effects of warrant shares earned were
recorded as a credit to cost of sales as purchases were made, based on the fixed valuation of the warrant of
$244 million. In January 2001, 3Com exercised its vested portion of the warrant and received 126,940
shares of Broadcom common stock. The investment in Broadcom common stock was accounted for in
accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” Due
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to the significant decline in the value of the Broadcom common stock, 3Com recorded an
other-than-temporary impairment charge of $25.3 million in fiscal 2001. As certain terms of the purchase
agreement were not met, 3Com terminated the purchase agreement in February 2001 without penalty.
3Com continues to maintain an ongoing purchase arrangement with Broadcom that does not include a
performance warrant.

Note 12: Common Stock

Quitstanding Options Adjustment for Palm Spin-Off.  On July 27, 2000, 3Com completed the distribution of
Palm, Inc. common stock held by 3Com to 3Com stockholders (the Palm distribution). As a result of the
Palm distribution, to preserve the intrinsic value of the stock options as discussed in Note 3, the number of
shares of 3Com common stock subject to an option grant were adjusted by multiplying the pre-Palm
distribution number by 4.827103 and the exercise price per share was adjusted by dividing the pre-Palm
distribution exercise price by 4.827103 (the Palm distribution adjustment).

Common Stock and Stock Option Plan Reserve Adjustments for Palm Spin-Off.  On July 27, 2000, as a result
of the Palm spin-off, an adjustment was made to the reserves for the Company’s 1983 stock option plan,
1994 stock option pian, 1984 employee stock purchase plan, restricted stock plan, director stock plan, and
all option plan reserves related to prior acquisitions. Such reserves were multiplied by the Palm adjustment
factor of 4.827103 pursuant to the terms of such benefit plans.

Preferred Shares Rights Plan. In September 1989, the Board of Directors approved a common stock
purchase rights plan, which was amended and restated in December 1994 (the Prior Plan). In March 2001,
the Board of Directors approved a Second Amended and Restated Preferred Shares Rights Plan (the
Preferred Shares Rights Plan), which replaced the Prior Plan. The Preferred Shares Rights plan provides
that the preferred share rights become exercisable based on certain limited conditions related to
acquisitions of stock, tender offers, and certain business combination transactions of 3Com. In the event
one of the limited conditions is triggered, each right entitles the registered holder of 3Com’s common stack
to purchase for $55 one one-thousandth of a share of 3Com Series A Participating Preferred Stock (or any
acquiring company). The rights are redeemable at 3Com’s option for $.001 per right and expire on
March 8, 2011.

Stock Option Plans. 3Com has stock option plans under which employees and directors may be granted
options to purchase common stock. Options are generally granted at not less than the fair market value at
grant date, vest annually over two to four years, and expire five to ten years after the grant date. Stock
option plans include stockholder-approved plans, and the Company’s Board of Directors has authorized
shares for issuance outside the existing stockholder-approved plans. Options issued and available for
future issuance outside of the stockholder-approved plans have been issued primarily under the 1994 Stock
Option Plan, as amended, whose features are substantially similar to those of the stockholder-approved
plans. Also, additional options have been issued outside of stockholder-approved plans arising from the
assumptions of options in connection with acquisitions. No additional options are available for future
issuance under plans assumed from acquisitions.
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A summary of option transactions under the plans follows:

Number Weighted average

of shares exercise price
(Shares in thousands)
Outstanding, May 28,1999, . ... .......... ... 49,246 $25.60
Granted and assumed .. ........... ... ... . ... . ... 20,461 34.07
Exercised .. ... . . . (14,726) 19.78
Canceled ........ ... ... .. i (12,146) 30.04
Outstanding, June 2,2000 .. ... ... ... ... . ... 42,835 30.39
Granted and assumed . ............ ... ... 30,172 14.42
Additional options granted to compensate for loss in
intrinsic value due to Palm spin-off . .. ............ 134,045 —
Exercised ... ..... ... i e (23,674) 8.98
Canceled ........... .. . ... i (35,237) 10.47
Outstanding, June 1, 2001 . ...................... 148,141 7.80
Granted . ..., e e e 23,628 4.86
Exercised . ...... ... .. i (8,174) 3.98
Canceled ......... .. ... . .. (52,493) 8.24
Qutstanding, May 31,2002. . ... ........ ... ...t 111,102 725
Outstanding options as of May 31, 2002 Exercisable at Ma); 31, 2002
Range of Number Weighted average Weighted average Number Weighted average
exercise prices of shares exercise price remaining contractual life of shares exercise price
(in thousands) (in years) (in thousands)
$013-9 480 .. 24,201 $ 420 7.3 7,856 $ 3.09
481 - 554 .. 20,637 5.41 7.2 10,673 5.42
555- 6.68 .. 26,267 597 6.1 20,385 5.99
671 - 11.73 .. 23,899 8.83 7.1 14,178 8.70
11.76 - 2157 .. 16,098 13.95 8.1 5,990 14.00
Total.......... 111,102 $ 7.25 7.1 59,082 $ 6.97

There were 64.4 million and 15.4 million options exercisable as of June 1, 2001 and June 2, 2000 with
weighted average exercise prices of $6.28 and $26.09 per share, respectively.
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The following table provides information regarding the Company’s outstanding stock options in plans
approved by shareholders compared to those stock options issued outside of shareholder-approved plans
as of May 31, 2002:

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issnance under
Number of securities Weighted average equity compensation plans
to be issued upon exercise price of (excluding securities
exercise of options outstanding options reflected in 1*' column)

(Shares iri thousands)
Equity compensation plans

approved by stockholders . . . . 26,613 $7.82 37.499
Equity compensation plans not

approved by stockholders . . . . 84,489 7.07 72,026
Total ................ . 111,102 $7.25 109,525

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. 3Com has a stockholder-approved employee stock purchase plan, under
which eligible employees may authorize payroll deductions of up to 10 percent of their compensation, as
defined, to purchase common stock at a price of 85 percent of the lower of the fair market value as of the
beginning or the end of the offering period. Offering periods are 24 months, allowing for four six-month
purchase periods. Price declines, if any, will be reflected at the beginning of each six-month purchase
period and remain in effect for the next 24-month offering period.

Stock-Based Compensation. 3Com has a stockholder-approved restricted stock plan, under which shares
of common stock are reserved for issuance at no cost to key employees. Compensation expense, equal to
the fair market value on the date of the grant, is recognized as the granted shares vest over a one-to-four
year period. 3Com also grants time accelerated stock awards whereby restricted shares with a given
time-based vesting may be accelerated if specific milestones are accomplished. In addition, 3Com has
recorded deferred compensation expense in connection with certain of its acquisitions. Excluding
accelerated amortization for Kerbango employees in fiscal 2001 as discussed in Note 4, compensation
expense recognized for the amortization of stock-based compensation was $6.7 million, $8.1 million, and
$1.6 million for the years ended May 31, 2002, June 1, 2001, and June 2, 2000, respectively. As of May 31,
2002, there were 1.2 million shares available for future grant.

Director Stock Plan. 3Com has a stockholder-approved director stock plan, under which shares of
common stock are issued to members of the Board of Directors at an exercise price equal to the fair
market value on the date of grant. Shares granted to newly appointed outside directors vest annually over a
four year period. For continuing directors, grants are made each year as of the annual shareholder meeting
with vesting occurring annually over a two-year period.
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Stock Reserved for Issuance. As of May 31, 2002, 3Com had common stock reserved for issuance as
follows:

(In thousands)

Stock Option Plans . . . ......... ... ... ... . . o 220,627
Employee Stock Purchase Plan .. ................ ... ... ..... 10,220
VAN . . . i e e e e 7,100
Restricted Stock Plan . . . ... ... ... . . . . e 1,157
Total shares reserved for issuance . ......... ... uennnn 239,104

In addition, as of May 31, 2002, 3Com had 0.4 million shares of preferred stock reserved for issuance under
its Preferred Shares Rights plan.

Stock Repurchase and Option Programs. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the Board of Directors
authorized a stock repurchase program in the amount of up to one billion dollars. Such repurchases could
be used to offset the issuance of additional shares resulting from employee stock option exercises and the
sale of shares under the employee stock purchase plan. The Board authorized a two-year time limit on the
repurchase authorizations. During fiscal 2002 and 2001, 1.1 million shares and 39.5 million shares of
common stock were repurchased for a total purchase price of $3.7 million and $577.8 million, respectively.
Included in the fiscal 2001 purchases are those shares purchased through the put option program discussed
below. '

In fiscal 2001, 3Com initiated a program of selling put options and purchasing call options on its common
stock. These were “European” style options, which, in the case of put options, entitle the holders to sell
shares of 3Com common stock to 3Com on the expiration dates at specified prices and, in the case of call
options, entitle 3Com to purchase its common stock on the expiration dates at specified prices. The option
contracts gave 3Com the choice of net cash settlement or physical settlement or net settlement in its own
shares of common stock. These options were accounted for as permanent equity instruments. During fiscal
2001, 1.2 million shares of common stock were repurchased through exercised puts for a cumulative
purchase price of $19.9 million. The option contracts contained per share price floors, whereby a drop in
the price of 3Com common stock below such price floor could require accelerated settlement of the put
options by 3Com. Due to a decline in the price of 3Com common stock, accelerated settlement of the
remaining put options was required. 3Com elected net cash settlement of 15.3 million put options
outstanding, and related call options, which was recorded as a reduction of share capital in the amount of
$140.7 million. As of May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, there were no put options or call options outstanding.

Note Receivable from Broadcom for Sale of Warrants to Purchase 3Com Common Stock. During fiscal
2001, 3Com announced a strategic alliance with Broadcom to accelerate the deployment of Gigabit
Ethernet into business networks. As part of the strategic alliance, 3Com issued to Broadcom a warrant to
acquire up to 7.1 million shares of 3Com common stock, representing approximately 2% of 3Com’s current
outstanding shares. The term of the warrant is from January 1, 2001 through December 4, 2002. The per
share exercise price is $9.31 and the purchase price of the warrant was approximately $21 million.
Broadcom paid for the warrant by issuance of a full recourse promissory note in the principal amount of
approximately $21.1 million. The note bears interest at LIBOR plus one percent. Payments of interest only
are due quarterly beginning April 2001. Principal payments of approximately $3.5 million plus interest are
due quarterly beginning October 2001 through December 2002. The note has optional and mandatory
prepayment provisions if certain conditions are met. As of May 31, 2002, no interest or principal payments
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have been made and, as discussed in Note 20, the note is the subject of litigation between 3Com and
Broadcom.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. As permitted under SFAS 123, 3Com has elected to follow
APB 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for stock-based awards to employees. Under APB 25,
3Com generally recognizes no compensation expense with respect to such stock option awards.

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by SFAS 123. This
information is required to be determined as if 3Com had accounted for its stock-based awards to
employees (including employee stock options and shares issued under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
collectively called “options”) under the fair value method of that Statement. The fair value of options
granted in fiscal years 2002, 2001, and 2000 reported below has been estimated at the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Employee Stock Employee Stock

Option Plans Purchase Plan
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Risk-free interestrate. ... .... 37% 45% 65% 19% 37% 6.4%
Volatility ................. 73.1% 79.4% 184% 620% 79.4% 78.4%
Dividendyield . ............ - 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 0.0%

As of May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, the expected lives of the options under the Employee Stock Option
Plan were estimated at approximately two years after the vesting date for directors and approximately one
and one half years after the vesting date for non-directors. As of June 2, 2000, the expected lives of options
under the Employee Stock Option Plan were estimated at approximately two and one half years after the
vesting date for directors and approximately one and one half years after the vesting date for non-directors.
As of May 31, 2002, June 1, 2001, and June 2, 2000, the expected life of options under the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan was estimated at six months. -

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. The
weighted average estimated fair value of employee stock options granted during fiscal years 2002, 2001,
and 2000 was $2.48, $7.99, and $21.10 per share, respectively. The weighted average estimated fair value of
shares granted under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan during fiscal years 2002, 2001, and 2000 was
$1.60, $5.16, and $10.26, respectively. Because 3Com’s options have characteristics significantly different
from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimate, in the opinion of management, the existing models do not necessarily provide
a reliable single measure of the fair value of its options.
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For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is assumed to be amortized
to expense over the options’ vesting periods. Pro forma information follows (in thousands, except per share
amounts):

Years ended

May 31, June 1, June 2,
2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss): Asreported .......... ... ... $(595,950) $ (965,376) $674,303
Proforma...................... (661,889) (1,148,416) 535,539

Earnings (loss) per share: As reported—basic ............... $ (171 $ (280) $§ 194
: Pro forma—basic ................ (1.89) (3.33) 1.54
As reported—diluted. .. ........... $ (@Q71) 8 (280) § 188

Pro forma—diluted . .......... e (1.89) (3.33) 1.50

Note 13: Financial Instruments

The following summary disclosures are made in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 107, “Disclosures
About Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” which requires the disclosure of fair value information about
both on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments where it is practicable to estimate the value. Fair value
is defined in SFAS 107 as the amount at which an instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, rather than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Because SFAS 107 excludes certain financial instruments and all non-financial instruments from its
disclosure requirements, any aggregation of the fair value amounts presented would not represent the
underlying value to 3Com.

May 31, 2002 June 1, 2001

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

(In thousands)

Assets:
Cash and equivalents ............ $679,055 $679,055 $897,797 $897,797
Short-term investments . .......... 702,993 702,993 742,414 742,414
Corporate equity securities ........ 72,001 71,685 110,976 110,976
Liabilities:
Longtermdebt ................ $ 97,500 $ 97,500 $ — 3 —

The following methods and assumptions were used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments:

Cash and equivalents. The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for cash and
equivalents approximate their estimated fair values.

Short-term investments. The fair values of short-term investments are based on quoted market prices.

Corporate equity securities. Publicly traded corporate equity securities are included in other current assets
and are classified as available-for-sale. Such securities are reported at fair value, which is based on quoted
market prices, with temporary unrealized gains or losses excluded from earnings and included in other
comprehensive income (loss), net of applicable taxes. Privately held corporate equity securities are
included in goodwill, intangibles, deposits, and other assets. Investments in privately held corporate equity
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Note 13: Financial Instruments (Continued)

securities are recorded at the lower of cost or fair value. For these non-quoted investments, 3Com’s policy
is to regularly review the assumptions underlying the financial performance of the privately held companies
in which the investments are maintained. If and when a determination is made that a decline in fair value
below the cost basis is other than temporary, the related investment is written down to its estimated fair
value. Other-than-temporary declines in both publicly traded and privately held corporate equity securities
are recorded in gains (losses) on investments, net.

Long-term debt: Interest on the term loan is due monthly, and bears interest, at 3Com’s election, at either
the lender’s base rate or LIBOR rate, plus an applicable margin. The carrying amount reported in the
consolidated balance sheet for long-term debt is therefore approximately its estimated fair value.

Foreign exchange contracts. 3Com does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading
purposes. Where available, 3Com enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge certain balance
sheet exposures and intercompany balances against future movements in foreign exchange rates. Gains and
losses on the foreign exchange contracts are included in interest and other income, net, which offset
foreign exchange gains or losses from revaluation of foreign currency-denominated balance sheet items
and intercompany balances.

The foreign exchange forward contracts require 3Com to exchange foreign currencies for U.S. Dollars or
vice versa, and generally mature in one month or less. As of May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, 3Com had
outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts with aggregate notional amounts of $59.1 million and
$38.9 million, respectively, that had remaining maturities of one month or less. As of May 31, 2002 and
June 1, 2001, the carrying amounts, which were also the estimated fair values, of foreign exchange forward
contracts were insignificant. The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is based on prevailing
financial market information.

Note 14: Merger-Related Credits, Net

In fiscal 1998, 3Com completed a merger with U.S. Robotics Corporation, which was accounted for as a
pooling of interests. As a result of this merger, 3Com recorded aggregate merger-related charges of
$239.6 million through June 1, 2001, which included $195.8 million of integration expenses and
$43.8 million of direct transaction costs (consisting primarily of investment banking and other professional
fees). Net merger-related credits of $0.7 million and $2.3 million recorded in fiscal 2001 and 2000,
respectively, were primarily for revisions in estimates for remaining U.S. Robotics merger accruals, mostly
for facilities. As of June 1, 2001, 3Com completed all exit activities associated with the U.S. Robotics
merger and there were no merger reserve balances as of June 1, 2001.

As of May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, 3Com had a remaining merger accrual of $0.2 million and
$0.8 million, respectively, related to the Chipcom Corporation merger. Expenditures relating to the
remaining $0.2 million accrual are expected to be made in fiscal 2003.
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Note 15: Interest and Other Income, Net

Interest and other income, net, consists of:

Years ended

May 31, June 1, June 2,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Interestincome ............. .. ... ... ST $71,254 $142,472 $110,404
Interest €Xpense . . .. ..... ..o (4,853) (1,174) (3,612)
Other . ... e 970 3,298 (2,534)
Total . ... e $67,371 $144,596 $104,258

Note 16: Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of:

Years ended

May 31, June 1, June 2,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Current:
Federal . ...... .., $ — § 16,172 §$ 84,107
State. .. .. e 540 (7,931) 38,892
Foreign.......... .. .. .. i, 13,024 16,000 39,361
Totalcurrent. . . ........ .. ... . .. ... .. .. 13,564 24,241 162,360
Deferred:
Federal . ......... .. .. ... . .. . ... 49484  (285,969) 171,315
State. ... . e 28,972 (6,549) 8,182
Foreign............ e (721) 10,636 (183)
Total deferred . ... ... . v 77,735  (281,882) 179,312
Total ... e $91,299 $(257,641) $341,672
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Note 16; Income Taxes (Continued)

The-components of net deferred tax assets consist of:

May 31, June 1,
2002 2001

(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Operating loss carryforwards, net . .. ................ $ 684,299 $ 409,380
Amortization and depreciation . . . .................. 11,404 19,786
Tax credit carryforwards. . .. ... ... . o o 47,934 49,010
Intercompany profit eliminations . .................. 608 - 10,554
Other .. ... .. N, 18,207 - 29,099
Valuation allowance ............ e (558,229)  (194,085)
Total deferred tax assets .. ..........ccoinnnnn.. 204,223 323,744
Deferred tax liabilities:
Reserves recognized in different periods for tax purposes . (94,244)  (139,354)
Unremitted earnings . .. ...ttt (87,500)  (87,500)
Royalty and purchased research and development .. ... .. (13,774) (8,965)
Unrealized gain on investments, net .. ............... (173) (1,740)
Other. ... (2,340) (3,321)
Net deferred tax @ssets . .. .. oot i ittt e i $ 6,192 § 82,864

3Com has net operating losses related to the following tax jurisdictions and expiration periods: U.S. federal
income tax loss carryforwards of approximately $1.1 billion and $683.8 million expiring in fiscal years 2021
and 2022, respectively; various state income tax carryforwards of approximately $817.5 million expiring
between 2006 and 2023; and various foreign taxing jurisdictions, with $2.7 million expiring between 2004
and 2008, and $28.6 million with an unlimited carryforward period. 3Com also has U.S. federal research
credit carryforwards of $23.1 million expiring between 2010 and 2022; a U.S. federal foreign tax credit
carryforward of $2.8 million that expires in 2006; and U.S. federal alternative minimum tax credits of
$21.9 million that have an unlimited carryforward period.

SFAS 109 requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The valuation allowance relates to
net operating loss and credit carryforwards and temporary differences for which 3Com believes that
realization is uncertain. The valuation allowance increased $364.1 million and $182.6 million in fiscal years
2002 and 2001, respectively. The total valuation allowance of $558.2 million includes $103.9 million
attributable to benefits of stock option deductions, which, if recognized, will be allocated directly to
paid-in-capital.
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Note 16: Income Taxes (Continued)

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the federal statutory income
tax rate to income before taxes as follows:

Years ended
May 31, June 1, June 2,

2002 2001 2000
Tax computed at federal statutory rate .. ............ 35.0)% (35.0)% 350 %
State income taxes, net of federal effect . ............ 3.1 (2.6) 32
Tax exempt investment income .. .................. (0.2) 07 09
Provision for taxes on unremitted earnings ........... — 0.5 —
Provision for combined foreign and U.S. taxes on certain

foreign income at rates greater than (less than) U.S.

TALES .\ vttt e 7.7 6.9 (4.2)
Research tax credits . . ............. ... ... .. ... — (0.1) (0.3)
Valuation allowance . ........................... 47.1 6.8 —
Non-deductible purchased in-process technology and

merger-related charges .. ...................... 1.9 35 1.0
Other .. ... (0.3) (0.3) 1.7
Total .. .o 18.1 % (21.0)% 35.5%

Income (loss) before income taxes for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002, June 1, 2001, June 2, 2000,
includes foreign income (loss) of ($69.6) million, ($152.5) miltion, and $213.3 million, respectively. 3Com
has provided $87.5 million for the potential repatriation of certain undistributed earnings of its foreign
subsidiaries. 3Com has not provided for federal income taxes on approximately $279.9 million of
undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries since 3Com considers these earnings to be indefinitely
reinvested in foreign subsidiary operations. It is not practicable to estimate the income tax liability that
might be incurred upon the remittance of such earnings.

3Com has certain domestic and foreign income tax audits that are currently in progress. The ultimate
resolution of these examinations cannot be predicted with certainty; however, 3Com’s management
believes the examinations will not have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial condition or
results of operations. As of May 31, 2002, the IRS has completed its audit of 3Com’s fiscal years through
June 2, 2000.
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Note 17: Net Income (Loss) per Share

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except
per share data):

Years ended :
May 31, June 1, June 2,

2002 2001 2000
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . .. .. $(595,950) $(969,913) $615,563
Income from discontinued operations ......... — 4,537 58,740

$(595,950) $(965,376) $674,303

Weighted average shares—Basic .. ........... 349,489 345,027 348,314
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options . ................ — — 9,267
Restricted stock . ...................... —_ —_ 302
Weighted average shares—Diluted ........... 349,489 345,027 357,883
Net income (loss) per share—Basic:
Continuing operations. . . . ............... $ (1.71) $ (281) $ 177
Discontinued operations . ................ — 0.01 0.17

$ (L71) § (280) $ 194

Net income (loss) per share—Diluted:
Continuing operations. . .. ............... $ (@71) 8 (281) $ 172
Discontinued operations ................. — 0.01 0.16

§ (171) $§ (280) § 1.8

Employee stock options and restricted stock totaling 6.6 million and 30.3 million shares for the year ended
May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, respectively, were not included in the diluted weighted average shares
calculation ‘as the effects of these securities were antidilutive.

Note 18: Business Segment Information

3Com provides network connectivity products and solutions for people and businesses, as well as access
infrastructure and IP services platforms for network service providers. For fiscal 2002, 3Com had four
reporting segments. Three of these segments represented ongoing operations—Business Networks
Company, Business Connectivity Company, CommWorks Corporation—and the fourth segment included
product lines that 3Com decided to exit during the period from the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000 through
the first quarter of fiscal 2002. The Business Networks segment manufactures and sells network
infrastructure solutions for the enterprise and small business markets, including switches and hubs, as well
as services associated with sales of these products. The Business Connectivity segment sells products that
enable computing devices to access computer networks, such as desktop NICs and PC cards. The
CommWorks segment sells hardware platforms for wireline and wireless access, software and softswitch
elements that enable services to be delivered over these platforms, and professional services for network
service providers. Exited Products include analog-only modems, high-end LAN and WAN chassis products,
internet appliances, and consumer cable and DSL modem products.
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Note 18: Business Segment Information (Continued)

3Com’s Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM) as he
assesses the performance of the business units and decides how to allocate resources to the business units.
Contribution margin is the measure of profit and loss that the CODM uses to assess performance and
make decisions. Contribution margin represents the sales less the cost of sales and direct expenses incurred
within the operating segments. Certain corporate level operating expenses (primarily restructuring charges,
corporate marketing and general and administration expenses, other unallocated corporate expenses, and
one-time charges or credits) are not allocated to operating segments and are included in corporate and
other in the reconciliation of operating results.

The business segments do not sell to each other, and accordingly, there are no intersegment sales. 3Com’s
CODM does not review total assets or depreciation and amortization by operating segment, but he does
review inventory by operating segment. The accounting policies for reported segments are the same as for
3Com as a whole.

Reportable Operating Segments

Information on reportable operating segments for the three years ended May 31, 2002, June 1, 2001, and
June 2, 2000, and as of May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001, is as follows (in thousands):

May 31, June 1, June 2,
2002 2001 2000
Sales:
Business Networks Company . .......... $ 773,696 $1,057,037 $1,416,617
Business Connectivity Company ......... 474,798 966,508 1,279,972
CommWorks . ...................... 218,963 399,716 571,767
Exited Product Lines . . ............... 10,475 397,620 1,059,586

$1,477,932  $2,820,881 $4,333,942

Contribution Margin (Loss):

Business Networks Company ........... $ 14835 $ (93,482) $ 190,367
Business Connectivity Company . ........ (48,014) 161,775 422,168
COmMMWOTKS .+« v veeeeeee e (67,238)  (144708) 133,079
Exited Product Lines . . ............... (35,093)  (438,313) (141,549)

$ (135,510) $ (514,729) $ 604,065
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Note 18: Business Segment Information (Continued)

A reconciliation of the totals reported for the operating segments to the applicable line items in the
consolidated financial statements is.set forth below (in thousands):

May 31, June 1, June 2,
2002 2001 2000
Total contribution margin from operating
SEZMENTS . . vt v e e $(135,510) $ (514,729) $604,065
Indirect operating expenses (1) .. .. ....... 249,787 543,239 530,921
Restructuring charges . . .. .............. 167,462 163,567 68,867
Loss (gain) on land and facilities, net ... ... 1,375 (178,844)  (25,483)
Purchased in-process technology ... ....... — 60,221 13,456
Merger-related credits, net . ... .......... — (728) (2,297)
Total operating income (loss) . ............. (554,134) (1,102,184) 18,801
Gain (loss) on investments, net . . .. ....... (17,888) (18,614) 838,795
Litigation settlement .................. — (250,000) —
Interest and other income, net ........... 67,371 144,596 104,258
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes and equity interests . ... $(504,651) $(1,226,202) $961,854

(1) Indirect operating expenses include expenses that are not directly attributable to an operating
segment, such as corporate marketing, and general and administrative expenses..

May 31, June 1,

2002 2001
Inventory:
Business Networks Company . .......... ... .......... $29,802 $ 69,621
Business Connectivity Company . ..................... 12,678 80,161
CommWOrks . . . ..o i e 13,999 29,284

Exited Product Lines . . . .......... ... . 0. . 5,298 21,081
' $61,777  $200,146

Geographic Information

3Com’s foreign operations consist primarily of central distribution, order administration, manufacturing,
and research and development facilities in Western Europe and Singapore. Sales, marketing, and customer
service activities are conducted through sales subsidiaries throughout the world. Geographic sales
information for the last three fiscal years is based on the location of the end customer. Geographic
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Note 18: Business Segment Information (Continued)

long-lived assets information is based on the physical location of the assets at the end of each fiscal year.
Sales to unaffiliated customers and long-lived assets by geographic region are as follows (in thousands):

Years ended

May 31, June 1, June 2,
2002 2001 2000
Sales
AMETICAS . .ot i e $ 695,978 $1,523,863 $2,435,838
Furope......... ... . i .. 495,862 856,127 1,354,567
Asia Pacific .............. ... ... . ... 286,092 440,891 543,537
Total ... ... $1,477,932  $2,820,881 $4,333,942

For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002, June 1, 2001, and June 2, 2000, the United States within the
Americas region above had sales of $587.5 million, or 40% of total sales, $1,277.9 million, or 45% of total
sales, and $2,114.4 million, or 49% of sales, respectively. No other individual country within the regions
above had sales exceeding ten percent of total sales.

May 31, June 1,
2002 2001

Long-Lived Assets

United StALES . . . oo $535,194  $397,290
Treland . . ... . o 75,800 84,801
United Kingdom . . ... ...t 54,508 71,741
Other. ... e 10,652 55,847
Total ... $676,154  $609,679

As of May 31, 2002 and June 1, 2001 no other individual country had long-lived assets exceeding
10 percent of total long-lived assets.

Note 19: Employee Benefit Plan

3Com has adopted a plan known as the 3Com 401(k) Plan (the Plan) to provide retirement benefits to all
of its employees. As allowed under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan provides
tax-deferred salary deductions for eligible employees. Participants may elect to contribute from one
percent to 22 percent of their annual compensation to the Plan each calendar year, limited to a maximum
annual amount as set periodically by the Internal Revenue Service. In addition, the Plan provides for
contributions as determined by the Board of Directors. 3Com will match 50 percent for each dollar on the
first six percent of target income contributed by the employee. Employees become vested in 3Com
matching contributions according to a three-year vesting schedule based on initial date of hire. Matching
contributions to the Plan totaled $5.4 million in fiscal 2002, $11.8 million in fiscal 2001, and $12.9 million in
fiscal 2000.

Note 20: Litigation

3Com is a party to lawsuits in the normal course of its business. Litigation can be expensive and disruptive
to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of complex legal proceedings are difficult to predict.
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Note 20: Litigation (Continued)

3Com believes that it has defenses in each of the cases set forth below in which it is named as a defendant
and is vigorously contesting each of these matters. An unfavorable resolution of one or more of the
following lawsuits could adversely affect its business, results of operations, or financial condition.

Securities Litigation

In December 1997, a securities class action, captioned Reiver v. 3Com Corporation, et al., Civil Action
No. C-97-21083JW (Reiver), was filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California. Several similar actions were consolidated into this action, including Florida State Board of
Administration and Teachers Retirement System of Louisiana v. 3Com Corporation, et al., Civil Action
No. C-98-1355. On August 17, 1998, the plaintiffs filed a consolidated amended complaint which alleged
violations of the federal securities laws, specifically Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, and which sought unspecified damages on behalf of a purported class of purchasers of 3Com
common stock during the period from April 23, 1997 through November 5, 1997. In May 2000, 3Com
answered the amended complaint. In October 2000, the parties agreed to settle this action and all other
related actions, including Adfer v. 3Com Corporation, which is discussed below. On February 23, 2001, the
Court entered a final judgment approving the settlement.

In October 1998, a securities class action lawsuit, captioned Adler v. 3Com Corporation, et al., Civil Action
No. CV777368 (Adler), was filed against 3Com and certain of its officers and directors in the California
Superior Court, Santa Clara County, asserting the same class period and factual allegations as the Reiver
action. The complaint alleged violations of Sections 25400 and 25500 of the California Corporations Code
and sought unspecified damages. The parties agreed to stay this case to allow the Reiver case to proceed.
Along with Reiver, this case was settled in October 2000. As part of the settlement, the plaintiffs agreed to
dismiss this action with prejudice. The settlement amount was $259.0 million, of which $9.0 million was
recovered from insurance. Accordingly, 3Com recorded a litigation charge of $250.0 million in the second
quarter of fiscal 2001. '

In November 2000, a shareholder derivative and class action lawsuit, captioned Shaev v. Claflin, et al., No.
CV794039, was filed in California Superior Court. The complaint alleges that 3Com’s directors and
officers made misrepresentations and/or omissions and breached their fiduciary duties to the Company in
connection with the adjustment of employee and director stock options in connection with the separation
of 3Com and Palm. It is unclear whether the plaintiff is seeking recovery from 3Com or if the Company is
named solely as a nominal defendant, against whom the plaintiff seeks no recovery. 3Com and the
individual defendants have removed this action to the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California, where the action is captioned Shaev v. Claflin, et al., No. CV-01-0009-MJJ. The case
was later remanded back to the California Superior Court. On November 29, 2001, the Court granted the
defendants’ demurrer with leave to amend. The plaintiff has since filed a First Amended Complaint to
which defendants again demurred. On July 9, 2002, the Court again granted the defendants’ demurrer to
the plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint with leave to amend.

Intellectual Property

On May 26, 2000, 3Com filed suit against Xircom, Inc. in the United States District Court for the District
of Utah, Civil Action No. 2:00-CV-0436C alleging infringement of U.S. Patents Nos. 6,012,953, 5,532,898,
5,696,660, and 5,777,836, accusing Xircom of infringement of one or more of the claims of the
patents-in-suit by reason of the manufacture, sale, and use of the Real Port and RealPort 2 families of PC
Cards, as well as a number of Xircom’s Type II PC Modem Cards. On November 14, 2000, 3Com amended
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its complaint to assert infringement of then-newly issued U.S. Patent No. 6,146,209, also asserted against
Xircom’s RealPort and RealPort2 families of products. Xircom has counter-claimed for a declaratory
judgment that the asserted claims of the patents-in-suit are invalid and/or not infringed. On July 19, 2002
the Honorable Tena Campbell granted 3Com’s motion for a preliminary injunction on the 6,146,209 patent
prohibiting Xircom from manufacturing, using, selling, offering to sell within the United States or
importing into the United States 26 RealPort and RealPort2 products as identified in the Court’s order
pending the final outcome of the lawsuit. 3Com intends to vigorously pursue this action. No trial date has
yet been set.

On September 21, 2000, Xircom, Inc. filed an action against 3Com Corporation in the United States
District Court for the Central District of California, Case No.: 00-10198 MRP, accusing 3Com of
infringement of U.S. Patents Nos. 5,773,332, 5,940,275, 6,115,257, and 6,095,851, accusing 3Com of
infringement by reason of the manufacture, sale, and use; of the 3COM 10/100 LAN+Modem CardBus
Type II1 PC Card, the 3COM 10/100 LAN CardBus Type III PC Card, the 3COM Megahertz® 10/100
LAN CardBus PC Card, the 3COM Megahertz 10/100 LAN+56K Global Modem CardBus PC Card and
the 3COM Megahertz 56K Global GSM and Cellular Modem PC Card. On July 6, 2001, Xircom filed a
second action against 3Com, Case No. 01-05902 GAF JTLX, also filed in the United States District Court
for the Central District of California, alleging infringement of U.S. Patent No. 6,241,550. The 6,241,550
patent is asserted against the 3COM 10/100 LAN+Modem CardBus Type III PC Card, the 3COM 10/100
LAN CardBus Type III PC Card products. This second action asserting the 6,241,550 patent has been
consolidated with the first action, with both cases being heard by the Honorable Mariana R. Pfaelzer.
3Com has counter-claimed for declaratory judgment that the asserted claims of the patents-in-suit are not
infringed and/or invalid and that the claims of the 5,940,275 and 6,241,550 patents are unenforceable. This
case is in the discovery phase. Xircom filed a motion for preliminary injunction seeking to enjoin 3Com
from the continued manufacture and sale of its Type III PC card products. The motion was heard on
March 26, 2001 and was denied by the Court. Xircom subsequently filed a motion for preliminary
injunction on the 6,241,550 patent. Xircom’s second motion was resolved by agreement between the
parties. 3Com continues to sell its type III PC cards, without the light pipe, which does not adversely affect
the functionality of the cards. 3Com intends to vigorously pursue the defense of this action.

On April 28, 1997, Xerox Corporation (Xerox) filed suit against U.S. Robotics Corporation and U.S.
Robotics Access Corp. in the United States District Court for the Western District of New York. The case
is now captioned Xerox Corporation v. 3Com Corporation, U.S. Robotics Corporation, U.S. Robotics
Access Corp., Palm Computing, Inc., and Palm, Inc. (Civil Action Number 97-CV-6182T). Xerox alleged
willful infringement of United States Patent Number 5,596,656, entitled “Unistrokes for Computerized
Interpretation of Handwriting.” Xerox sought damages and to permanently enjoin the defendants from
infringing the patent in the future. In 2000, the District Court dismissed the case, ruling that there was no
infringement. On appeal, the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (CAFC) affirmed-in-part,
reversed-in-part and remanded the case to the District Court. On December 20, 2001, the District Court
granted Xerox’s motion for summary judgment that the patent is valid, enforceable, and infringed. The
defendants then filed a Notice of Appeal. On February 22, 2002, the District Court denied a motion made
by Xerox for an injunction prohibiting further alleged infringement during the appeal and ordered the
defendants to post a bond in the amount of $50 million. Xerox then appealed the denial of the injunction.
In connection with the separation of Palm from 3Com, pursuant to the terms of the Indemnification and
Insurance Matters Agreement, dated February 26, 2000, between 3Com and Palm, Palm agreed to
indemnify and hold 3Com harmless for any damages or losses that might arise out of the Xerox litigation.
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On August 14, 2001, 3Com filed suit against Broadcom Corporation (Broadcom) in California Superior
Court, captioned 3Com Corporation v. Broadcom Corporation, CV800685 in which 3Com seeks to recover
from Broadcom, pursuant to a promissory note, the principal amount of $21.1 million together with
interest thereon and attorney fees. On January 8, 2002, Broadcom filed its answer denying that any sums
are due and asserting numerous affirmative defenses, The case is now in the discovery phase. No trial date
has been set. 3Com intends to vigorously pursue this action.

Note 21: Subsequent Event

In July 2002, 3Com sold its 639,000 square foot manufacturing and office facility in Mount Prospect that
was classified as held for sale as of May 31, 2002. The estimated net realizable value of this property as of
May 31, 2002 was $17.4 million. Net proceeds from the sale were $17.8 million, resulting in a $0.4 million
credit that will be recorded against restructuring charges in the first quarter of fiscal 2003. Additionally, as
a portion of 3Com’s term loan was collateralized by the Mount Prospect facility, 3Com repaid
approximately $7.5 million of the term loan balance with the proceeds from this sale as was required under
the terms of the agreement.

Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

Fiscal 2002 Quarters Ended Fiscal 2001 Quarters Ended
May 31, March 1, Nov. 30, Aug. 31, June 1, March 2, Dec. 1, Sept. 1,
2002 2002 - 2001 2001 2001 2001 2000 2000
(In thousands, except per share data)

Sales . .............. $338,511 $355,978 $393,854  $389,589  $468,033 $629,586 $789,498  $933,764
Gross margin . . . ....... 148,964 133,472 132,997 62,768 (168,620) 70,126 291,397 340,728
Gross margin % . .. ... .. 44.0 % 375 % 33.8 % 16.1 % (36.0)% 11.1 % 36.9 % 36.5 %
Operating income (loss) . .. (37,550)  (173,793) (98,456)  (244,335)  (621,055)  (369,088) 33,505 (145,546)
Loss from continuing

operations . ......... (23,758)  (236,134)  (103,674) (232,384) (517,727)  (246,043)  (142,406) (63,737)
Loss from continuing

operations % . ....... (7.0)% (66.3)% (26.3)% (59.6)% (110.6)% (GI9N% (18.0)% (6.8)%
Income from discontinued

operations . ......... — — — — — — — 4,537
Income from discontinued

operations % . ....... — — — — — — — 0.5 %
Basic and diluted loss per

share—continuing

operations . ......... $ (©07) $ (67 $§ (030) $§ (067) $ (1.52) § (0.72) % (041) § (0.18)
Basic and diluted income

per share—discontinued

operations . ......... — — — — — - — § 00

The improvement in gross margin in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 was due to new products, improved
mix, net royalty income, and approximately $7.0 million of margin benefit in BCC primarily relating to
sales of inventory written down in the first quarter of fiscal 2002.

Gross margin was significantly reduced in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 primarily from non-recurring
charges of $215.1 million. These charges consisted of excess and obsolete inventory provisions due to
product discontinuation and reduced demand, and a liability related to future contractual commitments
with a subcontract manufacturer as a result of 3Com’s intention to exit its consumer product lines and the
reduction in sales demand.
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

PART I
ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of 3Com Corporation

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K with respect to identification of directors is
incorporated by reference from the information contained in the section captioned “Election of Directors”
in 3Com’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held September 24,
2002 (the Proxy Statement), a copy of which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
before the meeting date. For information with respect to the executive officers of 3Com, see “Executive
Officers of 3Com Corporation” at the end of Part I of this report.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information
contained in the section captioned “Executive Compensation and Other Matters” in the Proxy Statement.
ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by Item 12 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information
contained in the section captioned “General Information” in the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information
contained in the section captioned “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the
Proxy Statement.
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PART 1V

ITEM 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule, and Reports on Form 8-K

(2)

(b)

©
(d)

(1) Financial Statements—See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and
Financial Statement Schedule at page 56 of this Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedule—See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
and Financial Statement Schedule at page 56 of this Form 10-K.

(3) Exhibits—See Exhibit Index at page 98 of this Form 10-K.
Reports on Form 8-K.

(1) None.

See Exhibit Index at page 98 of this Form 10-K.

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule at
page 56 of this Form 10-K.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description
21 Master Separation and Distribution Agreement between the Registrant and Palm, Inc.
effective as of December 13, 1999, as amended (8)
22 General Assignment and Assumption Agreement between the Registrant and Palm, Inc.,
as amended (8)
23 Master Technology Ownership and License Agreement between the Registrant and
Palm, Inc. (8)
24 Master Patent Ownership and License Agreement between the Registrant and Palm, Inc.
(®)
25 Master Trademark Ownership and License Agreement between the Registrant and
Palm, Inc. (8)
2.6 Employee Matters Agreement between the Registrant and Palm, Inc. (8)
27 Tax Sharing Agreement between the Registrant and Palm, Inc. (8)
2.8 Master Transitional Services Agreement between the Registrant and Palm, Inc.'(S)
29 Real Estate Matters Agreement between the Registrant and Palm, Inc. (8)
210  Master Confidential Disclosure Agreement between the Registrant and Palm, Inc. (8)
211 Indemnification and Insurance Matters Agreement between the Registrant and Palm, Inc.
®)
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (5)
32 Certificate of Correction filed to Correct a Certain Error in the Certificate of
Incorporation (5)
33 Certificate of Merger (5)
34  Corrected Certificate of Merger filed to correct an error in the Certificate of Merger (7)
35 Registrant’s Bylaws, as amended on August 7, 2001, filed herewith
3.6 Certificate of Designation of Rights, Preferences and Privileges of Series A Participating
Preferred Stock (16)
4.1 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated December 31, 1994 (3)
4.2 Third Amended and Restated Preferred Share Rights Agreement, dated as of March 8§,
2001 (13)
10.1 3Com Corporation 1983 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated effective
September 30, 2001 (17)*
10.2  Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Plan (2)*
10.3 License Agreement dated March 19, 1981 (1)
10.4 3Com Corporation 1984 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended and restated as of
September 20, 2001, filed herewith*
10.5 3Com Corporation Director Stock Option Plan, as amended (16)*
10.6 3Com Corporation Restricted Stock Plan, as amended July 1, 2001, filed herewith *
10.7 3Com Corporation 1994 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated effective April 30,

2002, filed herewith*
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12
10.13
10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

21.1
231

Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among the Registrant, TR
Acquisitions Corporation, 3Com (Delaware) Corporation, and U.S. Robotics
Corporation, dated as of February 26, 1997 and amended as of March 14, 1997 (4)

Form of Management Retention Agreement, effective as of June 2, 1999, with attached
list of parties (9)*

Form of Management Retention Agreement, with attached list of parties and effective
dates (9)* '

Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Land at Highway 237 and North First Street, San
Jose, California entered into as of May 22, 2000 by and between the Registrant and
Palm, Inc. (10)

Employment Agreement with Bruce Claflin, effective as of January 1, 2001 (11)*
Summary of Severance Plan for Section 16b Officers (15)*

Credit Agreement dated as of November 28, 2001 between the Registrant, Bank of
America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Bank of America Securities, LLC, as Lead
Arranger and Sole Book Manager, Foothill Capital Corporation, as Syndication Agent,
and the Financial Institutions Named Herein, as Lenders (17)

Credit Agreement dated as of November 28, 2001 between 3Com Technologies and 3Com
Europe Limited, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Bank of America
Securities, LLC, as Lead Arranger and Sole Book Manager, Foothill Capital
Corporation, as Syndication Agent, and the Financial Institutions Named Herein, as
Lenders (17)

Security Agreement dated as of November 28, 2001, between the Registrant and Bank of
America, N.A,, in its capacity as Agent for Lenders (17)

Continuing Guaranty dated as of November 28, 2001, made by the Registrant in favor of
the Lenders and Bank of America, N.A., as Agent for the Lenders (17)

Intercompany Subordination Agreement dated as of November 28, 2001, made among the
Registrant and Bank of America, N.A., as Agent for itself and the Lenders (17)

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing dated
November 28, 2001, between the Registrant, as Trustor, and First American Title
Guaranty Company, as Trustee, and Bank of America, N.A., as Agent, for the Santa
Clara, CA, Betsy Ross site (17)

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing dated
November 28, 2001, between the Registrant, as Trustor, and First American Title
Guaranty Company, as Trustee, and Bank of America, N.A., as Agent, for the Santa
Clara, CA, West Campus (17)

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing dated
November 28, 2001, between the Registrant, as Trustor, and First American Title
Guaranty Company, as Trustee, and Bank of America, N.A., as Agent, for the Santa
Clara, CA, East Campus (17)

Mortgage, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement
dated November 28, 2001, between the Registrant, as Mortgagor, and Bank of
America, N.A., as Agent, as Mortgagee, for the Rolling Meadows, IL site (17)

Subsidiaries of Registrant, filed herewith
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, filed herewith
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Exhibit

Number Description

99.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
filed herewith

* Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on January 25, 1984 (File No. 2-89045)

(2) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-4 filed on August 31, 1987 (File No. 33-16850)

(3) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed on January 17, 1995 (File No. 000-12867)

(4) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on March 17, 1997 (File No. 333-23465)

(5) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed on October 14, 1997 (File No. 000-12867)

(6) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed on January 11, 1999 (File No. 000-12867)

(7) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed on October &, 1999 (File No. 002-92053)

(8) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed on April 4, 2000 (File No. 333-34726)

(9) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-K filed on August 17, 2000 (File No. 000-12867)

(10) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed on October 13, 2000 (File No. 000-12867)

(11) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed on January 16, 2001 (File No. 000-12867)

(12) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-§ filed on April 25, 2001 (File No. 333-59504)

(13) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A 12G/A filed on
June 15, 2001 (File No. 333-34726)

(14) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-8 filed on July 12, 2001 (File No. 333-64988)

(15) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-K filed on August 9, 2001 (File No. 000-12867)

(16) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed on October 11, 2001 (File No. 000-12867)

(17) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit previously filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed on January 11, 2002 (File No. 000-12867)

100




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the
2nd day of August, 2002. :

3CoM CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /s/ BRUCE L. CLAFLIN

Bruce L. Claflin
Chief Executive Officer .

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on bhehalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 2nd day of August,
2002.

Signature Zitﬁ
/s/ BRUCE L. CLAFLIN Chief Executive Officer
(Bruce L. Claflin) (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ MARK SLAVEN Senior Vice President, Finance and Planning,

and Chief Financial Officer

(Mark Slaven) (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ ERIC A. BENHAMOU
(Eric A. Benhamou)

Chairman of the Board

/s/ FRED D. ANDERSON

Director
(Fred D. Anderson)
/s/ GARY T. DICAMILLO .
Director
(Gary T. DiCamillo)
/s/ JAMES R. LONG .
Director
(James R. Long)
/s/ RAJ REDDY .
Director
(Raj Reddy)
/s/ PAUL G. YOVOVICH .
Director

(Paul G. Yovovich)

101




3Com Corporation

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
For the Years Ended June 2, 2000, June 1, 2001, and May 31, 2002
(In thousands)

SCHEDULE II

Additions
Balance at  charged to Balance at
beginning costs and end of
Description of period expenses Reclassifications  Deductions period
Year ended June 2, 2000:
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . .. .. $105,080 $ 10,047 $(4,500)(2) $ 34,159(1) $76,468
Product return reserve . ............. 66,362 244,032 — 245,732 64,662
Accrued product warranty. ........... 108,637 45,276 — 67,476 86,437
Restructuring reserves:
Facilities reserve . . . .............. — 8,932 - 632 8,300
Severance and outplacement costs . . . . — 59,890 — 25,678 34,212
Other restructuring costs . . ......... — 36,404 — 30,731 5,673
Acquisition-related reserves:
Chipcom .......... ... ....... 2,104 123 — 888 1,339
U.S. Robotics
Facilities reserve .. ............. 13,935 (1,976) — 11,713 246
Severance and outplacement costs . . 595 67 — 538 —
Year ended June 1, 2001:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ... .... $ 76,468 $(12,387) $ — $ 16,772(1) $47,309
Product return reserve . ............. 64,662 121,173 — 156,702 29,133
Accrued product warranty. . .......... 86,437 52,021 — 84,887 53,571
Restructuring reserves:
Facilities reserve . . .. ............. 8,300 (5,205) — 3,095 —
Severance and outplacement costs . . . . 34,212 81,802 — 75,751 40,263
Other restructuring costs . . ... ...... 5,673 18,031 — 21,922 1,782
Acquisition-related reserves:
Chipcom ...................... 1,339 (147) — 354 838
U.S. Robotics
Facilities reserve . .............. 246 (246) — — —
Year ended May 31, 2002:
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . .. ... $ 47,309 $ (7,037) § — $ 6,397(1) $33,875
Product return reserve . ............. 29,133 58,230 — 78,030 9,333
Accrued product warranty. . .......... 53,571 61,810 — 62,092 53,289
Restructuring reserves:
Facilities reserve . . ... ............ —_ 93,897 — 88,543 5,354
Severance and outplacement costs . . . . 40,263 52,828 — 88,138 4,953
Other restructuring costs . . . .. ...... 1,782 7,101 — 5,436 3,477
Acquisition-related reserves:
Chipcom ................... ... 838 — — 613 215

(1) Accounts written off—net of recoveries.

{2) Reclassification from allowance for doubtful accounts to accrued liabilities.
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Copyright © 2002 3Com Corporation. All rights reserved. 3Com, CommWorks, Megahertz, NBX,
OfficeConnect, SuperStack, and Total Control are registered trademarks of 3Com Corporation or its
subsidiaries. Kerbango and XRN are trademarks of 3Com Corporation or its subsidiaries. Graffiti is a
registered trademark and Palm is a trademark of Palm, Inc. U.S. Robotics is a registered trademark and
Courier is a trademark of U.S. Robotics Corporation. The Bluetooth trademark is owned by Bluetooth
SIG, Inc. and used by 3Com Corporation under license. Other product and brand names may be
trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective owners.
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